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1. PUBLIC COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENT WITH AN AUDITOR’S REPORT

1.1. Balance -sheet as at december 31, 2012

(Thousands of RSD)

| SN | Assers ] ] 31122012 ] 31122011 |
Al | Cashand cash equivalents | 001 | 40.514.180 | 17228970 |
All | Callable deposits and loans | 002 |  43.053502 |  55.260.711 |
Alll | Interest and fees receivables | 003 | 1.547.342 | 1187573 |
AV | Loans and advances | 004 | 177106865 |  155.719.207 |
AV | Trading securities | 005 | 41347719 | 25637972 |
AVl | Shares/Stakes | 006 | 5.917.033 | 5823.583 |
AVIl | Other investments | 007 | 322789 | 2187533 |
AVIIl | Intangible assets | 008 | 600.438 | 555.415 |
AIX | Fixed assets and investment property | 009 | 7416846 | 7.530.271 |
AX gl:élr-:ttixcz;esntassets held for sale and discontinuing ‘ 010 ‘ 78763 101.040
AXl | Deferred tax assets [ o011 | 4.896 | - |
AXIl | Other assets | 012 | 3.372.293 | 4.256.443 |
AXIIl | Loss over the amount of capital | 013 | - | - |

| TOTAL ASSETS (from A lto A XIll) | 014 | 324187773 |  275.488.718 |




(Thousands of RSD)

| sN ) umBumes | | 31122012 | 31122011
Pl | Transaction deposits | 101 |  40.336.776 | 31456575 |
PIl_ | Other deposits | 102 | 195183968 |  174.666.705 |
Pl | Received loans | 103 | 637.264 | 1.603.761 |
PIV | Liabilities arising from shares | 104 | - | |
‘ Liabilities arising from interest,fees and derivatives ‘ 105 ‘ 188.910 ‘ 205.079 ‘
valuation adjustments
PVI | Provisions | 106 | 2331760 | 2135436 |
PVIl | Tax liabilities 107 | 21.799 | 39.737 |
PVII | Liabilities relating to profit | 108 | 85.114 | 172.197 |
P IX ‘ Liabilities relating to non-current assets held for sale ‘ 109 ‘ - ‘ ‘
and discontinuing operations
PX | Deferred tax liabilities | 110 | - | 17.036 |
PX | Other liabilities | 11| 25535622 | 20916626 |
| TOTAL LIABILITIES (from P I to P XI) 12 | 264321213 | 231213452 |
1. ‘ gﬁsrlgjlcapital and issue premium ‘ e ‘ 40.034.550 ‘ 28.462.553 ‘
2. | Reserves from profit | 114 | 14785440 | 11.635.440 |
3. | Revaluation reserves | 115 | 867.774 | 689.620 |
4, | Unrealized losses on securities available for sale | 116 | 7.016 | 63.940 |
5, | Profit | 117 | 4185812 | 3.551.893 |
6. | Loss up to the amount of capital | 118 | - | |
PXIl | TOTALCAPITAL(1+2+3-4+5-6) | 119 |  59.866.560 |  44.275566 |
| TOTAL LIABILITIES ( from P I to P XII ) | 120 | 324187.773 |  275.488.718 |
| OFF-BALANCE SHEET POSITIONS 121 | 204642280 |  183.524.807 |
| Managed funds | 122 | 5013721 | 4332764 |
| Commitments | 123 | 42452658 |  36.215.842 |
| Received guarantees for liabilities 124 | - | |
| Derivatives | 125 | . | 261.602 |
| Other off-balance sheet items | 126 | 157175901 | 142714689 |
Beograd, February 26, 2013
Signed on behalf of Komercijalna banka a.d., Beograd by:
SneZana Pejci¢ Ivica Smoli¢
Head of Accounting President of the Executive Board
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1.2. Income Statement for the period 01.01. to 31.12.2012

(Thousands of RSD)
~ INCOMEANDEXPENSES - | 31122012 | 31122011, |
| Interest income | 201 | 20.130.880 | 18.036.321 |
| Interest expense | 202 | 9.220.564 | 8.182.953 |
| | Net interest income | 203 | 10.910.316 | 9.853.368 |
| Net interest loss | 204 | | - |
| Fee and commission income | 205 | 5334914 | 5051445 |
| Fee and commission expense | 206 | 780.448 | 628.046 |
[ | Net fee and commission income | 207 | 4.554.466 | 4423399 |
| Net fee and commission loss | 208 | | - |
ll | Net gains on the fair value sale of securities | 209 | 776 | - |
IV | Net loss on the fair value sale of securities | 210 | | 19.110 |
V | Net gains on sale of securities available forsale | 211 | 83.947 | 1.254 |
Vi | Net loss on sale of securities available forsale | 212 | | - |
ViI | Net gains on sale of securities held till maturity | 213 | | - |
VIl | Netloss on sale of securities held till maturity |~ 214 | | - |
IX | Net gains from sale of equity (shares) | 215 | | - |
X | Net loss from sale of equity (shares) | 216 | | - |
X | Net gains from sale of other placements |7 | | - |
XII | Net loss from sale of other placements | 218 | | - |
Xl | NetFXgains | 219 | | - |
XIV | NetFX expenses | 220 | 8.041.381 | 27.828 |
XV Dividends and other income from equity 221 2.251 7.997
investments
XVl | Other operating income | 222 | 241.022 | 191.207 |
XVII Net income arising from impairment and 223 -
provisions
XVl Net expenses arising from impairment and 224 1.444.299 1.335.461
provisions
XIX | Salaries, benefits and other personal expenses | 225 | 4.186.346 | 3.925.085 |
XX | Depreciation expenses | 226 | 752.356 | 672.099 |
XXI | Operating and other business expenses | 207 | 4.933.005 | 4420906 |
XXl Income from assets and liabilities valuation 228 17.989.493 13.180.925
adjustments
XX Expenses from assets and liabilities valuation 229 9.852.222 13.305.595
adjustments
XXIV TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT 230 4.572.662 3.952.066
XXV TOTAL OPERATING LOSS 231 i




XXV NET GAINS FROM DISCONTINUING 232 -
OPERATIONS
XXVII NET LOSS FROM DISCONTINUING 233 -
OPERATIONS
R R 0 PROFIT 234 4.572.662 3.952.066
XXIX RESULT FOR THE PERIOD - LOSS BEFORE 235 i
TAX
XXX | Profit tax | 236 | 472.448 | 426.027 |
XXXI Profit from created deferred tax assets and 237 32.885 11.578
reduction of deferred tax liabilities
XXXII Loss from created deferred tax assets and 238 10.953 23.937
reduction of deferred tax liabilities
XXXIll | PROFIT | 239 | 4122146 | 3.513.680 |
XXXIV | LOSS | 240 | | - |
| Earnings per share (in RSD, rounded) |4 | |
| Basic earnings per share (in RSD, rounded) | 242 | 469 | 399 |
| Diluted earnings per share (in RSD, rounded) | 243 | 290 | 257 |
Beograd, February 26, 2013
Signed on behalf of Komercijalna banka a.d., Beograd by:
Snezana Pejci¢ Ivica Smoli¢
Head of Accounting President of the Executive Board



1.3. Cash flow Statement for the period 01.01. to 31.12.2012

(Thousands of RSD)

A. | CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

| I. Cash flows from operating activities (from 1 to 4) ‘ 301 | 23.921.322 ‘ 22.880.550 ‘
1. | Interest receipts | 302 | 18.412.248 | 17.508.232 |
2 | Fees and commission receipts ‘ 332 | 5.308.328 ‘ 5.058.650 ‘
3. | Receipts from other operating income | 304 | 198.495 | 305.671 |
4 | Receipts from dividends and profit sharing ‘ 305 | 2.251 ‘ 7.997 ‘
Il. | Cash outflows from operating activities (from 5 to 9) | 306 | 18.947.991 | 16.744.371 |
5, | Interest payments ‘ 307 | 8.985.130 ‘ 7.856.238 ‘
6. | Fees and commission payments | 308 | 775.246 | 625.272 |
7. Payments of gross salaries, benefits and other personal 309 4.115.419 3888118
expenses
8. Payments qf taxes, contributions and other expenses 310 887 648 777 893
charged to income
9. Cash payments for other operating expenses | 311 4.184.548 3.596.850
Mll. Net cash inflow from operating activities b'efore ' 312 4.973.331 6.136.179
increase/decrease in advances and deposits (I minus II)
Iv. Net cash outflow from operating activities before 313 ) i
increase/decrease in advances and deposits (Il minus I)
V. Decrease in loans and increase in deposits taken
(from 10 to 12) 314 27.169.182 7.749.083
10. | Decrease in credits and loans to banks and customers | 315 | . | . |
11. Decrease in fair valut.e.secuntles, fmanglal assets for trading 316 554.116 347 814
and short-term securities held to maturity
12. | Increase in deposits taken from banks and customers ‘ 317 | 26.615.066 ‘ 7.401.269 ‘
Vi Increase in loans and decrease in deposits taken 318 900.488 16.381.995
(from 13 to 15)
13. | Increase in credits and loans to banks and customers ‘ 319 | 900.488 ‘ 16.381.995 ‘
14, Increase in fair value securities, financial assets held for 30 ) i
trading and short-terms securities held to maturity
15. | Decrease in deposits taken from banks and customers ‘ 321 | . ‘ . ‘
VII. Net cash inflow from operating activities before income
tax (Alll minus AIV plus AV minus AVI) 2 S22 ;
VIIL. Net cash outflow from operating activities before income
tax (AIV plus AVI minus Alll minus AV ) & ; CARIES
16. | Income tax paid |34 | e42361 | 322866 |
17. | Dividends paid |35 | ors218 | 289042 |
XIX. Net cash inflow from operating activities
(AVIl minus AVIll minus 16 minus 17) & Slkebil ;
X. Net cash outflow from operating activities
(AVIIl minus AVII plus 16 plus 17) S ) SR
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
I | Cash flows from investing activities (from 1 to 5) ‘ 328 1.201.610 31.222 ‘
8



1. | Inflows from long-term financial assets ‘ 329 | 1.149.802 ‘ 18.253
2. | Inflows from sale of shares and stakes ‘ 330 | ‘ .
3. | Inflows from sale of intangible and fixed assets 33| 51.808 | 12.969
4, | Inflows from sale of investment properties ‘ 332 | . ‘ .
5. | Other inflows from investing activities ‘ 333 | . ‘ .
I | Cash outflows from investing activities ( from 6 to 10 ) ‘ 334 | 16.811.890 ‘ 8.086.052
6. | Outflows from investing in long-term financial assets I 335 | 16.102.276 I 7.312.777
| Outflows for purchase of shares and stakes ‘ 336 | 751 ‘ 1846
| Outflows for purchase of intangible and fixed assets ‘ 337 | 708.863 ‘ 771.429
9 | Outflows from provision of investment properties I 338 | R I .
10. | Other outflows from investing activities ‘ 339 | ‘ .
M. | Net cash inflow from investing activities (I minus Il) | 340 | | -
IV. | Net cash outflow from investing activities (Il minus I) ‘ 341 | 15.610.280 ‘ 8.054.830
V. | CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES l | l
l. | Cash inflows from financing activities (from 1to 6) ‘ 342 | 16.615.425 ‘ 7.695.624
1. | Capital increase inflows | 343 | 11.571.997 | -
2. | Netcash inflows from subordinated liabilities 34| 453870 | 5232045
3 | Net cash inflows from loans taken | 345 | 4.589.558 | 2.463.579
4. | Net cash inflows from securities ‘ 346 | ‘ .
5 | Inflows from sale of own shares | 347 | | .
6 | Other inflows from financing activities | 348 | | .
I | Cash outflows from financing activities ( from 7 to 11 ‘ 349 | _ ‘ .
7. ‘ Outflows arising from buyback arrangements (own shares ‘ 350 ‘ ‘ ]
purchase)
8. | Net cash outflow from subordinated liabilities | 351 | | .
9. | Net cash outflows from loans taken ‘ 352 | ‘ .
10. | Net cash outflows from securities | 353 | | .
1. | Other outflows from financing activities ‘ 354 | ‘ .
1. | Net cash inflow from financing activities (I minus 1) ‘ 355 | 16.615.425 ‘ 7.695.624
IV. | Net cash outflow from financing activities (Il minus I) | 356 | | .
G. | TOTALNET CASH INFLOW | 357 | 68907539 |  38.356.479
D. | TOTALNET CASH OUTFLOW | 358 | 37580948 |  41.824.326
D. | NET CASHINCREASE (G minus D) 359 | 31326501 | -
E. | NET CASH DECREASE (D minus G) | 360 | | 3.467.847
Z. | CASHATBEGINNING OF THE YEAR 361 | 17228970 | 20.724.645
Z. | FXGAINS | 32 | 5682008 | 1257639
l. | FXLOSSES | 363 | 13723387 |  1.285467
J &Ar?"i"nﬁ‘: : ';FUE';DPEE ;"r'fi:liﬁ')o') ‘ 364 ‘ 40.514.180 ‘ 17.228.970
Signed on behalf of Komercijalna banka a.d., Beograd by:
SneZana Pejci¢ Ivica Smoli¢
Head of Accounting President of the Executive Board
9



1.4. Statement of changes in equity for the period 01.01. to 31.12.2012

(Thousands of RSD)

POSITION

Share Capital
Unrealized losses

£

5 £ <
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£ = O = [ =)
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= S S .S

o 2c = © ©

o = ® S &

= S w @ o w
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Balance at January1,2011 | 13.881.010 | 14581543 | 9235440 | 663008 | 2709309 | 15882 | 41.054.428 |

Correction of materially
significant errors and changes
in accounting policies in the
previous year — increase

Correction of materially
significant errors and changes
in accounting policies in the
previous year — decrease

Adjusted opening balance

as of 01.01, previous year, 13881.010 | 14581.543 9.235.440 663.008 2709.309 15.882 41054428
2011
;g;?' ingrease in/the praviols 2.400.000 82.249 3.968.545 49.855 6.400.939
Total decrease in the previous 55,637 3125.961 1797 3.179.801
year

t
253'1'1““ at December 31°. 13881010 | 14581543 11.635.440 689.620 3551893 63.940 44.275.566

Correction of materially
significant errors and changes
in accounting policies in the
current year — increase

Correction of materially
significant errors and changes
in accounting policies in the
current year — decrease

Adjusted opening balance

as of 01.01, current year, 13881.010 | 14581543 11.635.440 689.620 3.551.893 63.940 44275 566
2012

;g;?' increase in the current 3.310.456 8.261.541 3.150.000 188.821 4.604.631 29241 19.486.208
Total decrease in the current 10667 3970712 86.155 3.895.214
year

Balance at December 31t

2012 17191466 | 22.843.084 14.785.440 867.774 4.185.812 7.016 50.866.560

Signed on behalf of Komercijalna banka a.d., Beograd by:

Snezana Pejci¢ Ivica Smoli¢

Head of Accounting President of the Executive Board
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1.5. Auditor’s opinion and notes to financial statements
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Translation of the Independent Auditors’ Report Issued in the Serbian language

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT
Teo the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Komercijalna banka a.d., Beograd

We have audited the accempanying financial statements of Komerciialng barka A0, Beograd (the “Bank"),
which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2012 and the related income statement statement of
changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year than ended, and & summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes

Management's Responsibility for the Finanoa Statements

Management = responsible for the presaration of these financial staterments in accordance with the accounting
regulations of the Republic of Serbia and regulations of the National Bank of Serbia governing financial reporting
of banks, as well as for internal control relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free from
matenal misstatement, whethar dus to fraud or emor

Auditars’ Respansibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on cur audit, We conducted our
audit in sccordance with International Standards on Auditing and the Law on Accounting and Auditing of the
Republic of Serbia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfarm the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

A audit involves performing procedures to cbtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
rigks of material misstatement of the financial statemants, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk
assessments. the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fairr presentation of the
financial statemearts in order to design audit proceduras that are appropniate in the circumstances. but not for the
pumpose of exprassing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal contral An audit alse includes
evaluating the sppropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by managemant. 8s well 25 evaluating the ovarall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinicn

Cioirion

In cur epirion, the financial statements of Komercijaing banka A0, Beograd as of and for the vaar ended
Decembar 31, 2012 have been prepareg, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting regulations
of the Republic of Serbia and regulations of the Naticnal Bank of Serbia governing financial reporting of banks,

Other Matter

The finrancial statements of Komercjalna banka A D, Beograd as of and for the year ended December 31 2011
were audited by ancther auditor whose report dated February 28, 2012 expressed an unqualifisd opinion.

Eelgrade, February 26, 2013 =

s d H :." ‘, ’
Miroslav Tondic
Cearified Auditor

Sergitie reters 10 one or maore of Deloite Touche Tobmelsd Limited,-a UK pavate cormgany imited by puarsnies, and il retanrk oF member
fitms esch of which is a legaty separale ang mdependent antdy, Please sae hpiiwee delbite comirmbbodt for 8 deiailes descriplion of the
lagm sruciung of Dedodle Touche Tolwmstsu Limitod and i85 member Srms

Member of Delodte Touche Tohmalse Lmites



KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

INCOME STATEMENT
Year Ended December 31, 2012
{Thousands of RSD)

Note 2012 2011
Interest incoms ha 20,130,880 18,036 321
Inferest expense i 19,220 564) (8,182 853)
Net interest income 18:810.318 5,853,366
Fee and commission incomes fa 5,334,914 5,051,445
Fee and commission expensa o i(7B0.448) (B28,045)
Met fee and commission income 4 554 468 4,423 3548
Met gains on the sale of securities carriad at fair
walue through profit and loss |: e
Met losses on the sale of securities carmed at fair
valug throwugh profit and loss 7 - (18, 110)
Met gains on the sale of securities available for sale g 538947 1,254
MNet forgign exchange losses G (8,041,281) (27 828)
Divigend and other income from equity investments 10 £.251 v.agy
Othar aperating income 11 241 022 191,207
Met imparment losses and provisions 12 (1,444 253) (1,335 .461)
Staff costs 3 (4,186,348) (3,525 085)
Depreciation and amaortization 14 (THZ. 358 (672 099)
Operating and other expanses 15 (4,833,008 (4,420 808)
Net gainsilosses) on the valuation of assets and liabilities 16,17 8137271 {124, 670)
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 4572662 3852 066
Income taxes 18 (472,448 (420 027)
Income from creation of deferred tax assets and
decrease in deferred tax lizbilities 19 32 BaR 11,578
Losses on decresse in deferred tax assets and creation
of deferred tax liabilites 20 v 10,953) [23.937)
NET PROFIT 4,122 144 3.513.880
Earnings per share {in RS0, rounded) _
Basic eamings per share {(in B30, rounded) 459 399
Diluted earmings per share {in RS0, rounded) 280 267

he accompanying notes on the following pages
form an integral part of these financial staterments.

Thiese financial statements wiere approved by the Executive Board of Komercijalna banka A.D., Beogpad as at

February 26, 2013

Signed on behalf of Komercijaing banka a.d. Beograd by,

Sneiana Pejdic
Head of Accounting

Ivica Smolic
Fresidant of the Executlive Board

Translation of the Auditors’ Report issued in the Serbian language




BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2012
(Thousands of RSD)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalznts

Revocable deposits and loans

Receivables ansing from interast, fee and commission,
trade, fair value adjustments of derivatives and othar
receivables

Loans and deposits io customers

Securities (excluding treasury shares)

Equity investments (interasts)

Other investments

Intangible assets

Froperty, equipment and investmant property

Maon-current assets held for sale and assets of
dizcontinued operations

Defarred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Transaction deposits

Oiher deposits

Borrowings

Interest, fee and commission payakles and
change in the valug of derivatives

Provisions

Taxes payable

Tax and dividend payablas

Dafarred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY

share capital

Reserves retained from earnings

Revaluation resarves

Unrasiized losses on secunties available-for-sale
Retained earnings

Total Liabilities and Equity

OFF-BALANCE-SHEET ITEMS

Managed funds
Commitments

Derivatives

Cither off-balance sheet items

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

Mote 2012 2011
21 40,514 180 17,228,870
22 43053 502 55 260,711
23 1,547 342 1187573
24 177, 106865 155,719,207
25 41 347 718 25637972
2 5917033 5,823 583
27 3.227 .86 2,187.533
28 600,428 555,415
29 7.415.846 7530271
30 78,783 101,040
a1 4 BOE -
32 3372293 4,256,443

424,187,773 275488718

a3 40 336,776 31.456,575
24 195,183,868 174 866,705
a5 537,264 1,603,781
38 188.910 205079
7 2,331,780 2135436
38 21,798 38 737
35 E5.114 172,197
A0 - 17.036
41 25,535 622 20,816,628
264321 213 231,213,152

42 40,034 556 28,462 553
43 14,785 440 11,635 440
44 887 774 BEQ 520
45 (7.018) 53,840)
45 4185812 3,551,893
58 BES 560 44 F75H 566

324 187,773 275,488,718

204 542 280 1583 524,837

47 5,013,721 4332 764
48 42 452 B5A 36,215,842
458 - 261,802
=0 157, 1F5,901 142 714 888

The accompanying notes on the fallowing pages
farm an integral part of these financial statements.
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year Ended December 31, 2012
{Thousands of RSD)

Cash inflows from operating activities
Interest receipts

Fes and commission receipis

Receipts of other oparating income

Receints fram dividends and profit distribution

Cash outflows from operating activities
Interest paid

Fees and commissions paid

Payments to, and on behalf of employees
Taxes, contributions and other duties paid
Paymenis of cther aperating expenses

Net cash generated by operating activities prior to
increases or decreases in advances and deposits

Decrease in securities carmed at fair value through profit and loss.
trading investments and short-term securties held-to-maturity
Increase in deposits due to banks and customers

Increase in loans and advances 10 banks and customers

Income taxes paid

Cividends paid

Met cash generated by/{used in) operating activities

MNat outflows fram long-term investments in securities

Net outflows from sales of equity investments

Mat cutflows from zales of intangible assels, property and equipment
Met cash used in investing activities

Inflows arising from capital iIncrease

Met caszh inflows from subordinated debt

Met cash inflows from borrowings

Met cash generated by financing activities

Met increasel{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Foreign exchange losses on translation of cash

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
_ 23@21322 22,880,550
18,412,248 17,508 232
5,308 328 5,068,650
158,485 3058671
2,251 7.agy
{18,547 581 {16.744,371)
(8,885,130 (7 858 238
(TT5.248) (B26.272)
{4,115,419) (2,888,118)
(887 648) (777,853)
(4,184,548) {3.596,850)
4.973,331 5,136.179
554 116 347 514
26,615,086 7,401 269
[A00,488) (16,381.985)
[542,361] (327 BHa)
(278,218) (289.042)
30,321 448 (3, 108.641)
{14 852 474) (7284 524)
(751) (1 B4E)
(B57.045) {758,460
(15.610,.280) (8.054,830)
11,574,897 :
453 870 5232045
4,539,658 2,453,579
16,615,425 7895 624
31,326,581 134678470
17,228,970 20 724 545
(2,041,381 (27 B28)
40,514,180 17238 970

The accompanying notes on the following pages
farm an integral part of these financial statements.

Transiation of the Auditors' Report issued in the Servan language
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
Al amounts expressed in thousands of RS0, unless othenyise sfatad,

2.1.

2.2,

BANK'S ESTABLISHMENT AND ACTIVITY

Kemercijalna banka ad., Beograd (hereinafier the "Bank’™), was established as at December 1, 1670
and transformed into 2 shargholding company as of May 61882

Al December 31, 2012, the Bank's most significant holders controlling shares are the fallowing.

1, republic of Sertia and
2, EBRD, London

A more detailed overview of the Bank's share capital structure 1s provided in Naote 41

The Bank has three subsidiaries with tha following equity interests:

- 100% - Komercijalna banka a.d. Budva, Montenagro
100% - KomBank INVEST a.d., Serbia
- 59.99% - Komercijalna banka a.d. Banja Luka, Bosnia and Herzegovina

The accompanying financisl statements and notes to the financial statements represent the financial
information of the Bank as a separale parent legal entity.

The Bank's business activities include credit activities, deposit and guarantee actimbies and payment
transfer operations in the country and abroad in accordance with the Law on Banks. The Bank is
obligated to aperate based upon principles of lgudity, sohvency and profitabilivy.

As of December 31, 2012, the Bank was comprised of the Cantral Office in Belgrade at the address of
Mo 14, Svetog Save St 24 branches and 228 sub-branches. As of December 31, 2012, the Bank had
2,989 employeas (December 31, 2011: 3,022 employees) The Bank's lax identification number is
100001931,

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

Financial Statements

Thess financial statements include only raceivables, labilibes, profit from oparations changes in equity
and cash fliows of the Bank excluding its subsidiaries. Pursuant 1o the regulations prevailing in the
Republic of Serbia, the Bank has prepared consolidated financial statemants which include the financial
statements of the following subsidiaries:

«  Komercialng banka a.d. Budva, Montenegro, anfirely owned by the Bank:

e Investment Fund Managing Company KomBank INVEST a.d. Beograd, entirely cwned by the Bank:
and

= Komercijalna banka a.d. Banja Luka, Bosnia and Herzegovina, whers the Bank has 89.85% equity
nterest.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

The Bank maintaine accounting records and prepares financial statements in compliance with the
effective law on Accounting and Auditing of the Republic of Serbia (Official Gazette of the Republic of
serbia nos 45 /20045, 111/2009 and S8/2011), Law on Banks (Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia
nos 1072005 and. 91/2010) and other relevant bylaws of the Mational Bank of Serbia and othar
effective regulations of the Republic of Serbia,

Pursuant to the Law on Accounting and Auditing, legal entities and entrepreneurs incorporated in Sarbia
are required o maintain their beoks of accaunt. to recognize and valug assels and liabilties, income and
expenses, and fo present, submit and disclose financial statements in confarmity with the prevaiing
tegislation and professional rules which include: the Framewark for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (the “Framework”), International Accounting Standards (143} and Intemational
Financial Reporing Standards {IFRS), as well as the related interpretations representing an integral part
of these standards which were in effect as at December 31, 2002,

Translation of the Auditors” Report issued in the Serbian language




KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amownts expressed in thousands of RS0, unless othernwise stated

2.2

2.3

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING CONVENTION (Continued)

Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (Continued)

The amendments 1o IAS, as well as the newly-issued IFRS and the related interpratations issued by the
Intermational Accounting Standards Board ("IASE") and the Icternational Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committes {(“IFRIC"). in the penod between December 31, 2002 and January 1. 2008,
ware officially adopted pursuant to 2 Decision enacted by the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of
Serbia (*Ministry™) and published in the Official Gazetts of the Republic of Serbia number 77 of October
25, 2010,

IASIFRE and IFRIC in effect for annual penods beginning on or after January 1, 2009 had besn
tanslated. In addition, the accompanying financial statements are presented in the format prescribed
under the *Guidelnes on the Prascribed Form and Content of the Financial Statemeants of Banks and
Other Financizl Institutions” (Official Gazette of the Republc of Serbia nos 74/2008 32009 and
SI2010) Such statements represent the complete set of financial statemants as defined under the law.
which differ fram those defined under the provisions of 1AS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements”
and differ In soma respects, from the presentation of certain amounts &8s required under the
aforementionad standard  Standards and interpretations in issue but not yet officially translated and
adopted and standards and intarpretations in issue but not vet in effect are disclosed in Notes 2.3 and
24

The financial statements were preparsd at historical cost principle excapt for the folicwing itermns:

Financial instruments carried at fair value througn orofit and loss. which ars measured at fair value
financial instruments available for sale. which are measured at fair value:

dernvatives, which are measured at fair value; and

building properties.

The financial statements wers preparsd on a going concem assumphon entailing the Bank's
cantinuation of cparations in the forasseable future:

Tha Bank's financial statements are stated in thousands of dinars (RSDY. The dinar is the official
reporting currency in the Republic of Serbia,

Standards and Interpretations in Issue, but not yet Translated and Adopted

As of the financial stalements issuance date. the following standards, amendments were issued by tha
International Accounting Standards Board and Interpretations issued by the International Financial
Repoaring Interpretations Committes but were not officially adopted and translated in the Republic of
Serbia:

= Amandments to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments. Disclosures’ — Amendments improving fair value
and liguidity risk’ disclosures (revised in March 2008, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after Januany 1, 2003);

L Amendments to IFRS 1 ‘First-Time Adoption of IFRS" — Additional Exemptions for First-Time
Adoptars. The amendments relate fo assets in ol and gas industry and determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease (revised in July 2009, effective for annual penods beginning on or
after January 1, 2070)

. amendments to vanous standards and interpretations resulting from the  Annual Quality
Improvement Project of IFRS published on April 16, 2002 (IFRS 5, IFRS B, 1A% 1, 1AS 7, 185 17,
IAS 36, I1AS 35, IFRIC 18] primanly with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording,
iamendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010, while the
ameandment to IFRIC is to become effective as of July 1, 2009

+  Amezndments fo 1AS 38 'Intanaible Assets” (revised in July 2009, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 12009,

Translation of the Auditors’ Report issued in the Serbian language




KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEQGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Decembar 31, 2012
All amounts expressed i thousands of R5D, unless othenwise slated,

2.3

2.4,

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING CONVENTION {Continued)

Standards and Interpretations in Issue, but not yet Translated and Adopted (Continued)

Amandments to IFRES 2 "Share-Based Payment”: Amendments resuiting from the Annual Guality
Improvement Project of IFRS {revised in April 2008, effective for annual pericds beginning on of
gfter July 1, 2008} and amendmenis relating to group cash-setled share-based payment
transactions (revised in June 2003, effective for annual penods beginning on or after January 1,
2010},

Armendments IFRIC 8 “Reassessment of Embedded Dernvatives™ effective for annual periods
beginning on or afier July 1, 2008 and |AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Maasuremeant — Embedded Derivatives {effective forannual periods teginning on or after Juneg 30,
2009,

IFRIC 18 "“Transfers of Assets from Customers’ [affective for annual pericds beginning on or after
dudy 1, 2008);

"Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2010”7 being an amendments to "Framewaork for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements” (effective for transtfer of assels from
customers received on or after September 2010};

Smendments o IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” —
Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures for Firsttime Adopters (effective for
annual pericds beginning on or after July 1, 2010%;

Amendments to IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures” — Simplifying the disclosure requirements far
governmentrelated entities and clanfying the definition of a related party (effective for annual
paricds beginning on or after January 1, 2011);

Amendments to IAS 32 "Financial Instruments: Presentation” — Accounting for Rights lssues
leffective for annual percds beginning on or after February 1, 2010y

Amencrments to various standards and interpretations ‘Improvements 1o IFRSs” resulting from the
Annual quality improvement project of IFRS published on May 8, 2010 (IFRS 1, IFRS 3, IFRS 7,
185 1 IAS 27 IAS 24, IFRIC 13) primarily with & visw to removing inconsistencies and clanfying
wording, (most amendments are to be applied for annual pericds Baginning on or after January 1,
2011

Amandmants 0 [FRIC 14 “IAS 18 « The Limit on a Defined Bensfit Asset Minimum Funding
Requiremants and Their Interaction” - Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Reguiremant {effactive
far annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 20113

IFRIC 18 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments” (effective for annual periods
beginning on-or after July 1, 2010}

Amendmants to (FRS 1 'First-Time Adoption of IFRS® — Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for Firsttime Adeopters (effective for annual periods baginning on or after Juby 1,
20117

Amendments te IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Transfers of Financial Assets
ieffective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 20115

Amendments to |AS 12 “Income Taxes' — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (effective
for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 20123

Standards and Interpretations in Issue not yet in Effect

At the date of issuance of these financial statements the following standards, rewvisicns ang
intzroretations ware inissue bul not yet effective

IFRS & “Financial Instruments” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1.
2018);

Transiation of the Auditors” Report issued in the Serbian language



KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
Al amounts expressed o thousands of RS0, unfess ofhenwse sfaled,

2.4,

2.5,

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING CONVENTION (Continued)

Standards and Interpretations in Issue not yet in Effect (Continued)

Amendgments to IFRS 8 *Financial Instruments” and IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments. Disclosures” —
Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures (effective for annual periods beginning
on ar after January 1, 201583,

IFRS 10 "Consolidated Finarncial Statements” (effective for annual periods baginning on or after
January 1, 2013}

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2013];

IFRS 12 “Disclosuras of Involvemeant with Other Entities” {effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 "Consclidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosures of Involverment with Other Enfities: Transition Guidance [affective
for annual perods beginning on or after January 1, 20135

IAS 27 (revised in 2011) "Separate Financial Statements” {effective for annual periods beginning
cn or after January 1, 2013);

A5 28 (revised in 2011) "Imvestiments in Asscciates and Joint Ventures" {effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013},

IFRS 13 “Fair Vaiue Measurement” [effective for annual periods beginning on or after January T,
20151

Amandments to IAS 19 ‘Emploves Banefits” - Improvements to the Accounting for Post
Employment Benafits (effective for annual periods beginning on or.afier January 1, 2013}

Amendments to IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” —
Government Loans with 2 Below-Market Rate of Interest (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2013}

Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments. Disclosures” — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liagilities {effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013);

Amendmeants to 1AS 1 ‘Presantation of Financial Statements” — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprahensive Income {effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012

Amendments to |AS 32 "Financial Instrumeants. Prasantation” — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (affective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014)

Annual imorovements 2008 - 2011 cycle issuad in May 2017 (effective for annual periods
baginning on or after January 1, 20133,

IFRIC 20 *Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine” (effectve for annua
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013

Amendmeants to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and |AS 27 - Exemption from Consolidation of Subsidiaries
under IFRS 10 'Consclidated Financial Statements' {effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2014%

Comparative Information

Comparative information includes the Bank's financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2011, which were audited by ancther auditar,

[ie]

Translation of the Auditors' Report (ssued in the Serbian language




KOMERCIJALMNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amounts expressed in thousands of RSD, unless othenwise stated,

3.2

3.3.

3.4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Interest and Commission Income and Expenses

Interest incoma and expenses, including penalty interest and other income and other expenses ansing
from interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities, are recognized in the income statement on
an accrual basis and pursuant to the contractual terms agreed upon by and betwsen the Bank and its
clients.

Income from lean ongination fees and commissions is deferred and recognized as interest income within
the income statement by applying the effective interest mathod, i 2 as the adjustment of effective return
o [oans izsued,

Inferest incoma also includes income from hedging financial mstruments, mostly based on indexing
repayment annuities 1o the RSOEUR exchange rate or another currency exchange rale, or consumer
price index and is calculated at each month-end over the rapayment periad and as at the repayment
annuity maturity date

Fee and Commission Income and Expenses
Fee and commission incoms and expenses are recognized as per ‘matching princple.”

Fee and commission income and expenses from banking services are racognized when such services
are invoiced and rendered within the income statement. Fees and commission charged for guarantees,
sureties and letters of credil issusd are deferred and recognized as income proporionately aver thar
maturity parnods.

Income and Expenses from Securities

All reglized gains and losses arising from movements in the market value are carried through profit and
fs23-8

Gains and lesses ansing from changes in amartized cost of secunties hield ta maturty are recognized as
income and expanses.

Unrealized gains and losses incurred upon the change in the market value of investments available for
sale are recognized under revaluation reserves within equity. When such assets ars soid or parmanantly
impaired, respective porions of the previously farmed revaluation reserves are stated 1 the income
statement as gains or losses on the sale of securities. i.e. as impairmant gains or [osses

Ganslosses based on the contractuzlly agreed curency clause and changes in exchange rates of
securities available for sale as well as interest income from securities available for sale ae included in
the income statements,

Dividend income from investments in shares issued by other lagal entities is included in divided income
upon dividend collection,

Impairment allowances for estimated risk effects on all types of securities are recognized in the Bank's
income statemeant

Foreign Exchange Translation

Transactions deneminated in foreign currencies are translated into dinars at official middle exchange
rates as determined in the interbank currency market and effective at the date of 2ach transaction

Assets and liabiltes dencminated in foreign currancies are franslated into dinars by appiying the official
midale exchange rates as determined in the interbank currency market and prevaling at the balance
sheet date.

Met foreign exchange pesitive or nagative effects arising upon the transiation of transactions. and the
assets and liabilities cencminated in foreign currencias are cradited or charged Lo the income statemant
as foreign exchange gains or losses,

Commitments and contingent liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into dinars by
applying the official middle exchange rates as determined in the interbank currency markst and
prevailing at the balance shaet date,

Translation of the Auditors’ Report issued in the Serbian language




KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

WNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
Al amounts expressed ;m thousands of RS0, unless othenwvise slated.

3.5,
351

3.5.2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, Investment Property, Equipment and Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets

The Bank's intangible assets are recognized at cost or cost price. Subsequent to the inital recognition,
intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Caleulation of amortization of intangible assets commences in the month following the ona in which a
relevant intangible assets was placed into use or became available for use.

Armortization of intangible assets is charged to the base comprised of cost net of residual value. If the
residual valug of an asset is immaterial, it i not taken into consderation, Le it does not reduce the
amortization base

Intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis using the annual amortization rates ranging fram
from 14 28% to 33.34%.

Property and Equipment
Recognition and Measurameant

Fixed assets other than property are maasured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
ineses. As from January 2005, the bark had adopted revaluation method for properties in its ownership,
Based on the market value appraisal adopted by the Bank's Board of Directors, revaluation was
performed and value of property was increased in 2005

ltems of fixed assets ara initially measurad at cost or purchase price

Cost includes all acquistion-related sxpenses. Purchased software necessary for the functioning of
gquipment is capitalized as part of such aguipment.

Ininstances that pars of a single asset have differant useful life durations, they are carried as separate
iterns (major components) of equipment,

Foliowing mitial recegnition, the Bank applies cost model for subsequent measurement of aguipment,
Following initial recognition, the Bank apolies revaluation model for subssauent measurement of
property.

Subseguent Expenditing

Cost of spare part replacement is recognized at carrying value if it is probable that the future econcmic
bensfits associatad with the respective spare part will flow to the Bank and if the spare pait purchase
price ¢an be measured rélisbly. Spars parts and servicing eguipment are recorded within the incoma
statement when used up.

Deorecation

Depreciation s calculated on & straight-line basis to the cost or revalued amount of property and
aguioment by applying the following annual rates in order to write the cost or revalued amount less
rasidusl value of those assets down i equal annual amounts over their useful lives.

11
Translation of the Auditors” Report issued in the Serbian language




KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amounts exprassed it thousands of R3D, unless othenwise stated

3.5.

352

3.5.3.

3.6,

3.6.1.

3.6.2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, Investment Property, Equipment and Intangible Assets (Continued)
Property and Equipment

Depreciahion (Continuad)

Annual depreciation rates applied are as follows:

Buildings 25%
Computer equipmeant 25%
Furmiture and meotor vehicles 10%-16.5%
Leasehold improvements and ather 4. 25%-85 2%

Investment Property

The Bank's investment property is proparty held to eam rental income andior for caprtal appreciation ar
bath,

Anatern of investment property i iribially measurad at cost or purchase price. Transaction costs are not
included in the initlal measurement. The Bank spplies cost method for subsequent measurement of
investrment property

Depreciation of invesiment property is provided on a straight-line basis to the cost of investment
property by applying the annual depreciation rate of 2.5%

Inventories
Inventories
Inventories are siated at the lowsr of cost and net realizable value

The Bank includes in inventones assats acquirad in liew of or to secure coliection of matured receivablas
arising from loans.

Nen-Current Assets Held for Sale

Mon-current assels hald for sale are assets whose carrying amounts can pnimarily be recovared through
sales and not through further utilization.

A non-clrrent asset is classified as non-current asset held for sale if the following criteria are mat;

= An asset (or a group of assets) s available for immediate sale in the condition as is,

e Thereis an adopted plan for sales of non-currant assets and activities have already commenced to
achigve the ssles plan;

»  There iz an active market for such assets ana the relevant assat s actively present on the market

»  The likelihocod of prospactive sales is high, 1e it is expected that the sales will be realizad within &
year from the date of classification of the relevant item as a non-currant 2sset held far sale.

Mon-current assets held for sale are initially measured at the lower of the net book value (camying
amourt) and the markat value (fair value) net of costs fo sell. From the initial classifcation of such
assets as non-current assets held for sale, the Bank ceases o depreciate those assets.

In case of changes to the sales pian, a non-current asset ceases o be classified as a non-current asset
held for sale and is measurad at the lower of the following two amounts;

*  Carrying amaount of the relevant asset prior toits classification as 8 non-current asset held for sale
allowing for the acoumulated depreciation ana impaimment that would be recognized had the
relevant assel not been classified as a non-current asset held for sale; and

¢ Recoverable amount as at the date of subsequent decision not to sell the relevant assat,
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December 31, 2012
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments
Classification

The Bank classifies its financial assets into the following categones: financial assets carned at fair valus
through profit and loss. loans and receivables. financial assets availzble for sale and financial assets
hetd to maturity. Classification depands on the intended purpose for which the financial assets weare
acquired. The Bank's managemant classifies financial investments upan initial recognition,

Recogrition

Al regular way purchases or sales of financial assats are recognized and derecognized on a trade date
basis.

Measurament

Financial instrumants are initially measured at fair value, which includes transaction costs in all financial
azzets or labilites except for those carried at fair value through profit and logs, Financial assets carmed
at far valus through profit and loss are initially recognized at fair valug whareas the fransaction costs
are charged 1o the operating expanses within the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial and assets carried &t far value through profit and loss are subsegquently
stated at fair value. Loans and receivables as well as financial assats held to maturty are measured at
amaortized cost by applying the effective interest method

Subsequent to initizl recognition, financial labilities are stated at amorized cost using the effective
intarest mathod, except financial liabilities carried at fair value through orofit and loss,

Derecognition

Financial assets cease to be recognized whan the rights of use of such instruments have been realized,
expired, abandoned, andior ceded, Any right to caded financial assets, created or retained by the Bank
iz recognized as a separate financial assst or hability:

Financial liapilities cease to be recognized when the Bank fulfills the obligations, or when the contractusl
repayment obligation has either been cancelled, ceded ar has expired.

Amortized Cost Measurameant

Amortized cost of 5 financial asset or a hability is the ameunt at which an asset or 2 hability 15 imitally
measured decreased by principal repaymeants made and increased or decreased by accumulated
amartization by applying the effective interest method on the difference between thea initial value and the
nominal value at the instrument’'s maturity date, less any impairment,

Fair Value Measuremean!

Fair value of financial instruments is an amaount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability setles
betwaen informed and willing parties in an-arm's langth transaction.

Fair value 12 determmined oy applying the market information available at the reporting date and ather
valuation models used by the Bank.

Fair valies of cerain financial instruments stated at nominal values approximate their respective
carrying walugs. Such instruments include cash and receivables and habilites without contractually
defined maturities or fixed interast rates. Other receivables and liabilities are reduced to the net present
value b discounting the expectad future cash flows by using currant interest rates. In the opinion of the
managemant, due to the nature of the Bank's cperations and its generally adopted policies, there are no
significant differences between the carrying value and fair value of the financial assets and liabilities

Fair value of irrevocable loans and off-balance sheet ftams is equal o their carmying amounts.
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a7

3.8

3.9,
3.9.1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)
Impairment

Az at the balance sheet date the Bank reviews financial assets in crder o determing whether there is
indication of impaiment., If thera is objective evidence of impaiment. the recoverable amount of the
investment is determined For the purpose of adecuate and efficient cradit risk management, the Bank
has adopted internal bylaws prescribing spacial policies and procedures for identifying and managing
bad assets

The Bank's management assesses recoverability of recevables, e aliowance for impaiment of
nvestments based on individual assessmeant of risk-weighted receivables Risk-weghted receivables
are zll past-dues recevables The Bank assesses the collectinle amount of receivables and investments
taking into consideration regularity in repayment. financial situation of the debtors and quality of
collaterals securitizing the repayment as well 23 the contractually defined cash flows and histarical cradit
losses.

The Bank charges allowance for the assessed impairment 1o the expenses of the penod in which the
impairmant oceurred. If in & subsequent pericd. the management determines that conditions have
changed and the impairmant no longer exists or decreases, the previously formed allowance for
impairmant is reversed 0 income in profit and loss. Reversal of impairment allowance cannot result in
the carrying amount of the relevant asset in excess of what the campng amaunt of the asset would have
been had the impairment not been recognized,

Loans

Loans criginated by the Bank are stated within the balance sheat at the amount of principal outstanding
less aliowance for impairment, which is based on the asssssment of specifically-identified exposures
and losses that are inherent in the Bank's loan portfolio. The Bank's management apolies the internally
adoptad methadalogy in the evaluation thereaf based on the fully adopted and implemented 1AS 28 as
disclosed in Note 4.

Loans thal are disbursed in dinars and indax-linked to the dinar-EUR exchange rates. other currency
exchange rates or to the consumer price index are revalusd in accordance with the specific individual
ioan agreements in question. The difference between the nominal value of the principal outstanding and
the revaiued amaunt is stated within receivables from loans and advances to customers. The effects of
such revalugtion arg included under gains and iosses on the valugtion of assets and liabilities

Financial Assets
Financial Assets Carried At Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Financial assets carmied at fair value through profit and loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified into this category If acquired primarily for sale in the near term: Derivatives
are aleo classified as assets held for trading except for those derivatives designated as risk hedging
instruments against risks. Assets within this category are ciassified as curent assets. Financial assats
carried al fair value through profit and loss include old foreign curency savings bonds issued by the
Repubiic of Serbia and bank and corperata shares acquired for trading.
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3.9.

B

3.9.5.

J.10.

311,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial Assets
Financial Assets Held to Maturity

Heid-to-maturity investments are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity that the Bank has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. This category of
securities includes commersial papers issued by legal antities,

If the Bank decides to sell a substantial portion of the financial assets held o matunty. the entire
category is reclassified to assets available for sale. Financial assetz held to rraturity are classified as
nan-current assets unless their maturities are due in less than 12 maonths afer the balance sheet date
in which case such assets are classifiad as current assets.

Financial assets held to maturity ara initially recognized at cost. As at the balance sheet date, such
instruments are stated at amortized cost, i&. the present value of the future cash flows determined by
applying the effactive interest rate inherent in the instrument.

Equity Investments and Other Financial Assets Available for Sale

Financial asssts available for sale are non-derivative financial assats that are designated as available
for zale or not classiied as loans and receivables. financial assets held to maturity and financial assets
carried at fair value through profit and loss, Available-for-sale financial assets represent financial
instrurments intended to be held over an indefinite time pernod which may be sold for liquidity purposes.
dug fo the movements in interast rates, exchange rates or prices of capital. Sacurities available-for-sale
with fixed maturities for which an active market and guoted prices do not exist are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Financial assefs available for sale comprise
sommercial notes and bonds issued by the Republic of Serbia, shares of other banks and shares of and
squity investments in other legal entities.

Available-for-sale assets are initially measured cost and stated at market value if known as the balance
sheet date. Unrealized gains and losses incurred upon the change in the market valus are stated as
reserves within egquity until this financial ssset is sold. collected ar disposad of when revaluation resenves
ars lransfered to income or expenses.

In instances of decreass in value of financial assets available for saje due 0 objective evidence of
impairment {long-term and continuous decrease in fair valus ovar a period longer than 12 months, or
decreases in value of mare than 30% of the assets’ costl. accumulated iosses recognized within equity is
derecognized from equity and recognized as impaiment loss within expenses although such financial
assets do nol cease to be recognized (A5 3550, 1AS 30 67 and 145 39 65,

For equity investments the Bank has intention to hold such sssets ovar an indefinite time. Equity
investments may be scld for liguidity purposes or dus to the movements in market prices. Equity
investments for which thers is no active market are measured at cost

Cash and cash Equivalents

For the purpose of cash fiow staternent, cash and cash eUivalents comprse cash on hand, balances
on the accounts held with other banks and chegues in collectian

Managed Funds

The Bank manages funds on bizhalf of, and for the account of third partizs, and charges fees for these
sarvices. These items are not included in the Bank's balanes sheet but presented within off-balance
sheet tems
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312,

3121,

3122

3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxes and Contributions
Income Taxes

Income tax represents an amount arrved at by applying the legally prescribed tax rate to the amount of
profit. before taxation stated in accordance with IASAFRS as adiusted for effects of permanent
differences that reduce the prescribed tax rate to the effective tax rate

Current income tax is payable at the legally prescribed rate of 10% on the tax base determined within
the tax balance and reported in the annual corporate income tax return. The taxable base stated in the
income tax retum includes the profit shown in the statutory statement of income, as adjusted for
differances that are spacifically defined under statutory tax rules of the republic of Serbia. less any
prescrioed tax credits. The income tax rate of 15% will ba applied after Janaary 1. 2013

The tax reguiations in the Republic of Serbia do not envisage that any tax losses of the current penod
be used to recover laxes paid within a specific carryback paricd. However, current period tax losses
stated in tax return may be used to reduce or eliminate faxes to be paid in future parods but only for
duration of no longer than five ensuing years, Tax losses incurred priof to January 1. 2010 are available
for carryforward for duration of ten ensuing years,

Indirect Taxes and Contributions

Indirect taxes and contributions include property taxes, value added tax, taxes and contributions o
salares charged to employer and wvanous other taxes and contributions paid pursuant to effective
republic and local tax regulations. These taxes and contributions are included within operating
EXpENses,

Deposits

Deposits ara stated at the amounts of placed funds which may be increased by the interest accrued,
depending on the contractual terms agreed betwesn the depositers and the Bark. The Bank agress on
interest rates depending on the amount of funds deposited

Foreign currency deposils are stated in RSD at the official middle exchange rates prevailing as al the
kalance sheet date.

Deposits are presented as transaction and other deposits within the Bank's balance sheet
Equity

The Bank's eauity is cormprised of the founding captal, subsequently issued shares, reserves retained
from eamings, revaluation resenves, retained sarmings/accumulated losses and the profit for the year
less unrealized losses on the securities available for sale.

The Bank's core capital was formad from the monetary contributions of the Bank's founders. A founder
cannct withdraw asses contributed to the Bank's core capital

Employee Benefits

In accordance with reguiatory requiremants in the Republic of Serbia. the Bark is cobiigated to pay
contributions to tax authonties and to various state social security funds thal guarantee social secunty
inzsurance benefits to employess. These obligations invoive the payment of taxes and contnbutions on
nehaf of the employse, by the employer, in an amount computed by applying the specific, legally-
prescribed rates. The Bank is also legally obligated to withhold contributicns from grose salaries to
smplayees, and on behalf of its employees, to transfer the withheld portions directly to the applicabie
government funds. Thesa taxes and contributions payable on behalf of the employee and employers are
charged to expenses in tha period in which thay arse
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316,

3.16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Employee Benefits {Continued)

Since December 2012, the Bank has agreed on voluntary health insurance for all members of tha
Bank's Executive Board, Pursuant to the effactive requiations of the Republic of Serbia, such benefits
are treated as salanes

In 2012, the Bank made provisions for long-term liabilties for employee retirement benefits in
accordance with 1AS 19, The Bank hired 2 certified actuary to perform evaluation and caloulation of
provisions for the aforesaid purpose

The Bank does not have definad banefit plans or share-based remuneration options and there were no
identified lisbilties thereof as of December 31, 2012

Segment Information

The Bank monitors and discloses information on its operatity segments — inss of business (Note 55,
The majer portion of the Bank's business operations iz conducted in the territory of the Republic of
Serbia and, therefore, the infermation an geographical segments is not disclosed. Subsidiznes are not
material for the Bank's stand-slone financial statements. Business cperatiocns of subsidiares are
presented inthe consolidated financial statements,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Key Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The management makes estimales and assumptions that influence the amounts of assets and liabiities
of the forthcoming financial year The estimated values often differ fram the actugily achievad results,
What foliows are the key assumptions in respect of the future evants and other sources of astimatons,
uncertainties as of the halance shest date which represent risk from material adjustments to the
ameunts of balance sheet items in the following fiscal year,

Impairment Alowance

The Bank raviews receivables and other investments in order to determing impairment allowarncs and
provisions on g menihly basis. In determining whether the impairmen: losses an receivables and
investments should be recogrized in the income siatement the Bank assesses whelher thera is
infarmationfavidence indicative of the existence of a measurable decrease n the estmated fulure cash
flows on a portfolio level before such fosses can be identified at an indnidual level Information
Indicating impairment losses includs: irmeguiarity and default in liabi ity settlement, local market and
econamic conditions which cause delays in payment eto. Maragement's estimates of impairment af
recelvables and other mvestments using the sstimated future cash flows are based ar actual histarical
losses incurred on financial assets with similar risk exposure and similar impairment causes. The
methodolegy and assumptions underlying the process of defining the amounts and pericds of cash
infiows from investments ars reviewed on an cngoing basis in order to minmizs the differance betwaan
the estimated and actual losses,

Impairment assessment is performed on an individual level for each materially significant loan and on a
portfelic leve! for matenially less significant loans. The amount of impairment is individuslly assessad as
the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the expectad future cash flows
determined by discounting the relevant loan at the effective intarest rata theraof,

Impairment of matenally less sigrificant loans |s assessed an g partfoiio basis for sach cradit rating
graup separstely, given their similar characteristics in respect of credit rigk in the parcentags of
migraticn of the relevant cradit rating group into the VW credit rating group as adjusted for the percentage
of collected leans previously classified into \V cradit rating group.
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES {Continued)
Key Accounting Estimates and Assumptions (Continued)
Impairment Alfowance (Confinued)

If individual impairment assessment of a matenally significant loan reveals no abiective evidence of loan
impairment, the impairment thereof is calculated as the percentage of impairment of the whole credit
rating group the loan belongs to,

The amounts of inflows expected from a loan are assessed based on evidence of the debtor's plannad
earnings: In case thess are determined as insufficient, the Bank assesses the cash flow from collateral
foreclosure, The number of days in defaull against cedain receivables from debtors s determinsd by
considering all relevant evidence about the timeline of debtors’ planned samings inflow as well as
nistorical default of those debtors.

Falr Value

The fair value of financial instruments for which an active market does nof exist is determined by
applying different valuation metheds and techmigues. For financial instruments with less trading volume,
whose market prices are therefore less transparent, determination of fair valug is morg subjectve and
reguires a higher degree of assessment uilization depending on the instrument liquidity, risk
conceniration, market uncerainties, assumplicns about the prices and other factors affecting the
particular financaal instrument.

Frowsions for Liigations

The Bank assesses the probabilty of adverse outcome of the cngeing litigations as well as the amounts
probable or reasonabie loss estimates. Reasonable estimates encompass managament's judgment
after considering information including notifications. sattlement. legal department estimates, available
facts. potentizlly responsible party identification and their possible contribution to the resolution of suits
as well as historical experience. Provision for litigation s formedireceognized when the Bank has a
present obligation it will be required to settle and when a reliable estimate can be made of the amaount of
the obligation through thorough analysis. The required ameunt of provision can change in the future dua
te new events or new information obtained

Matters that either represant commitments or fail to meet the cntena for provisioning are disclosed
except in the instance that thera is little probability that economic benefits will fiow out of the Bank.
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5. INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

a) Interest Income
Year Ended December 31,

N 2012 2011
Interest income in RSD
From lpans
- financial and insurance sector 386,740 749 095
- carporate customers 8,647,012 8,448 934
- entepreneurs 222 550 205,600
- public sector 487 995 258,982
= refail customers 4 GG 282 4 160,892
- other customers 1,674 1,032
From deposits
- financial and insurance sector 476,332 261,588
From securities
- finansial and insurance sector 116,704 -
- corporate clients 12214 15,396
- public sector 2,000,824 1.841,732
From oifer invastments
- corporate clients 108,804 138,324
- gntrepraneurs 29 27
- retall customers 223884 729820
18,080 545 16,811,423
Interest income in foreign currencies
From foreign curmency loans
- cofporate customers Tas 77 536,226
- entreprensurs 1.213 B53
- forgign entities 425 658 358082
From foreign currancy deposits — foreign entities 13,715 TE170
From foreign currency securities — public sector 851,324 214,161
From athar investments in foreign currencios
- finanzial and insurance sectar 11,528 26,798
- fareign entities . BOg 2,722
2,080,235 1,224 558
20.130,850 18,036,321

Within RS0 interest income, deferrad interest income on loans totaled BSOD 505 085 thousand, whereas
deferred interest income in foreign currencies smounted to RSD 21 838 thousand Loan crigination fes
income represents 2.51% of the total recognized interest income.

Fees that are collected in advance comprising deferrad income totaling RSO 824 282 thousand are
presented within other liabilities within the Bank's balance shest (Mote 41)

The estimated effect of interest that was not acorued and stated within the Bank's income statement for
the year 2012 amounted to RED 133,880 thousand and is associated with suspended interast on loans
and investments subject to litkhation:
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5. INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE (Continued)

b} Interest Expenses

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Interest expenses in RSD
From loans
- financial and insurance sector 59,643 10,156
From deposits
- financizl and insurance sector B5% 846 421375
- public enterprises 173,423 264 114
- corporate customers 497 862 B05 948
- entreprenaurs 12,885 5633
- public sector 871631 B2B,015
- retall customers 128,784 114,751
- foreign entibes 1.531 274
- pther customers . 1,887
Bazed on other iabiites
- corporate customers 119 28
- retail customers 2280 27,064
2,318,024 2271243
Interest expenses in foreign currencies
From foans
- financizl and insurance sector 61,850 58,003
- public sactor a 51
foreign entities 654 288 228 852
From deposifs
- finaricial @and.insurance sector &Y.035 57,428
- public enterprises 82,204 98,2682
- corporate customers 573,140 519 206
- public sector 494 4774
- retail customers 5.4688,355 4,886 561
- forgign entities 487G 5.3&87
- pther customers - 41,874
Based on ofher liabililies
- financial and insurance sector 176 210
- fareign entities 1 42
8,502 6540 5911.710
9220 564 8,182 953
2d
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6. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE

a) Fee and Commission Income
Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Fees and commissions in RSD
- financial and insurance sectar 186,717 228,173
= public enterprises 41,840 A8.233
- corporate customers 2067 445 1,959 159
- entreprensurs bE1 648 205073
- public sector 1,254 16812
- retail customears 2,175,768 2,148.471
- forsign antitias 124,984 63,489
- registered agricultural producers - 11
- other customers == s = 548
5170657 4947 767
Fees and commissions in foreign currencies
- financigl and insurance sector 1,477 2749
- corporate custormers 12,268 -
- retall customears 5 757 47140
- fareign entities 99,058 55,010
- other customers - 1,245
164,257 103,678
5,334 514 5,057,445

b) Fee and Commission Expense
Year Ended December 31,

2012 2019
Fees and commissions in RSD
- financial and insurance sactor 324 388 280,730
- corporate customers 246 817 180,807
- retail customers - 2z
- foreign entites 13,225 18773
-other customers - 124
584 244 478 556
Fees and commissions in foreign currencies
- foreign entities 198,204 144,225
- gthar customers ) 265
196,204 148450
780,448 528,045
21
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10.

NET GAINS [ (LOSSES) ON THE SALE OF SECURITIES CARRIED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
Year Ended December 31,

202 2011
Gains on the sale of secunties carried at fair value
thraugh profit and loss 2856 20,597
Losses on the sale of securities carriad at fair value
through profit and loss {1.880) [39.707)
Metgains/losses) on the sale of securties carried at fair values
through profit and loss TT8 {18,110

MNET GAINS ON THE SALE OF SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE
Year Ended December 31,

012 2011
Gans on the sale of secuntes available for saie 83,847 1.254
Met gains on the sale of securities availabla for sale 83 847 1.254

FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET
Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011

Foraign exchange gains 5,882,008 1,257,838
Foreign exchange losses (13 723387) ¢ 1.285467)
(8,041 381) 127 B28)

Fareign exchange gains and losses comprise positive and negative effects of foreign exchange
translstion of transactions performed in foreign currencies during the year and translation affects of
balance sheet items into dinars at official exchange rates at each montn-end

Caloulation of forsign exchange gains and losses is conducted and stated at grass principle (forzagn
exchange gains and fosses) during the financial year in accordance with the regulations of the National
Bank of Sarbia.

INCOME FROM DIVIDENDS AND EQUITY INVESTMENTS
Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Income from dividends and equity investments _ 2,251 7,997
2281 7,587
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11. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

Qther operating income

Collected recaivables previously written off

Gains on the sale of property, equipment and intangible assats
Write—off of iabilities

Surpiuses

Cther incoma

2012 2011
157.217 142,098
505 580
38,481 12,970
3,314 2831
2,558 32
38,548 32 895
241,022 191,207

The most significant amount within other operating Income represents rental income from lease of

property for usage as business premises of RSD 104,435 thousand

12, IMPAIRMENT GAINS/{LOSSES) AND PROVISIONS, NET
Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011
a) Losses
Impairmant losses per balance sheet items
- loans and advances to customers B,338,717 4603913
- Interast and fes receivablas 208 308 571,628
- securities held to maturty 6,909 7554
- equity investments and other securities available for sals T8, 783 r
- olher asssets 190,055 G 134
Impairment losses par off-balance sheet ilems S22 524 438 4497
Prowvisions for liabilites ansing from litigations 218,528 1,124,855
Provisions for retirement benefits 49 350 48,045
Suspendad interast 117483 19,730
7816664 5883 355
b) Gains
Reversal of impairmeant of balance sheat ltems
- loans and advances o customers 5 458 400 5,447 554
- interast ana fee recevanles 234 858 553644
- securifies held w maturity Ta7a 3254
- equity investments and other securifies available for sale 2 1,588
- othar gesets f4 537 38 485
Reversal of provisions for losses per off-balance sheet items 526,810 342 449
Reversal of unused provisions for lizbilities arising from litigations 18,249 -
Reversal of unused other provizsions for emiployes benefits A48 9249 -
Collected interast previously suspended 23411 155,840
6,372,385 T.0AT B4
Losses, net (a-b) {1444 255) 11,335.461)

U to the end of January 2013, the Bank did not perform materially significant caliaction of impairad
invesiments that would affect the reversal of allowance for impairment in accordance with 1AS 10,

Based on the classification of loans and investments in accordance wih the raguirements of the
Mational Bank of Serbia, as of December 31, 2012, the Bank assessed the special reserve for estimated

losses basad on the Bank's aggragate cradit risk exposure,
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12, IMPAIRMENT GAINS/(LOSSES) AND PROVISIONS, NET (Continued)

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

In accordance with the NBS Decision an the Classification of Balance Snest Assets and Cff-Balance
Sheet ltems of the Bank, the difference between provisions against potential losses calculated in line
with the aforementionsd Decision and amount of valus adjustments for balance shest fterms and
provisions for off-balance sheet items calculated in line with the internally adopted methodology

represents the amount of required provisions against poten

account,

tal losses and is recorded on & separate

MOVEMENTS ON THE ACCOUNTS OF IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE AND PROVISONS FOR OFF-
BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Off-
Interest and Equity Other Balance
Fee Leoans and Investme  investment Other Shaat
Receivables  Deposits  Securities  nts 5 Assets  Items Total
Balance, e
danuary 1, 2012 1639898 10,850,247 4.611 JT018% 2793048 163,784 SOZMT 18,164 897
Charge for the vear 208,306 5589128 £ 500 78,783 347585 160,055 522,524 7,431,204
[ecrease [434.856) (8357373 (7073 (101,127 154 53T (G2E910) (6,281,776;
Forgign exchanges
gains 27,830 445 736 224 171,285 10,268 - 555,441
Wiite-affs {(25,280) (63,412 - 131,518) (438 (124 546)
Cther changes 138483y 2002 - (18 q2aEy 13,853 T 42713
Halance,
December 31, 2012 1.563.815 11, 706428 4,671 446,554 3 177885 306,242 4497 632 17,702,297

a)

b)

=]

d}

e)

Calculation of provisions
Special raserve for estimated losses per
- palance sheet assets
- off-balance sheet items
Total a)

Impairment allowance and provisions calculated in lire
with the internally adopted methodology (1A 38)

- impairment allowance for balance shest assets

- provisions against losses per off-balance shaet itams

Total k)

Difference between the amounts of calculated impairment
allowance and provisions

- balance shest assets
off-balance sheet items

Total c (a-b)

Reserves retained from earnings for estimated losses per
balance sheet asssts and off-balance shest items
created in prior vears

- balance sheet assets
- off-halance shaet tams
Total d)

Total required special reservs for estimated losses
according to the NBS methadology

- balance sheet assot

- off-balance sheet itams

Total

Year Ended December 31,

Movemeants on reserves retained from earnings are discloses in Note 42

2012 2011
29,535,247 20.985 075
782,289 1,250 589
30,217 538 31,254,664
17,204,885 15,662,680
497 632 502,017
17,702,297 16,164 687
12,330 582 14,332,395
284857 767572
12,615,235 15,089 367
14.077.045 10,927,046
708,304 708,394
14,785,440 11,635,440
13,089 033 14,332,395
388 107 767,572
13,457,140 15,089,867
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amounts sxpressed i thousands of RS0, unless othenwise stated

12.

13.

14.

16.

IMPAIRMENT GAINS/{LOSSES) AND PROVISIONS, NET iContinued)

Fursuant 1o the regulstions of the Naticnal Bank of Serkia, the Bank iz obligated to form additional
feserves retained from earnings for risk-weighted asssts in the total amaunt of RS0 12,330,582
thousand apart frem aliowance for impairment. In prior years the Bank created reserves retained from
samings for estmated losses per balance sheat assets lotaling RSD. 14,077 046 thousand as of
Cecember 31, 2012,

Pursuant to the regulations of the National Bank of Seria, the Bank is obligated to form reserves
retained from eamnings for guarantees and contngent habilities in the total amount of BSD 284 B&7
thousand. In pricr years the Bank created reserves retained from earnings of RSD 708394 thousand for
these purposes.

STAFF COSTS
Year Ended December 31,

— 2012 2011

Met salaries 2,445 195 2.176,302
Compensations 471,748 558,578
Taxes on salaries and benefits 454 8585 425983
Contributions to salaries and benefits B8B83 430 845 536
Temporary and seasonal emoloyzes G4 B28 33,055
Other staft costs . B287T8 53031
4,186,345 3925085

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Depraciation and amortization 752 358 672.00%
752.358 572 099

OFERATING AND OTHER EXPENSES
Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011

Cost of materials S20.422 442 330
Production service costs 1823528 1,752,349
MNorn-material costs (without taxes and contributions) 1507289 1,364,200
Taxes a7, 372 80,641
Contributions 7a4 748 712,788
Other costs 40,827 45,079
Losses on the sale of propery, equipment and intangiole asssts - 237
Losses on disposal of property equipment and intangible assets 1672 3,034
Shortages and damages 7EOD -
Other expenses — 48,547 19,241
4433005 4,420 906
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amounts expressed in thousands of RS0, unless otherwise stated

15.

18.

17.

OPERATING AND OTHER EXFENSES (Continued)

Within production senvice costs, rental costs for 2012 amounted to RSD 642 854 thousand, Rental costs
mastly refer to the operating lease of business premises in the amount of RS0 560,119 thousand. As of
December 31, 2012, commitments per cperating lease contracts for business premises for futuie
periods, excluding value added tax, for 208 business premises with the total area of 33,815 88me totalad
(in thousands of RS0

-wWithin & year 434 175

- from one 1o five years 1,213,102

- over five years _28B,51T

Total 1,943,784
e ——————

The Bark recognizes liabilites per operating lease of business premises as regular rental costs on a
monthly basis,

GAINS ON VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011

Gains on the valeation of investments and receivablaes: 17178883 11,510,850

Gaing on the valuation of securities 41,893 16,077

Gains on the valuation of liabilitias VBT 535 1.653 908
Gains on the valuation of property, eguipmeant,

Invesiment property and intangible assets 173 -

17,8988 493 13.180 825

LOSSES ON VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Year Ended December 31,

202 . 2011
Losses on the valuation of investments and receivables: 772,528 11,6855 708
Losses an the valuation of securities 14, 837 191,114
Losses an the valuation of habilities 2,040,485 1,458 141
and intangible assets 4270 -
Losses on the valuation of derivatives = 534
0.852.222 13,305,585

Met gains/(losses) on tha valuation of assets and liabilites __ B137271 (124,670)

Gairsflosses on the valuation of assats include the calculated effect of currency clause protection
against the currency risk.

Gainslosses on the valuation of securities include the effects of reduction of sacurities to their market
value.

Gainsflosses on the valualion of labilites include the calculated effect of currancy clause protection
against the currency nsk for deposits received from customers

The Bank calculates effects of valuation at each maonth-end during the year and al each transaction
date:
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amaounts expressed i thousands of RED, uniess othenvise stated

18. INCOME TAXES

al Components of income taxes

Year Ended December 31,

| 2011
Current income tax expense (472 443) (428 027
Income from creation of deferred tax assaots
and reversal of deferred tax liakilitizs 32,885 11,578
Losses from creation of deferred tax lizbiiitias
and reversal of deferrad tax assets i(10.853) {23,937}
450 516} {438.385)

b} Numerical reconciliation between tax expense stated in the income statement and the

product of the accounting results multiplied by the applicable tax rate

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Profit before taxation 4,572 662 3,852 088
Inzome tax at the statutory tax rate of 105 457 268 385,207
Tax effacts of the expenses nat recognized within the tax balancs 42 234 115,878
Tax effects of the net capital gains/osses (1.261) 148
Tax effects of the diffarence between the tax-purpose ang
accounting depreciation and amortization 21 364 12,874
Tax effects of the transfer prices 445 223
Tax effects of income reconciliation (1,820 4.917
Tax credit usad in the current yEar (45 880) (103, 3148)
Tax effect adjustments (used and new ones) (271,932) 12,358
Tax effects stated within the income statement (450,518 {438 386}
C. EFFECTIVE TAX RATE 985 11.08

The Bank made income tax advance payments in the amount of RSD 328343 thousand in 2012 as
monthly tax liabilities stpulated oy the Income Tax Law Eor seftlement of the current income tax
expense, the bank used RSD 472 448 thousand of the aforesaid advance tax Fayments made, whareas
the remaining RSD 55,895 thousand will be used as 3 partion of the tax advance payment for the

farthcoming period

19. INCOME FROM CREATION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DECREASE IN DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES
Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011
Income from creation of deferred tax assets and decreasa in
deferred tax liabilities — change in the statutory tax rate from
10% to 15% 14 G35 -
Income from creation of deferred tax assets and decrease in
deferrad tax liabilitins _ 17,950 11.578°
A2.885 11,578

Change in the statutory income tax rate from 10% o 15% starting from 20132 which will be used to
reslize the determined deferred tax assets and/or liabiities in the ensuing years had a direct impact on

increase in defarred tax assets by 50% as compared to calculation appiied in 2011

Translation of the Auditors’ Report issued in the Serbian language
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All armounts expressed in thousands of RS0, unless otherwise stated

15. INCOME FROM CREATION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DECREASE IN DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES {Continued)

The total effect of the change In deferred tax assets amauntad to RSD 32 885 thousand and included
gains based on the changs of the statutory income tax rate of RS0 14,935 thousand and the effect of
creation of new deferred tax assefs using the new fax rate of 15% in tha amaunt of RSO 17.950

thousand,
Effect of the Tax Mew Provision
Rate Changes Charge
Provisions for retirement benefits and unused annual leaves 13,807 BE
Temporarily unrecognized expenses arising from impairment
of assets 1078 17,924
Temporanly unrecognized axpenses arising from calcuiated
public duties not paid B s0 i332)

14,935 17,850

20. LOSSES ON DECREASE IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND CREATION OF DEFERRED TAX

LIABILITIES
December 31, December 31,
AR 2011
Losses on decraase in deferrad tax assets and creation of
deferred 1ax liabilities — change in the statutory tax rate from
10% to 15% 23,453 -
Dacrease in loss from based on the decresse of
defarred tax lizbilities _ {12.500) 23,937
10,8953 23837

The total effect of change in deferred tax liabilities amounted to RSD 10,953 thousand and included the
fallowing:

al  Increase in deferrad tax liabilites on the temoorary difference in the carrying amounts of the figed
assets dus 1o the increase in the income tax rate by RSD 23.453 thousand e by B0%. As of
December 31, 2012 the calculation of deferred tax lianilities on this greund required decrease in
liabilities of RSD 12,800 thousand, incurring net loss of RSD 10 853 thousand: and

b)  Loss from reversal of deferred tax assets based on public duties calculated in the previous period
vel paid in the curent perod in the amount of RSD 100 thousand

Effect of the Tax Decrease in
_RateChange _Liabilities
Temporary differenca in the value of fived assets 23453 (12 8600)
Temporary unrecognized expenses based on calcuiated
public duties not paid o s 100
23,453 (12,500)
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amodnts expressed in thousands of RS0, unless otfienuise stated

20. LOSSES ON DECREASE IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND CREATION OF DEEERRED TAX
LIABILITIES (Continued)

MOVEMENTS ON THE ACCOUNTS OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred
Deferred Tax Tax Met Tax
Assets Liabilities Effacts
Opening balance at January 1, 2012 28871 {48,807 (17, 036)

Loss on the creation of ceferred tax lisbilities (temporary

difference between the tax-purpose and accounting

values of the fixed assats) - change in the statutory tax

rate from 10% to 15% - (23 453) {23,453}
Decrease in loss from the reversal of deferred tax liabilties

{termparary difference between the tax-purpose and

accounting values of the fixed assets) 12,600 12,800
Income from creation of deferred tax assats {long-term

provisions as per |AS 18) - change in the statutory tax

rate from 10% to 18% 13807 - 13.807
Income from creation of deferred tax assets {long-term
provisions as per [AS 18) — new provision charge G2 = BE

Income frem creation of deferred tax assets
icaiculated public duties not paid) -

change in the statutory tax rate from 10% to 15% 50 . 50
Loss on the creation of deferred tax labilities
{calcuiated public cuties not paid) (1387 - {139)

Income from creation of deferred tax assets (based on
impairmant of assets) - change in the statutory tax

rata from 190% to 15% 1.078 - 1,078
Income from creation of deferred tax assets (based on

impaiment of assets) B i 824 | 17.924
Balance at Decembear 31, 2012 G52 B58 {57.760) 4. 598

i) Deferred tax assets — based on long-term provisions for retirement benefits and unused
annual leaves (vacations), temporarily unrecognized expenses based on impairment of
assets temporarily unrecognized expenses based on public duties not paid

2012 2011
Loss/
Defarred Deferred  Gain on the
Tax Assets Tax Assets Revearsal of
Amount of at 15%  Amount of at 10% Deferred
Provisions Rate  Provisicns Rate  Tax Asgets
Long-term provisions as per 145 18 28571 41 486 276141 27615 12,871
Tax assets based on calculation of
public duties payable - reversal - - 1,000 100 (100}
Tax assets based on calculation of
public duties payabls - craation 73 i - - 1l
Tax assets based on impairment of
assets __ 141059 21,158 21.561 2.156 18,0032
Total G B56 = 28,871 32,785
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEQGRAD

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amounts expressed in thousands of R50, unless oherwvse sfatad.

20. LOSSES ON DECREASE IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND CREATION OF DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES (Continued)

iiy Deferred tax liabilities - difference between the tax-purpose and accounting carrying
amounts of the fixed assets

2012 2011
Loss/
Deferred Deferrad Gain on the
Tax Tax Reversal of
Liabilities Liahilities Deferred
Amount of at15%  Amount of at 10% Tax
Provisions Rate  Provisions Rate Liabilities
Tax-purpose amounts as per
tax regulations 7523 460 - 7,494 581 - -
Carrying amounts 7908521 - THB3g22 - =
Differenca 285,061 57,780 468,061 46,206 (10.853)
METTED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS /
(LIABILITIES)WITHIN THE
BALAMNCE SHEET 4 598 117.038)
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
In RSD
Gyro account 21,884 424 9,907 491
Cash on hand 2612 655 1,730,813
24 4497 089 11,723,004
It foreign currencies
Foreign currency accounts 14,077,140 3,892,766
Cash an hand 1722 451 1,410,114
Foreign currency cash equivalents — chaques in the course of
collection 21,272 32,753
Other cash and cash equivaients 185118 170,234
16,018, 592 55058687
Gold and other precious metals o i) 85
40,514,180 17.228,970

The Bank's required reserve represent the minimum deposits set aside in accordance with the NBS
“Decision on Requirad Reserves of Banks with the Mational Bank of Serbig’

The calculatien of required reserve in dinars is performed cnce a month — on the 17th day of the month
basad on the average balance of dinar deposits as found in the prior calendar month Reguired reserve
in dinars is allccated by the Bank in dinars at its gyro account and these funds may be usad for quidity
purposes. The Bank is cbligated to maintain the average monthly balance on its gyro account in the
amount of reguired reserve in dinars where, in order to realize the daily balance of allocated required
reserve, the daily balance found on the gyro account may be below or above the calculated required
resenva in dinars

Interest rate applied to allocated resources found on the regular account used for required reserves in
2010 totaled 2.5% annually. In 2012, the Bank maintained the average monthly balance in the amount
of requirad resane in dinars, .8, required reservas in dinars were not used at any tims,
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D,, BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
Al amounts exprassed in thousands of RS0, unless othenwise sfated,

22,

23.

REVOCABLE LOANS AND DEPOSITS

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
In RSD

Loans based on repo transactions 4000000 11,500,000
£, 000,000 11,500,000

In foreign currencies
Faguired resanve in foraign currency hald with NBS 38053 502 43,780,711
35.083.602 43,760,711
43,083,502 55,260,711

The Bank caiculates reguired resarnde in foreign currency on the 17th day of the month based on the
average balance of foreign currency deposits registered in the preceding calendar maonth. Reguired
reserve in forsign currency is allocated onto a special account held with the National Bank of Serbia and
these assets may be drawn as necessary. The Bank is under abligation to maintain the average monthly
balance of alocated forsign currency required reserve in the amount of calculated forsign currency
required reserve, where, for the purpeses of realizing average daly balance of zllocated required
reserve, the daily balance on the account of required reserde may be balow or sbove the caloulated
forsign currency required reserva,

Foreign currency reguired reserve does not accrue interast.

During 2012, based on tha Decision on Reguired Reserves of Banks with the Naticnal Bank of Serbua,
the Bank aliccated a certain portion of its foreign currency reserve in dinars to its gyro account.

RECEIVAEBLES ARISING FROM INTEREST, FEES AND COMMISSION, TRADE, FAIR VALUE
ADJUSTMENTS OF DERIVATIVES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011
interest receivables in R0
- interast 2232591 1.947 478
- fees 142287 T1F.131
Receivables from trade in R2D 177 an
Other receivables in RSD - rentals 383,100 354738
Lass: Allowance for impairment in RS0 i1.284 145 11,360,913
1,454,405 1,058,512
fnterast receivables in foreign currencias
- interast 72298 JE4.014
- fees ] 4
Feceivables from trade in forgign currencies - 44,028
Liss: Allowanse for impaiment in foreign cumrencies (279.368) [278.985)
92 936 129,081
1,547 242 1,187.573
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
Al arnounts axprassed in fhousands of RS0, unless ofhenwise siated,

24.

LOANS AND DEPOSITS TO CUSTOMERS

December 31,

December 31,

2012 2011
RS0 loans to customers
Transaction accounts 5815020 §,221.887
Consumer loans 1,503 601 4.630.134
Working capital loans 48 392 0968 20,215 847
Export loans 3076278 9,514,560
Invastmeant loans 33,488 818 33,587,472
Housing loans 30108285 25,8493 406
Cther loans 44 B25 188 32,526,702
Less: Allowance for impairment of RED loans (8.538.581) 17,812.752)
158,570,555 133,887 348
Foreign currency loans to customers
Leans for the payment of goods imported and services
received from aboard 8112810 151,620
Owernight loans ZAT02TE 8,255,053
Other loans 13,833,828 G020 382
Less Allowance for impairment of forgign currency loans (2,830,872 12,582 588)
18.377 142 21,409.487
Other and earmarked foreign currency deposits
Other foreign currency deposits 87143 535,301
Less Allowance for impairment of forgign currency deposits 227 975) {213,827}
__ 159788 422374
177 106,865 155,719,207

In the third quarter of 2013, &t the request of the National Bank of Serbia, due 1o the requirements of
harmonization of the financial statement structure throughcut the country's banking sector, foans to retail
customers based on paymant cards were reclassified from consumer loans to other loans.

December 31, December 31,
012 2011

Loans to retall custormers based on payment cards 2108 785 2,077 842

Tre aferestated amount for the year 2012 s included in other loans, whereas the amount for the vear
2011 isincluded in consumer loans.

During 2012, loans up to one year in dinars and in foreign currency were appraved for the period from
one month W one year at interest rates ranging from 0.65% to 1.8% per month

Loans with over one vear maturities denominates in dinars and in foreign currency were sporoved for a
pericd of maximum 30 years at annual interest rates ranging from 3.35% {as incraased by the intersst
rate agreed upon accoerding o adequate monetary collateral type) to 22.50 %.

Concantration of the aggragate loans approved to customers is presented in Note 54,
Risks and Uncertainties

The Bank's management recorded provisions for potential credit losses bassd on all known or
anticipated credit risks as of the date af issuing the financial statementz. The Bank's loan portiolio
recelvables were classified based on the most recent financial information available as wall as basad on
the expected effects of the restructuring processes involving customers. |f these effects fail to provide
possibilives to setiie the liabilities due to the bank, the Bank's recaivables are mostly collateralized by
morngages assigned over property held by debtors, as well as pledges on movables, In the case that the
debt recovery aclicns undertaken by the Bank's management are unsuccsssful, additional amounts of
allowances for impdirment and provisions for losses based on the assessad irrecoverability would be
requirad in the forthcoming reporting periods.
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amounts expressed in thousands of RS0, unless othenwise stated.

25,

SECURTIES (EXCLUDING OWN SHARES)
December 31, December 31,

2012 2011
In RSD . e
Secunities camed at fair value through profit and loss
- shares of banks in RS0 TO8 728
- corporate shares 5703 THZ5
Secunties avanable for sale
- shanas of banks in RSD i) 74
- corporate bonds (Tigar a.d,, Pirot) 67,804 83,318
- bends of banks 1,586 640 -
- Republic of Serbia bonds and bils 17,221,078 16,895 150
- bands of lcal self-governmant 56,089 -
Becurilies held lo maturity
- corporate bends (RDP B92 a.d.. Beograd) 51,167 TB.4TE
Less: Allowance far impairment of securities in RSD = (4871 (4.611)
15,0684 593 17,060 985

In foreign currencies

Securifies carmed at fair vaiue through profit and loss

- Republic of Serbia bonds 208,492 141,850
Securities avaiable for saie

- Republic of Serbia bonds and hills — 22176534 5435157
22,383,025 8577 007
41,347,719 25837972

Trading Securities

As of December 51,2012, the markst value of trading securities porttolio totaled RSD 212,903 thouzand
iDecember 31, 2011 RSD 150,403 thousand), whereof dinar denominated trading securities account for
RED 6411 thousand and the farsign currency denominated trading securities amounted to RS0
206,492 thousand

Tha largest investments were mads into the Republic of Serbia ald EEVINGS Donds, in the amount of
RS0 206 492 thousand and in shares of the following companies; Galenika Fitofa a.d,, Beograd in the
amount of RSE 1 868 thousand: Matalac ad., Gornji Milanovac in the amaunt of RS0 1 575 thousand.
Sojaprotein 2.0, Bedej in the amaunt of RSD 631 thausang; and Messer Tehnogas ad Beograd in the
amount of RSD B89 thousand.

Sacurities Available for Sale

Az of December 37, 2012 the structure of investments made in secuntiss availabie for saie was as
fxllows:

i RS0

Republic of Serbia commercial bills in the amount of RSO 14,047 771 thousand, Republic of Sernia
bonds in the amount of RSD 3,173 307 thousand; bonds from the City of Pandevo budget in the amount
of RED £6,08% thousand, bonds of the compary Tigar ad. Pirot in the amount of RSO &7 904
thousand, and bonds of the following banks' Societe Generale banka a.d., Baograd in the amount of
R30 1,055,102 thousand; Erste banka a d Eeograd in the amount of RSO 511 538 thousand and AlK
banka a.d., Ni§ inthe amount of RSD 75 thousand.

in foreign currencies:

Republic of Serbia commercial bills in the amount of RSD 15.332 788 thousand, long-term Governmant
of the Republic of Serbia bonds in the amount of RSO 8,258,302 thousand and Republic of Serbia old
savings bonds in the amount of RSD 587,444 thausand.

Securfies Held fo Malurity

The amount of RSD 51167 thousand entirely relates to the bonds of the company RDP BaZ ad.,
Beograd,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amiounts expressed in thousands of RED, unless otherwise stated,

26,

ar.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS (INTERESTS)
December 31, December 31,

_ 2012 2011

Equity investmants in subsidiaries domicilad in the country 140,000 140,000
Equity investments in subsidiary banks domiciled abroad 5,340 888 5,240 828
Equity investments in banks and financial organizations 135,236 117,988
Equity investments in corporate and othar lzaal entihes 451,430 405,008
Equity investments in forsign entities domiciled abroas 295433 189.878
Less Allowance for impaiment ) (446 854) {370,188}
& 417053 5823583

As of December 31, 2012, Bquity investments in subsidiaries domigiled in the country related to
KomBank Invest a . Beograd in the amount of RSD 140,000 thousand,

Equity investments in subsidiaries domiciled aboarsd relate o interest held in Komercijalna banks a.d,
Banja Luka totaling RSD 2.974 515 thousand and Komercijalna barka ad., Budva lataiing RSD
2 366,273 thousand,

Equity investments in barks and financial institutions relats to Euroaxis bank. Moscow i the amount of
RS0 78 387 thousand, AlK banka a.d., Ni& in the amount of RS0 54,014 thousand, Jubmes banka a.d,
Beograd in the amount of RSD 1,981 thousand and Union banka ad., Beograd in the amount of RSD
1,874 thousand

Equity investments in enterprises mainly refer to the following business entities. 14 oktobar ad.
Krufevac amounting to RSD 324 874 thousand RTY Politika d.0 0., Beograd in the amourt of RSD
27,634 thousand, Dunay csiguranje a.d, Beograd amounting to RSD 45,124 thousand and Paolitika a.d.,
Beograd amounting te RSD 34,528 thousand,

Equity investments in foreign entities are associated with the company VISA Inc, USA totaling RSD
244 375 thousand and Master card, LISA totaling RSD 51 058 thousand.

The aliowance for impairment of other equity investments of RS0 448 854 thousand relates to the &l
{100%) impairment of cost for those equity Investmants that do not have a markat value out of which the
‘argest amaounts refer to the following entities 14. Oktobar a.d., Krugevac in the amount of RS0 324 874
thousand; BTV Paolitika d.o.o Beograd i the amount of RSD 37,834 thousand, Politika a.d., Baograd in
the amount of RS0 28 454 thousand: Dunay ceiguranje a.d | Beograd in the amount of 28 828 thousand
and AlK banka a.d., Ni$ in the amount of RS0 10 287 thousand

OTHER INVESTMENTS
December 31, December 31,

2012 2011
Other investments in RSD
- Purchased investments — factorng 103,282 361,776
Placemnents for acceptances, bills of guarantees
and payments made Upon guarantees called 1,445 595 1,020,978
Cither investmeants 380005 452 828
Less Allowance for impaiment — 1888074}  (745387)
960,308 1,080,213
Other investments in fareign currencies
Flacements for acceptances bills of guarantses
and payments made upon guarantess called 2BB,B36 241 563
Covered letters of credit and other sureties 1662270 208 528
Other investments 2527 BE3 2,305,808
Less Allowance for impairment (2,208 7810 (2,048 575)
2366988 1,087,520
TOTAL 2,227 BSs 2 187,533
34
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27,

28.

OTHER INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Flacements for acceptances, bills of guarantess and payments made upon Juarantees called of RSD
1445 B85 thousand mostly refer to the payments made upon guarantees called in the amount of RSD
1,074,383 thousand.

Covered lefters of cradit and other sureties of RSD 1,662 270 thousand are mastly associated with
counter guarantee issued at the reguest of the customer Sunoke oo, Nowi Sad in favor of
Commerzbank AG. Frankfurt am Main for the ultimats gusarantes beneficiary Pfeifer & Langen
Kammanditgessilschaft in the amount of RED 653,580 thousand, as well as payment by letter of cradit
through Commerzbank Brussels on behalf of the customer Sjaprotein ad., Bede to the company
Wyncke NV Harelbeke in the amount of RSD 337 258 thousand

Within cther investments denominate din dinars, the largest poriion refers to the nominal value: of
discounted bills of exchange totsling RSD 285028 thousand, whereas out of other investmenss
denominated in foreign currencies the largest portion of RSD 1400503 thousand accounts for
receivables due Jugobanka a.d., Beograd in bankruptoy, which was fully provided for.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
December 31, December 31,

012 2019
Licenses and softwars 1,186,177 883,134
Intangible assets in progress 46 537 V2588
Less Accumulated smortization {612 278) (400.418)
600438 355415
Movements on the account of intangible assets:
Intangible
Licenses and Assets in
Software progress Total
Cost
Balance at December 37, 2011 883,134 T2 6892 955 833
Additions - 258 881 265 B8t
Transfers 283043 (283043 -
Bzlance at December 31, 2012 1.166,177 46 537 1212714
Accumulated amortization
Balance at Dacember 31, 2011 400,418 . 400,418
Charge for the year 2012 211,858 - 211,858
Balance at Decamber 31, 2012 612,278 - B12.276
Met Book Value:
at December 31, 2012 = 553 901 48,537 G00.438
at December 31, 2011 482 716 TZ558 555,415
a5
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23, PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Movements on the account of property, equipment and intangible assets:

Property, plant
and equipment

under Investmeant

Property Equipment construction Property Total
Cost
Balance, Decamber 31, 2011 5679 445 2682 153 KT 1.6684,859 10,284,034
Additions - - 451 528 - 451 528
Transfers 107,242 308471 1438.870) 22RET -
Disposal and retirement (13.503) (204, 628) - (215, 129)
Oiher (& 184} = %
Balance, December 31, 2012 5765101 2,785 998 50,434 1,807 716 10.5189.248
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance, Decamber 31, 2011 850,582 1,724,005 - 148,176 2763 762
Charge for the year 2012 141,855 363,777 35,052 540,458
Cisposal ard retirement {54400 198,272y - - (201,712)
Transfars 745 - - (745} -
Cihar {148 - - - [148)
Balance, December 31, 20012 1.031.410 1,888,510 - 181,483 3,102 403
Met Book Value:
at December 31, 2012 4,733,691 505,455 G434 1,726,233 7496 845
at December 31, 2011 4,788 254 358,145 37,576 1,735,683 7,530,271

a) Investment Property

As of December 31, 2010, the Bank stated investment property in the amount of RSO 1.726.233
thousand comprised of leased buiidings.

in 2012, basad on long-t2m lease contracts entared inte, the Bank transferred propertias (in Mg, Vriste
and Gornje Polje) totaling RS0 25 884 thousand to investment property

By activating & part of investment property located at No. 28, Makedonska 5t Belgrade for its own
purposes, the Bank performed fransfer to its own property and equipment (busingss premises) in the
total amount of RS0 2,007 thousand,

MWet affect of the aforedescribad reclassifications was increase in investment property by RSD 22 857
thousand.

Az of December 31, 2012, net rental income eamead toftaled RSD 20,803 thousand:

Total Total Rental

Building Area in m2 Expenses Income Met Profit

Belgrade, Makedonska 29 7 168,91 {32,986) 73,085 40,089
Mig, Vrtiste new O building 1.516,00 (176) B51 675
Nig, TPC Kalés 85.00 {802) 5 155 4353
Belgrade, Omiadinskin brigada 18 15.218.00 {14,219} 19,725 3,906
48,183 98,786 50,603

In December 2012, the Bank s expan tgam parformed valuation of investment property
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29,

FROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

a} Investment Property (Continued)

The appraised fair value of investment property as of Dacembar 31, 2012 totalad EUR 17587 thousand
iegquivalent to RED 1,878,302 thousang). which is by 14.680% in axcess of the carnying amount of
investment property and doss not represent significant departure of the fair valus from the carrying
amaount.

The appraised value of investment property,

Carrying Appraised Fair Value

Areain Amoaunt in Variance

Building m2 RSD 000 In EUR ‘000 In RSO ‘000  In RSD ‘000
Belgrade

Makedonska 28 168,51 1,023 887 2170 1,042 785 18,858
Mig, Vrtishe now

0 butlding 1,816,000 25,788 364 41 345 15,558
Miz, TPC Kaléa 85 00 36.260 193 21,965 {14,285}
Belgrade, Omiadinskih

brigada 12 15,218.00 540,288 7,670 §72,205 231,807
TOTAL 1,726,233 17,397 1,878,301 252 08B
b) Property

The Bank has no buildings assigned under mortgage as collateral for the repayment of borrowings

As a result of incomplete land registers, as at December 31, 2012, the Bank did not have proof of
ownarship for 25 buildings stated in the net book value of RSD 1408 317 thousand. The Bank's
management has taken all aclions necessary to obtain the appropriate property titles for these ouiidings.

As at January 1, 2005, the Bank recognized revalustion effects (based on a valuation performed by an
independent and certified appraiser) for property cwned by the Bank, In 2012, as well as in prior NEArs,
the: Bank's expert team performed valuation of property in the bank's ownership in accordance with the
internally adopted bylaws,

Irrespective of the fact that the appraisad fair value of property does not significantly depart from the

carrying amount thereof, the Bank infends to have an independent appraiser perfarm valuation of
property in accordance with the reguirerments of the relevant 125 in the forthcoming year
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29.

30.

PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)
b) Property {Continued)

The appraised value of property

Carrying Appraised Fair Value
Amount in Variance
Building Area in m2 RSD 000 I EUR'0G0 In RSD ‘000 In RSD 000
Belgrade,

Makedonska 2% 10,818 2003225 16,450 1870707 (132,518)
Belgrade, Kralja

Petra 19 5,358 584 185 5,268 712,538 128,383
Belgrade, Svetog

Save 14 2715 487,070 5214 547 8595 105 8258
Belarads,

Svetogorska 42-44 3,333 366,268 4703 534 765 168, 487
Zabac, Jevremova 2 1,210 138 544 o975 110817 {27,627}
Krugevac, Trg

fontana 1 2,858 95,033 1.035 116 209 23176
Other property

(71 buildings) 883,347 6.656 756,830 {126,417)
TOTAL" 4 557 672 41,303 4 B5EG DEd 135,282

* The lolal camying amount does not inglude Jeasehold improvements amounting lo RSO 176018
thousand.

The appraised fair value of property as of December 31, 2012 totaled EUR 41,303 thousand (eguivaient
te RS0 4 696 984 thousand), which is by 3.06% in excess of the carrying amaunt of investmeant property
and does not represent significant deparure of the fair value from the carrying ameount

Basec on the internal propery valuation performed in 2012 positve effects on revalustion reserves
within gquity are expected in 2013,

Tha Bank's managemeani believas that the net book valus of property and equipment as at December
31, 2012 was stated at its markeat value

Basad on the annual inventory count, useless fixed gssets (equipmeant) with the net book value of RSD
1,307 thousand were disposed of and derecognized.

NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND ASSETS FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

Mon-current assets held for sale FBTEI 101,040
7H 7RG 101,040

The Bank s in the process of selling property assessed as unnecessary for futher business operaticns
The hank's management is taking all the necgssary measures i order to realize sales of the azsets held
for sale. In the course of 2012, two buildings were sold: business premises in Belgrade and in Krufevac.

The Bank's management intends to sell 2il asseats that remainea unsold in the past year,

a8
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30.

31.

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND ASSETS FROM

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

Based on the assessment of the far value of non-current assets heid for sale performead by an expert
team, the Bank decreased the value of buildings in its books of account in the amount of RS0 4,087

thousand,

Mon-current assets held for sale:

Building

Branitevo, business premises

Jasika, business premises

Pozarevac. M.Pijade 2, businass oremises

PoZarevac, M.Pijade 2, business premises

Razanj. garage

Belgrade, Tose Jovanovica 7, business premises
Vibas, M Tita 48, business premises

Varvarin, M. Marinovica, business premises

Swrljig, ugao D Trfunca | HadZideve, business premises

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deferred tax assats
Ceferrad tax abilities

Deferrad tax assets, net

Areainm2

21.08
7587
a0.az
BAD.BS
15.00
24.05
145.56
207.00
128.00

December 31,

2012

G2 655

Carrying
Amount

4580
811
31,839
28,345
28
2,213
4 68a
5144
4.417

78,763

(57,758)

December 31,
2011

4,896

Deferred tax assels ralate to the tax cradits based on the taxabie temporary differsnces in the amounts
of leng-term provisions as per |AS 18, impairment of assets and calculated public duties not paid.

in line with paragraph 71 of 145 12 "Income Taxes” the Bank stated deferred tax assets and defarred
tax liabilities at nel principle (net tax payables are disclosad in Note 409,
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32 OTHER ASSETS
December 31, December 31,

2012 2011
Other receivables in RSD ;
Advances paid for currant assals 28,762 38,5685
Advances paid for permanent investments 51,472 -
Raceivables from employess 1,381 1,368
Receivables for prepaid taxes ad contributions 3182 3,785
Receivables for prepaid income taxes 12,784 -
ther receivables from operations 231800 207781
Suspense and temporan accounts 198,710 156,648
Receivables in settement 47 EQS 1.518,535
Less: Allowance for impairmant of other receivables i53,538) (40,564)
1,021,835 1,885 786
Other receivables in foreign currencies
Receivables from employess 18 B35
Other receivables from cperations g8 180 a7, 700
Suspense and temporary accounts 174 26,330
Receivablas in settlemeant 228472 B71,120
Less Allowance for impairment of other receivables — (127,697 {118,113)
199,167 8774672

Prepayments in RSD
Defarred receivables for acorued interest 456 147 288058

Deferred receivables for other acorued income a2
Defarred expenses for labilities camed at amertizad
value by applying the effective interast rate g0.487 82,002
Deferred other expenses 191 163 53,043
Cier prepayments T = 2 1,805
FITE0T. 433,058
Prepayments in foreign currencies
Deferrad receivables for accrued interes: 135112 44 585
135,112 44 585
inventories
inventories of materials 26147 15,706
Inventories of tocls and fixturas 1,220 1,183
Tangibles received in lisu of cash collection 1,334 522 1003254
Fixtures in use 130024 110,443
Less Allowance far impairment of tangibles received.
through collection of receivables (123.6807) (4.812)
Less: Allowance for impairment of inventories {130,024 (110,443)
1.238 282 1,015,334
3372293 42565443

Out of the total amount of receivables in settlement of RSD 547 895 thausand the largest portion refers
to the receivables due from insurance companies based on the mathematical reserva for collactive life
insurance of the Bank's amployees and receivables from sales and purchase of forsign currencies in the
interbank currency market in the amounts of RS0 430,572 thousand and RSD 113.580 thousand.
respectivaly,
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32,

OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

Tangibles received in lisu of cash collection with the net book value of RSD 1,334 522 pertain to the

faliowing:
Tangibles acquired in the past 12 months

Description

Mur, Novi Pazar, house and categony 3 orchard
LGP Krusevac. commercial building
Scko Banja, cottage, production plant

family residential building

Scko Banja farming land (orchard, fislds)
Beograd, Baje Pivlianina 83, commercial building
Maovi Pazar, Ejupa Kurtagica 13, house

Majur, Tabancovadka, category 4 farming field
Majur, production plant with ancillary facilibes
Megatin, house with ancillary facilities
Miadenovac, category 3 farming field

Mg, Dusiness pramises - stores

Tatal |
Tangibles acquired in prior periods
Description

Business pramises in Novi Pazar,
K] skopskin Zrtava 44
Gnjilica, category 7 field
The Prasident Hotel, Cadak
Bulevar oslchodenia bb
Residential building in Catak, Ratka Mitrovica &
Cultivated land, category 4 grass field
Tivat, Mréevac — residential building, ancillary facilitias
in construction and garage
Buge, category 4 forest
MEGD, Milentia Popovica 5k, apardmant MZ 52 no 1
MBGD Milentija Popovica 5b, apartment MZ 52 no.2
NBGD, Mientija Popovida Bb, apartmant M2 52 no 3
NBGD, Mientia Popovida 5k, apartmeant | 52 no.5
NBGD, Milentia Popovica 5k, apartment Il 52 ne.g
NBGD, Milentia Popovids Sb, business premises
Las2
NBGD, Mientija Popoviéa 5h, business premisas L2352
hur, Movi Pazar, forest, field and orchard
Budva, category 4 forest
Prjevor, categony 4 forest
Residential building Galathea

Total Il
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Date of

_Area in m2 Value  Acquisition

1.190.00 5535 DB/O4/2012

12.838.00 49 982 og/os2mz

1,844 00 34.954 01/08/2012
5,740.83

sres 35,335 1082012

27852 87,320 23/08/2012

139.80 4,755 24/07/2012

1,445 ha 1,830 100082012

1.263 28822 OEMD2012

§58.00 71,103 0702042

18,833 244 2211142012

140 22 400 1401202012

332,880
Date of
Areain m2 Value Acqguisition

B2.95 9,158 27108/2006

283800 218 11/06/2008

227842 127,035 21012008

185 3708 12/05/2009

1 ha 24 arss 337 26/11/2010

P 5512 2322010

B.2492 La7 260112010

ar 24 385 241272010

170 47 538 240722010

173 45 480 24122010

171 a7 814 24112/2010

175 42,040 241212010

163 55,680 24122010

128 48,751 241212010

33.96 ares 4.374 07042011

g74 13532 27052011

1,885 11.087 271052011

g25 423,845 2101142011

819,447
41
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32.

OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

Tangibles acquired in the past 12 months - Equipment

Date of
Description _ Value Acquisition
I.C P Krugsvac, movahias 45 243 CB/082012
Soko Banja, Sineks Nig and Trabit sunce {movables) 34.701 01082042
Mzjur, movables ars 0802012
Swrljic. movables 38 132012
Retail customers — tractor with trailer 114 18072012
Retail customers - movables < ZEOAE0Z
Retail customers — movahles ks 19/08/2012
Retail customers — movables 20 2040372042
Retail customers — movables a1 2000372012
Retzil customers = movablas 70 25012012
Total 11 80,715
Tangibles acquired in prior periods -Equipment

Date of
Description Value  Acquisition
Movi Fazar, equipment 275 23062008
Waljgvo, equipment 1,205 702009
Less! Allowance for impairment {1 480
TAOTAL (net book valug) | + [+ 1+ 1 1,334 522

Tangibles received in lisu of cash collection within a year totaled RSD 413 595 thousand as of
Recember 31, 2012 and referred to buildings and land (forast) sacuritizing the Bank's recewvabies from
customers based on loans approved.

For the aforementionsd properies, the Bank holds owrershio titles. The Bank's managemsant is
underaking actions to seil such property

During 2012, the Bank sold two buildings, land and eguipmant acquired though collection of receivables
for the aggregate price of RSD 88 885 thousand (cost of the assets sold ameounted to RS0 82 315
thousand).

Luring 2072, the Bank depreciated material assets received a5 collsction of receivables (three buildings:
Galathea. the President Hotel and the cne in Novi Pazar) based an the Tair value appraisal performed by
the Bank's expert team in the amount of RSD 118 795 thousand,

In accordance with NBS regulations for tangibles received in lieu of cash collaction the Bank iz under
obligation to dispose of them or to deploy them for its own use within twelve months of the date of
acquisition. In the event that the prescribed deadling is exceeded the Bank must make a full provision
thareof.
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33

TRANSACTION DEPOSITS
December 31, December 31,

2012 2011
In RE0 =i —
- sactor of finances and nsurance £92 959 BET 409
- public companies 2.952.511 1,715,034
- carporate customers 12,567,931 8,531,280
- enirepranaurs 1,818,444 1,778,231
- puiblic sector 42 979 33,392
- retail customers 5,535 428 5183 533
- fareign entities 157,882 G4, 124
- registered agricultural producers 1265 464 1,056,628
- othar custormers 1.482 446 1,375,804
26,415,924 21,010,514
in foreign currencies
- sactor of finances and insurance TEI T 1,031,655
- public companias 195144 284 046
- corporate customers S 028121 4,781,402
- entreprensurs 197,078 141,585
- public zectar 1,363,082 236438
- retail cusfomers 2,658 638 2,076 0dd
- forgign entities 1,155,728 203 488
- registerad agricultural producars &8 -
- other cusiomers 568,301 381,422
13920852 10,446 081
40,338,776 31,456 575

Demand deposits in dinars represent balances of transaction deposits of enterprises and other legal
entities. Based on the Decision on Interest Rates for the year 2012, these deposits were interest-
bearing. Depending on the level of average monthly balanca on fransaction accounts of customers the
interast rates ranged from 0.5% to 2% annually.

Demand deposits of enterprises and non-residents denominated in foreign currencies are non-interest
bearing excapt for specific business arangements,

Dinar a vista savings deposits placed by retall customers were deposited &t an interast rate of 0.15%
annually. Foreign currency a vista savings deposits of retail customers ware placed at an interest rate of
0.158% annually for EUR ceposits, ie 0.10% annually for deposits in ather currancies.
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34,

OTHER DEPOSITS

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Other deposits in RSD
Savings deposits 1,828,785 1856 593
Depaosits for loans approved 344 192 413,857
Special-purposs (earmarked) deposits 3829670 510,292
Other deposits:
- sector of finances and insurance 44875525 3,300 558
- public companies 811,085 1,415,650
- corporate customers 10 585,278 18,083,217
- enireprenaurs 56,5650 36,621
- public sector 3389 343 208,521
- foreign entities 22102 12.078
- other customers i 1.000
- sector of finances and insurance _ 2895334 3813813
28 291,952 29773208
Other depeosits in foreign currencies
Savings deposits 147 512 464 127,087 755
Deposits for loans approved 2,384,008 2,743 566
Special-purpose [sarmarked) deposits 1734878 G268 B35
Other deposits:
- sector of finances and insurance 5,235 630 5183818
- public companies 2432 538 3,212,255
- corporate custormers 5,331,891 4128861
- enfreprenaurs 34570 27,579
- public sector 2,425 2,180
- forgign entities 2140 .
- othar customers 1212676 _  1.570.737
166,881,986 144,883 486
185,183,968 174,668 705

Corporate Sector Deposits

In 2012, shor-term dinar deposits of corporate custormers were placed af annual interest rates ranging
between the reference interest rate less 275 percentage points and the refersnce interest rate
depending on the maturity date

Shart-term foreign currency deposits of enterprises were placed at an interest rate ranging betwaen
0.25% and 4% annually.

Long-term dinar deposits of enterprisas were placed at an interest rate determined by the amount of
reference interest rate of the National Bank of Serbia on an annual leval increased by 0.5 percentage
points, whereas those denaminated in foreign currency accrued interast at the rate of 2.2% to 4.5%
annually

Short-term corporate deposits denominated in EUR wers placed at the interest rates ranging from 1% to
2.2% annually

Long-term corporate deposits denominated in EUR were placed at the annual intarest rate of 2.6 9,

Retall Sector Deposits

Short-term retail deposits in dinars were placed at interest rates ranging from 7% do 10% annually,
whereas those denominated in forgign currency accrue interest at rates ranging from 1% to 4.5%
annualy.

Long-term retail deposits in dinars were placed at inlerast rates ranging from 10.5 % fo 11% annually
whereas those denominated in foreign currency accrus interest at rates ranging from 2.2% to 5.5 %
annuaily,
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35,

36.

37,

BORROWINGS

Barrowings received in RSD
Owernight lnans

Loans receivad

Cther financial fiabilities

Borrowings received in foreign currencies
Qther financial labiities in forsign currencies

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
248 478 301,388

- 1,092
21,741 10,214
271 297 312674
366,047 1,291,087
366,047 1,281,087
B37.264 1.603,751

Diher financial liabilities in foreign currencias mostly refer to the payments not made based on the
received proceeds from abroad in the amount of RS0 233137 thousand,

INTEREST, FEE AND COMMISSION PAYABLES AND
CHAGE IN THE VALUE OF DERIVATIVES

Interest, fee and commission payables in RSD
and change in the value of derivatives
Interest payable
Fees and commissions payable
Liabilties arising fram the change in the value of derivatives

Interest, fee and commission payables in foreign currencies
and change in the value of derivatives

Interest payable

PROVISIONS

Provisions against potential losses arising from litigation

Frowvisions for employes benefits (IAS 19

Provisions against potential losses per commitmants
and contingent liabilities {off-balance shaet items)

TOTAL

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
171,878 184.711
11,883 2,651

- B34

183,869 182,038
5041 _ 13,083

5,041 13,043

188 810 2050749
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
1,557,657 1,357 278
278,571 276,141

497 53z 502017
2,331.7B0 2,135,436
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3T,

38,

PROVISIONS {Continued)

Movements on accounts of provisions
December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

a) Provisions against potential losses B e

arising from litigation
Opening batance 1,357 278 243,321
Charge for tha year 218,528 1,124 BEY
Revarsal of provisions (18245 (10,9000
Balance end of year 1,557 657 1387 278
b} Pravisions for retirernent benefits and unused

annual leaves (vacations)
Opening balance 278,141 228.098
Release during the year — annual leaves 45,5354 -
Reversals during the year — retiremant benefits — {48829 48,045
Balance, end of year 278,571 276741
e} Provisions against potential losses per commitments

and contingent liabilities
Opening balance Eo2.017 4059569
Releases — revarsals of provisions during the year (4335 88,048
Balance, end of year 457 6532 502,017

a)  During 202 the Banx adjusted possible outflows per angoing legal suits by charging additional
provision of RS0 218,528 thausand and reversing provision of RSD 18248 thousand based an
reconciling RSD counter value of an expectad cutfiow from a legal suit in LISD,

o) The main actuarial assumptions usad in calculation of retirement benefits were as follows.

December 31, December 31,

2012 . 2011
Discount rate 11.25% 2%
Salary growth rate within the Bank A% 5%
Empicyse turnover 5% 5%

The discount rate equalad the reference interest raia of the National Bank of Serbia as at the calcylation
date

TAXES PAYABLE
December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

Value added tax payable T.273 13187
Diner taxkes and contributions payable 14.528 26857
21,793 38.737
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

39, TAX AND DIVIDEND PAYAELES
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Dividand payables 85,114 15,067
Current income t2x payable _ = s 187,130
B5 114 172 a7

40. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
December 31, December a1,

201z 2011
Deferred 12y assets - {25.871)
Defarrad tax liabilities - 48,907
17,038

In line with paragraph 71of [AS 12 “Income Taxes," the Bank =tated deferrad tax zssets and deferred tax
liabilities at net principle Changes in deferred tax assets and liabiities during 2012 are presented In
detall in Note 20 Met tax assets are disclosad in Mote 31.
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41, OTHER LIABILITIES
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Liabilities denominated in RED
Accounts payable 227128 226,707
Advances receivad 180,454 373166
Other accounts payable 41 80z 144,717
Liatulities in settiemant 235620 165 406
Suspense and temporary accounts (292 291) {136 086}
402 111 TEO810
Met salaries B8 187 26,741
Taxes on salanes and benefits 12921 4 437
Contributions to salaries and nenafits 6,562 5794
Temporary and seasonal employees - 40
Other liabilitizs to employess 7277 7,119
114,647 44 131
Liahilities for deferred interest accrued 45711 445 469
Other accrued expenses 17,224 14,081
Ceferrad interast incoms 48 865 144 227
Deferred receivables al amortized cost calculated by
applying effective interast rate (Note 5a) B24 282 T2B.285
Deferred ather income 93237 G4 TZ0
Other accruals 526,612 520,081
1,566,931 1,547 843
Other foreign currency liabilities
Advances received 10,373 4 804
Lianilities for consignment business — loan faciities 14,215,689 S.577.048
Liabilties in settlement 585716 Q8T 178
Suspense and temporany accounts 54 [142]
14 818,732 10676 8588
Subordinated foreign currency liabilties 5885915 5222045
5685915 5232045
Liabilities for deferred interest accrued 2,B62,585 2572802
Other accrued expenses 91,803 116,17
Othar accruals 1,688 3,835
2955988 2,752,808
25535822 20,916 6268

Liabilities arising from consignment operations in foreign currencies mastly refer to the following loan
facilities

« Liahilities toward the Republic of Serbia basad on a borrowing from the Europsan Investment Bank
for financing projects of small and medium-sized enterprises, as well as financing infrastructural
projects of municipalities of small and medium scope

2012 2011
Amount in Amount in Amount in Amount in
RSD ‘000 EUR 000 RSD ‘000 EUR '000
4 815055 42 342 2551542 24 THE
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41.

OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

« Liabilities toward the Republic of Serbiz based on the loans from the Republic of ltaly for financing
projects of small and medium-sized enterprses;

2012 2011
Amount in Amount in Amount in Ameount in
RSD ‘000 EUR ‘000 RSD ‘000 EUR '000
1,195,385 10,547 1273033 12,168

s Liabilities toward the Republic of Sarbia based on a loan obtained from the European Agsncy for
Reconstruction and Development;

2012 2011
Amount in Amount in Amount in Amount in
_RSD 000 EUR ‘D00 RSD ‘000 EUR 000
124413 1.0%4 g% 562 B55
«  Liabiltes toward intarnational financial organizations:
2y EFSE 1and 2
2012 2011
Amount in Amount in Amount in Amount in
RSD ‘000 EUR ‘000 RSD ‘000 EUR '000
3,574,004 31,429 3.8845 882 37,143
by GGF
2012 201
Amount in Amount in Amount in Amount in
'RSD '000 EUR '000 RSD '000 EUR '000
2,615,521 23,0040 = *
«  Lizhilities toward the Eurcpean Bank for Reconstruction ang Devalopment:
2012 2011
Amount in Amount in Amount in Amount in
RSD 000 EUR ‘000 RSD ‘000 ~ EUR ‘000
1,863,844 20,000 1718242 20,000

Liabilities for deferred nterest accrued in forzign currencies totaling RSD 2,780,540 thousand mostly
refer to foreign currency retail savings deposits,

Deferred receivables at amortized cost caloulated by applying effective interest rate of RS0 824,282
thousand represent future perod income.

Liabilities arising from advances received in dinars tolaling RS0 190 thousand mestly relate to the
advances received from the Republic of Serbia Devalopment Fund for subsidizing inferest rates applied
to loans to corporate customers and entrapraneurs in the amount of RS0 71,9681 thousand ad advances
received from the Minstry of Environment and Spatial Planning for subsidized interest for residential
construction loans in‘the amount of RS0 115,721 thousand.

Within deferred interest income in RSD totaling RSD 49 885 thousand, the most significant portions
account for the following: RSD 15,713 thousand collected in advance based on interest subsidized by
the Ministry of Economy and Regicnal Development for retail cash and consumer loans anc RS0
25 711 thousand collected in advance based on intarest subsidized by the Envirenment Protection Fund
for loans approved to retail customers for energy efficiency improvement,
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41.

42,

OTHER LIABILITIES {Continued)

In accordance with the regulations of the Mational Bank of Serbia in respect of capital adeguacy
requirements and implementation of Basel |l standard, the Bank strengthened s core capial by
abtaining & subardinated loan from IFC in 2011

The receivad subordinated loan amounted to RS0 5,685,915 thousand, ce. EUR 50,000 thousand,

EQUITY
December 31, December 31,
2012 201
Share capital 17,1891 465 13,881,010
Share premiums 22843084 14 581543
40,034 550 26,452 553

The Bank's share capital was established through initial sharehcolder contributions ‘and the ensuing
izsues of new shares, Sharanolders have the right to manage the Bank as well as to shares in profit
distribution,

Baszed on the Decision on the 26th share issue of preferred shares converible into comman sharas by
public offering without obligation to publish the prospectus to a qualifiea investor — the Republic of
Serbia for the purpose of the core capital increase, the Bank issued shares in the total amount of RS0
11,871 957 thousand T 3,310,456 shares with the individual par value of RSD 1 thousand during
2092

The new 26t share issue was realized a3 at October 30, 2012 by paymeant made by the Minisiry of
Finance and Economy of the Republic of Serbiz in the amount of RS0 11,571 897 thousand; the Bank
egarnad the share prémium of RS0 8,281,541 thousand

The Bank's share capital is comprised of 17,181 4868 shares with the individual par valus of RSD 1
thousand and of the following structure:

- 8,709,310 common sharss;
- 8,108,648 referred convertible shares and
- 373,510 preferred shares,

The structure of the Bank's shareholders in respect of commen shares at December 31, 2012 was the
following:

Shareholder Share Count Y% Interest
Republic of Serbia 3,709,850 4260
EBRD, London 277330 25.00
Jugobanka a.d., Beograd in bankruptcy 321 600 .89
Artio International Equity Fund. New Yok 259,823 2.98
Evropa osiguranje a.d., Beograd in bankruptcy 249,420 2.86
Invej d oo Baograc 230,000 284
Kaormpanija Dunav osiguranjs a.d., Beograd 171,380 1.97
Other (1,207 sharsholders) 1.580,067 18.26
8708310 100.00
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42,

43,

EQUITY (Continued)

The structurs of the Bank's shareholders in respect of convartible preferred shares at December 31
2012 was the following:

Shareholder Share Count % Interest
Republic of Serbia 3,310,458 4083
EERD. Lendon 1,832,110 2383
IFC Capitalization Fung LP 1,706.810 21.05
Deg Deutche Investiticns 772,850 9.53
Swedfund Internaticnal Aktisbo 385420 478
8,105,645 100.00

The structure of the Bank's shareholders in respect of preferrad shares at December 31, 2072 was the
fallowing:

Shareholder Share Count % Interest

Jugabanksa 2.d.. Beograd in bankrupticy 18,090 4 84

Other (640 shareholders) 225420 89516
373,510 100.00

During 2012, prior year dividends were paid on preferred shares in the armount of RSD 40284
thousand.

The basic earnings per share totaled RSD 489 or 46.9 % for a commen share par value in 2012,
wherzas in 2011 the basic earmings per share amounted to RS0 388 or 392 % for a comman share par
value.

Diluted eamings per share totaied RS0 290 or 29.04% for a common share par value in 2012 and RSD
257 or 25.7% for a commen share par vaiue in 2011

2012 2011
Profit forthe year 4 0B84, 785 3473418
Average weighted number of sharas during the year 2,708.310 8. 709.310
Basic earnings per share {in RS0} 469 398
2012 2011
Frofit for the year 4 084 795 3,473,415
Average weighted numbser of shares during the year 14,0688 258 13,507,500
Diluted earnings per shars {in R5D) 290 257
RESERVES RETAINED FROM EARNINGS
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Special reserve retained from earmings for estimated logses 14785440 11,835,440
14,785,440 11,835,440
Changes in the reserves retained from earnings
Balgnce, baginning of vear 11.635 440 8 235 440
Other capital
— 2011 profit distribution 3,150,000 2,400,000
Balance, end of year 14,785 440 11,635 440
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44, REVALUATION RESERVES
December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

Revaluation rezerves based on valuation of
property and equipment 488 542 4598 980
Revaluation reserves based on fair value adjusiment
of securities ive.Riz 160,640

BET 774 B34 620
Changes in revaluation reserves
Balance, beginning of the year BAG B20 aE3,008
increasefdecraase during the year 178,154 26612
Balance, end of the year BET 774 G585 620

Revaluation reserves are asscciated with gains on the increase n the value of property based on the
valuation performed by an independent appraiser and gains on the fair value adjustment of secuniies
available for sale.

45, UMRELAIZED LOSSES FROM THE FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENT OF SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR

SALE
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Unrealized losses from the fair value adjustment of
sacurities available for sale (T.16) (53, 240)
(7,016} 153.840)

In the course of 2012 unrealized losses from the securities avallaole for sale totalng RSD 78,782
thousand was transferred to the income statement given the exstence of objective evidence of
permanent impairment of those assets.

46. RETAINED EARNINGS
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Retained earnings
Prior year profits B3 866 38213
Profit far the year 4,122 145 3,613,880
4,185 812 3,551,893
Profit for the year
- profit from regular operations 4,572 862 3,8592.065
- profit /loss from tax effects 21,832 [12.359)
- gurrent income tax expense (472, 448) (4268.027)
4,122,146 3513 680
Changes in prior year profits )
Balance, beginning of year 38,213 93,055
increases during the year
transfer from profit for the year 3513680 2616, 254
- gains on the sale of revaluad property and equipment - 5014
- gaing on the realizes reevaluation reserves - 10,038
Decreases dunng the yvear!
- dividends on preferred shares 140,264, {37,675}
- employes profit sharing (308,000 1250,000)
- transfer to the bank's résenes (3150.000) (2400, 600)
- adjustment for the effects of underusad tax assets and
tax depreciation/amorization far 2010 - 1,427
- increase due to the effect of reevaluation reserves amartization
based on valuation of property and eguipment 10,037 -
Balance, end of year 63,666 38213
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48,

47,

48.

RETAIMED EARNINGS (Continued)

Purzuant to the regulations of the Mational Bank of Serbia, gains on the realized revaluation reserves
frorm property and equipment in 2012 were recognized within retained eamings from prior years in the
total amount of RS0 10,038 thousand.

In 2012, pursuant the Decision enacted by the Bank's Sharsholder Assembly, accumuiated retained
garnings from 2011 was distributed as follows.

- 2011 dividends on preferred shares 40,254

- the Bank's reserves 3,150,000

- bonuses and awards for the managemant members

and other Bank's employees 308.000
3498264

MANAGED FUNDS
December 31, December 31,
2z 2011

Funds managed on behalf and for the account of third paries 5013721 4,332 784

Funds managed on behalf and for the account of third parties are mostly comprised of assets for
consignment loans of the republic of Serbia, the largest portion of which, in the amount of RSD
3,122,834 thousand, relates fo the long-term residental loans extended o retail customers. Other
managed funds ralate 1o consignment loans of the City of Belgrade and assets received from forsign
grantors for micro loans,

COMMITMENTS
a) Guarantees issued and other sureties, collaterals, irrevocable commitments and other
liabilities
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
in RSD
Fuarantess issued and other suraties 10,518 9684 10,520,088
Collaterals securing labiiity setilement 5 BEETD 5000000
Irrevocable commitments for undrawn loans and advances 7.5968,786 7033612
Other irrevocable commitmeants 8,072 881 §.524 069
33 345 821 31,086,759
In foreign currencies
Guarantees issued and other sureties 4775 632 4 220514
Irrevocakle commitments for undrawn loans and advancas 9149,50% 508,559
Cther irrevocable commitments based on the contractually
agreed value of RS securities and bonds 3411588 B
9106837 5129073
42 457 655 36,215,842

Collaterals sacuring the settlement of liabilities of RSD 5,556,170 thousand relate to the trsasury shares
from the Bank's portfolic plecged in favor of the National Bank of Serdia as & prarequisite for drawing'a
loan for lguidity purposes.

Cther rrevocable commitmants maostly rafer to the following: unussd portion of approved retail chents’
current account overdrafis in the amount of RSD 4905464 thousand and unused portion of the
approved imit amounts per credit cards in the amount of RS0 3 882,050 thousand

53
Translation of the Auditors® Report isseed in the Serbian languaiye



KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
Allamounts axpressed in thousands of RS0, uniess othenwise stated

48,

49,

50.

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

a) Guarantees issued and other sureties, collaterals, irrevocable commitments and other
liabilities {Continued)

Total estimated provision for potential losses on off-balance shest items &8s in accordance with 143 37
was formad in the amount of RSD 487 832 thousand. This prowision amount is stated within the
liabiities in the Bank's balance shest (Note 37),

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were no labilities arising from forward forelgn exchangs
operations,

b} Litigation

As of Decamber 31, 2012, contingent liabilities based on legal suits filed against the Bank amounted to
R3D 1,144 780 thousand (for 123 legal suits) The Bank's management anticipates no materially
significant losses thereof in the forthcoming period  Based on the lawsuit filed by the Company Takova,
the bank formed addifonal provision of RSD 1,124,857 thousand in 2011 given the fact that, after the
Bank had received the legaily binding court verdict in it favor and realized collection thereof, the
Company Takove filed an appeal pending decision of the Supreme Cassation Court. Potential outflows
of funds from the Bank's accounts in the full amount may sesult from the review of the verdict and
possible return of the cass for redeliberation caused the Bank to retain provision of RSD 1,124 857
thousand for this legal suit.

The total provisions of the Bank against litigation losses amount to RS0 1,557 557 thousand (Maote 37)

In acdition, the Bank is involved in lawsuits against third parties the most significant portion of which
amounts to RSD 21 041 288 thousand (for 215 cases with the largest individual amounts). The Bank's
management anticipates favorable outcome of the most lawsuits.

DERIVATIVES
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Receivables based on derivatives . - 261,602
o 261,602
OTHER OFF-BALAMNCE SHEET ITEMS
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Receivables for suspanded interest
-in dinars 1.636,802 788,922
in foresgn currencies 282 058 189,757
Other off-baiance shest asasts 166,257,041 141,728.010
157,175,801 142 714 689

Ir the course of 2012 the bank had a net increase in suspended intersst of BSD 932,181 thousand
comprised of

a) increase of RS0 878 303 thousand, with the following strusture:
- newly-suspendad interest of RS0 419,378 thousand:
- continuad calculation of suspended interest of RS0 543,837 thousand;
- fareign exchange gains of RS0 15,987 thousand,
b} decrease of RSD 47 122 thousand, with the following structure:
= write-off of RS0 7,594 thousand: and
- collection of RS0 38,228 thousand.

Within other off-balance sheet assets, inter alia, the Bank records custody operations performed for the
Bank's clients. repo investments in the state-issued secuntes and cld foreign currency savings bonds,
The Bank iz not exposed to credit risk per these itams.

Transiation of the Auditors' Report issued in the Serbian language



KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amounts expressed in thousands of R0, unless athenwise siated

B1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND BUSINESS RATIOS IN CONFORMITY WITH THE LAW ON BANKS

The Bank s required to mamntain & minmum capital adequacy ratio of 12%, as established by the
Mational bank of Serbia in accordance with the Base Convention applied to banks. As of Decamber 31,
2012, the Bank's capital adequacy ratio, s calculated based on the financial statements preparad by
the Bank's management by applying the NBS dacisions effective for 2012, was 21.88%,

The Bank is also requirad to maintain certain ratios pertaining to the volume of ds activibes anc
compasition of risk assets in compliance with the Law on Banks and with the NBS requirsments. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, all ratios pertaining to the volume of its activities and composition of risk
assels were within their prescrbed limits.

52 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

A . Balance as at December 31, 2012

RECEIVABLES
Loans and Interest  Met Balance — Off-Balance
Subsidiaries Advances and Fees Exposure _ Sheet ltems Total
1 Komercialna banka ad.,
Budvs 4,686 A2 6,578 6,578
2. Komercijalna banka ad.,
Banja Luka 2,063 - 2,863 09 746 Q12700
3. KomBank INVESTad |
Beograd - 1 1 200 201
TOTAL: & 6448 893 0,542 B0g 246 G189 488
PAYABLES
Deposits Interest Other
Subsidiaries and Loans and Fees  Liahilities Total
1. Komercijaina banka a.d. Budva 487 804 1,588 488 392
2. Komercijaina hankaa d., Banja Luka 8085 - - 8,085
3. KomBank INVEST a.d., Beograd 14,506 38 - 14 Gad
TOTAL 510,785 a8 1,588 512,421
INCOME AND EXPENSES
Fee and Fee and
Interest Commission Interest Commission Net income!
Subsidiaries Income Income  Expenses  Expense Expenses
1. Komercijalna banka
a.d.. Budva 230 1001 - {720} T.011
Z. Komercijalna banka
ad., Banja Luka 1,570 g28 (DHE) [509) 1,304
3 KomBank INVEST a.d.,
Becgrad - 3 {1,223) _ - [1.062)
1,800 2450 {1.811) (1,229 1,220

Komercijalna barka ad, Beocgrad realized net forgign exchange 10sses in the amount of RSD 4 682
thousand from related party transactions.

L7
£
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52.

53.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)

B . Balance as at December 31, 2011

RECEIVAELES

Loans and Interest  Impairment MNet Balance Off-Balance
Subsidiaries Advances and Fees _ Allowance Exposure  Shest [tems Total
1. Komercijaina banka

ad., Budva 5,081 Tan - 5841 - 5,341
2 Komercijalna banka

ad,, Banja Luka ey - - 2,727 BaT 127 830854
3 KamBank

INVESTad.,

Beograd 5 5 = - & 184 200
TOTAL 7,784 Fan - 8574 B37.321 845,895
PAYABLES

Deposits Interest Other
Subsidiaries and Loans and Fees  Liahilities Total
1. Komercijalna banka a.d., Budva 165,081 1,481 186,542
2. Komaercijalna banka a.d., Banja Luka 3,802 - - 3,802
3. KomBank INVEST ad., Becgrad TBEE3 43 - 16726
TOTAL 205 566 43 1,461 207070
INCOME AND EXPENSES
Fee and Fee and
Interest Commission Interest Commission Net Income/
Subsidiaries _ lncome Income  Expenses Expense Expenses
1. Komercijaina banka
&.d., Budva 276 BHE {2 T (184) (1,923}
2. Kormercijalna banka
ad., Bana Luka 1333 932 {38,157 (205) (37.087)
3, KomBank INVEST
a.d., Beograd - 2 188 (1,887} = i(1.718)
1,609 1,787 (43 7E1) 388) i40,744)

Komercijalng banka ad, Beograd realized net foreign exchange gains in the amount of RSD 128,237
thousand from related party transactions.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Gross and net remunerations pald to the mambers of the Bank's Executive Beard, Board of Directors
and Audit Committee in 2012 were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Gross remunerations
Executive Board Teavz 66,234
Net remunerations
Executive Board 61198 55 535
Gross remunerations
Board of Directors ang Audit Committee 26,141 30,199
Met remunerations
Board of Diractors and Audit Committes 17,087 14,625
56
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a4,

RISK MANAGMENT

The Bank has recognized risk management process as the key slemant of business management given
that risk exposure is an inssparable part of barking and is managed through a process of continued
idertification, measursmeant, manitoring, minimizing and sefing of nek limits and through other types of
contrel, including reporting in accordance with adopted strategies and policies.

The Bank has established & comprehansive and reliable risk management system that includes: risk
management strategies, policies and procedures, appropriate organizational structure. effective and
efficient process of managing all risk it = exposad o, adequate system of internal convols adequate
information system and process of internal capital adegquacy assessmeant

Risk managemert process involves clear determining and documenting nsk profile and adjusting risk
profile to the Bank's aptitude to assume risk in accordance with the adopted strategiss and policies,

The basic objsctives that the Bank set for the risk manages system are the following: minimizing the
negative affects on financial result and 2guity within acceptable risk levels, maintaining the required
tevel of capital adequacy, developing the Bank's activities in accordance with business opportunities
and market development with a view to gain competitive advantage.

The Bank implements Basel || standards and permanently monitors &l the announcement and
amendments o the effective regulations, analyses the risk lavels and underiakes measures for timaly
reconciliation of its operations with newly enacted regulations in accordance with the risk level
acceptable to the Bank Through the cieardy defined process of intreducing new products, the bank
analyses the influence of all new services and products on the futurs risk exposures in crder o optimize
it revenues and losses based on the estimated nisk as well as to minimize all potential adverse effects
an the Bank's financial result

Risk Management System
The risk management system is governed by the following internal enaciments:

«  Risk Managament Strategy and Capital Management Strategy,
»  Risk Managemant Policies;

»  Risk Managemenl Proceduras;

«  Methodologes for Managing Individual Risks, and

«  Other enacimants,

Risk Management Srategy sets out

+ Long-term objectives, defined by the Bank's business policy and strategy and its apfifude W
assume nsk determined in accordance with those objectives

«  Basic principles of risk assumption and managament;

s Basic principles of the process of internal assessment of the Bank's capital adequacy. and

«  Overview and definitions of all types of risk the Bank is exposed 1o or may be exposed 10

The Bank specifiad the basic principles of risk management for meeting its long-term objectives.

« Orgarizing operation of 8 separate organizational unit for fsk management,

« Functional and organizational separation of risk management activities from the regular cperating
activities of the Bank:

+  Comprehansive risk management,

+  Effective risk managemeant,

o Cyclic risk management,

= Developing risk management as a strategic orientation; and

« Risk management as a part of corporate cuiture.
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54.

RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
Policies for managing certain nsk types define the following:

s Manner of organizing nsk rmanagement processes within the Bank and clear division of parsonnel
responsibilitizs in all stages of the process,

=  Manner of assessing the Bank's risk profile and methodology for identifying, measuring and
assessing risks

«  Manners of risk menitoring and contrgl and establishing the system of imits, e types of mits the
Bank uses as well as their structure;

+  Measures for nisk mitigation and rules for implementation thereof,

«  Manner and methadology for implemanting the process of intarnal assessment of the Bank's capital
adequacy.,

»  Principles of the system of internal controls: functioning; and

+  Framewaors and frequency for stress testing and procedure in instances of unfavorable test resulls,

Procedures for managing certain risk types define, in greater detail the process of managing neks and
compatencies and responsibilities of gl crganizational units of the Bank in the risk management system

Individual methodelogies further and in more detail prescribe methods and approaches used in the risk
managemant system.

Competencies

The Board of Directors is authorized and responsible for establishing a uniform nsk management
system and for monitoring such system, adopting paficies and proceduras for risk managemeant and
capital managemant strategy. establishment of internal control system, supervision of the work of the
Exacutive Board and execution of the process of internal capital adequacy assessmeant,

The Exacutive Soard is authiorized and responsibie for implemeantation of risk managament strategy and
policies, captal management stratsgy adoption and efficiency analysis of risk managament procedurs
implemeantation. which define processes of identifying, measunng, minimizing, monitoring. contralling
reporting risk the Bank is exgosed to.

The Audit Committes is authorized and responsible for continued analysis and maonitoring of the
adequats implementation of the adopted nsk management strategies and policies and internal control
system. At least meonthly, the Audit Committes reports to the Board of Directars an its activities and
identified irragularities and proposes how 1o gliminate them.

The Asset and Liabiity Management Committee is authorized and responsible for menitoring the
Bank's risk exposure resulting from the structure of its receivables, payables and off-balance sheet
items, and proposes measures for managing interest and liguidity nsks.

The Credit Commities decides on loan approval requests within framework determined by the Banks
enactments, analyses the Bank's exposure credit, interest rate and cumency risk, analyzes loan portfalia
and proposes measures fo be taken to he Exacutive Board

The Becsivables Collections Committee is authorized and responsiole for managing risk-weighted
placements; it makes decisians on the write-off of risk-weightad loans up to set limits of authorization and
recommends write-off of loans to the Executve Board and Boaro of Directors excesding its limits of
autherization.

The Fisk Management Organizational Unit defines and proposss the risk managament sirategy and
palicies to the Board of Directors for adoption, defines and proposes risk management procedures and
methodologies to the Exscutive Board for adoption, identifies, measures mitigates, maentors, controls
and reports on the risks the Bank is exposed to. |t is also in charge of developing models and
methodologies for all stages of risk management and reporting to the competent Bank's bodies.

The Asset Management Division 1s responsible for managing assets ard liquidity, the Bank's assels
and liabilities, their averall financial structure, and is primarily responsible for the Bank's liquidity risk,
interast rate risk and fareign currency sk,
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54.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Competencies (Continued)

The internal Audit Division is authorized and responsiole for continued monitaring of implementation
of risk management policies and procedures at Bank level, and tests the adsouacy of procedures and
the Bank's compliance thereto. Internal Audit repors its findings and recommendations to the Audit
Committes and the Board of Diractors.

The Compliance Confral Onesion is obligated to identify and assess compliance risks at least annualy
and propose risk management plans, whareof it prepares a report and submits it 1o the Execulive Board,

Risk Management Process

The Bank regularly measures and evaluates nisks identified in its operations Measurement entails
applying gualitative and guanbtative measurement methods and models that snable detection of
changes In risk profile and assessment of new risks. For all risks identified the Bank determines their
significance based on as comprehensive assessment of risks inherent it the Bank's partcular
operations, products. activities and processas.

Risk alleviation or rmitigation nvolves risk diversification, transfer, minimization and or aveidance. the
Barnk performs risk mitigation in accordance with risk profile and risk appstie.

Risk monitoring and contral is based on limits that are set by the Bank. They in wm depend on
business strategy and the business environment, as well as on e fevel of nsk that the Bank iz ready to
acoapt

Risk managemant reports are regulardy submitted to: the Bank's Boara of Directors. Executive Board,
Audit Committes, Asset Liability Management Committee and Credit Committze, and they contain all the
information required for risk assessment and reaching of conclusions aboul the Bank's nsks.

Types of Risk

In its business cperzstions the Bank is exposed to the following risks in particular. credit risk and
related risks, lquidity risk, market risk and operational risk. investment risk, country risk and all other
risks that may occur in the course of the Bank's regular operations,

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the nsk of negative effects on the Bank s financial result and capiial arising from
debtors’ inability 1o settle the matured liabiltiss te the Bank. The Bank monitors the following risks within
the credit risk:

+  Default risk - the risk of loss that may arise if 2 debtor fails to settle fabiities toward the Bank;

. Downgrade risk - the risk of loss that may arise if a risk level of a debtor is downgradad
ideterioration of the custormer credit rating);

+ Risk of change in the value of assets - the risk of loss that may arise on assets in the eventof 2
decling in their market valus as comparad to the price at which assets were acquired;

« Credit foreign exchange risk — represents probability that the Bank will incur a foss due to default of
the debtar in liability settlement within contractually defined terms, which is caused by adverss impact
of the RSD exchange rate changes on the debtor's financial situation;

. Concentration risk — represents a risk that is a diract or indirect outcome of the Bank's exposures
the same or similar risk factor or type, such as: exposure to a single entity or & group of related
parties, industies, geographical regions, types of products and activites, collatarals, financial
instrumants;

« Exposure risk - i a risk that can anse from the Bank's exposure o a single entity. group of related
entities or the Bank's related parties;

«  Country risk - relates to the borrower's country of arigin and represents the probability of negative
effacts on the Bark's financial result and equity due to the inabiiity 1o collect recevables from abroad
and is caused by political, economic ana social canditions in the borrower's country of origin
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54.

54.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit Risk (Continued)
I addition to the aforelisted risks, the Bank also monitors the following related risks:

«  Residual risk — is & risk that credit risk mitigation techniguss may be less efficient than expected,
Le. that their application is not sufficient 1o alleviate the risks the bank is exposad 1o

. Risk of reduced value of receivables — is a risk of possible emergence of negative effects on the
Bank's financial results and capital due to reduced value of repurchased recaivables for cash on
non-cash liabilities of the previous craditor to the debior,

« Settlementidelivery risk — is a risk of possible emergence of negative effects on the Bank's
financial results and capital due to counlsrparty detfault on free delivery transactions as of
contractually defined settiement/delivery date;

« Counterparty risk - is a risk of possible emergence of negative sffects on the Bark's financial
results and capital due fo counterparty failure to settle its liabilities prior to the ullimate settlement of
the transaction cash fiows, i.e, settiement of cash payment,

According to the volume, type and complexity of its operations, the Bank has organized the credit risk
management process and clearly delineated employes responsibilities in all stages of the process. The
organizational medel of credit risk management systam enables adequate sommunication, information
exchange and collaboration at all organizational levels within the Bank as well as clear operational and
organizational separation of functions for independent risk managament ard supparting activities on one
hand and the activities of risk assumption on the other, |2, segregation of dutiss compsiencies and
responsibilities. The Bank has aisc established an adequate information system for full coverage of
persans invalved in credit risk management system and appropriats managameant reporting.

The objective of cradil risk management is to minimize adverse effects of the credit rigk on the Bank's
financial result and equity based on balance sheet and off-balance sheel investments and operations
with counterparties for items carried in the banking bock

The level of credit risk exposure acceptable to the Bank is in line with the defined risk management
strateqy and depends cn the Bank's porifolic structure based on which negative effects on tha Bank's
financial result iz limted and capital reguirements for credit risk, sattlement/delivery and counterparly
rsk are minimized in order to mantain capital adeguacy at an acceptacle level The Bank spproves
lgans to (corporate and retail clients) which are estimated as creditworthy On the other hand the Bank
does not make high-risk investments such as investments in highly profitable projects with significant
rizk levels,

The basic principles of credit risk management are as follows:

«  Managing credit risk at the indwidual loan level as well as the Bank's entira portiolia leve!

«  Maintaining credit risk level that minimizes the nagative effects on the Bank's financial result and
capital;

= Investment rating according to risk;

»  Operating in accordance with best banking practices of loan approval,

s Ensuring adequate credit risk management controls
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54.
54.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit Risk (Continued)

In its effart to manage credi risk the Bank seeks to do business with customers that have good credit
rating and 1o acguire appropriate collaterals to secure repayments. The Bank assessas craditvorthiness
of aach customer upon the submission of a loan application and regularly monitors its debtors, loans
and coliaterals, in order to be able to undertake appropriate activiies for the purpose of coliecting its
receivables.

Credit risk identification invoives analysis of all indicators lsading 1o the emergence and increase in
credit risk exposure. The Bank determines the causes of the current cradit risk exposure in 3
comprehensive and timely manner and assessas such causes based on the incurred and projected
changes in the market as well as based on the introduction of new products and activities. The Bank's
cradit risk depends on the debtor creditworthingss its reguiarity in settiing liabilites due to the Bank and
collateral quality.

The Bank parforms guantitative andlor qualitative measurement. L& assessment of the dentified credit
risk, Tre credit risk measurement process is based on two parallel approaches:

« Regulatory approach — process of impairing investments and estimating provisians against losses
per off-balance sheet as required by [AS 3% and [AS 37 and calculating provisions pursuant 1o tha
reguiations of the National Bank of Sarbia:

» Internal approach — measuring risk level of indhvidual loans and investmeants based on the intarnally
adopted rating system

The rating system is not marely an instrument for forming individual decisions and assessing risk levels
of individuzl investments: it is also & basis for portfolic analysis, support in loan approval and loan
impairment procedure as well as in estimating provisions against losses par off-balance shaet items for
the purpose of loan and investiment ranking by risk lzvel and stating realistic value of receivables

In addition to the internal rating system, in cradit risk analysis the Bank also uses principles prescribed
by the National Bank of Serbia. which require classification of receivables and investments based on the
prescribed criteria as well as calculation of the reserve for estimated credit risk losses, Application of
these prnciples allows the Bank to cover unexpected losses due to the customer's inability to settle
lisbilitiss as thay fall due, in accordance with contractually defined terms. For these purpoges, lhe Bank
classifies receivables and assesses the level of necessary reserve using the regular analysis of portfolio
The analysis includes the measurement of adequacy of reserves formed against individual borrawers,
risk categorias, portion of portfolio and at overall portfolio level Reserves for estimated |osses represent 2
certain form of hedge against potential adverse effecis in case invested funds are not repaid when due and
i fulll

Prior to loan approval, the Bank assesses the creditworthiness of the borrower bazed on internally
defined criteria as & primary and offered collateral as a secondary source of collection/loan repayment.
Based on the identified and measured credit nsk level (assessed financial situation and credit
worthiness of the borrower, valus and legal security of the credit hedge and other relevant facters), and
independent risk assessment the Bank's competent bodies enacl & lean approval decision in
accordance with the dafined decision making system

Decisions on credit risk exposure are defined through the decision making system that depends on the
type of customer and exposure level for loans within defined limits decisions are made by the branch
credit commitess, although in certain cases approval of the risk management crganizational unit i5
requirad Central Credit Committes decides on the loans in exoess of the defined limits {depending on
the type of client) with pricr opinicn of the risk management crganizat:onal unit. The Executive Board
and Board of Diractors make decisions depending on the exposurs levels.
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54.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit Risk {Continued)

In decision making related to areas of crediting. rrespective of the decision making level, the principle of
double control, the so-called “four eyes principle,” is observed which ensures that there is always a party
that proposes and & party that approvas a particular loanfinvestment,

Faor investments confracted in foreign currencies or dinars indexed to a currency clause, the Bank
estimates the effects of the changes in foreign exchange rates on the financial siuation and
credinwarthiness of debtors and parliculary analvzes adequacy of the debtor’s cash flows in relation to
the changed level of lisbilities per loans assuming that there will be cerain fuctuation in RSD exchange
rates on an annual basis.

Alleviating credit risk entails maintaining the risk at the level acceptable to the Bank's risk profile, ie.
maintaining acceptable level of the Bank's lean portfalio.

The basic techniques for credit risk mitigation are as follows:

«  Exposurs limits — concentration nsk:
«  Investmeant diversification;

«  Collaterals, and

o  Residual risk,

The Bank's exposure [mits per individual debtor are based on the assessment of the debtor's credit-
worthiness, whereas the exposure limts at the portfolio level are focused on restricting exposure
concantration within the portfolio. The Bark continucusly controls credit rsk movements within a defined
risk profile

Concentrabon risk includes large exposurs {exXposure 1o a single entity ora group of related entities and
the Bank's related paries), group exposures with the same or similar risk factors such as industry
sectars, types of products, geographical areas and the like. county risk and credit risk hedges

Investrment diversificaton 1s amed at alleviating credit risk through reduction portfalio concentrations in
certain segmants of assels,

Monitoring investmant quality at the individual debter level is primarily based on obtaining updated
informaticn anthe fnancial situation and creditworthiness of the debtor as well as on the market value of
collateral, whersas credit risk monitoring at the portfolio level is parformad through entification of
changes at the level of cient groups with certain preset levels of risk, invesiment, collateral and required
reserves for estimated and unexpected losses for the purpose of establishing managsment of the asset
balances and quality, For protection against credit risk exposure, in addition to the regular monitering of
the customers’ business operations, the Bank contractually defines security instruments {collaterals),
which reduce credit risk.

In order to protect itself from changss in the market value of coliatersls (morigages. pledges. sscurities
elc ), the Bank adjusts the appraised collateral value for a defined percentzge depending on the
collateral type and location, which percentage is reviewsd at least annually or mere frequently as
appropriate. necessary In this way, the Bank protects itzelf from potential losses ansing from the
impossipility of collection of receivables through securnty instrument activation

Credit risk control entals a process of continuous reconciing business aperations with the defined
system of limits, bath on a daily and monthly bases, as well a5 under conditions of large credit exposure
approaching the upper risk profile imit. e upon introduction of new preducts and business activities.

£s & hedge against courterparty default risk. the Bank underakes the following steps in respect to
collection of due receivables:

+  Rescheduling or restructuring;

= Out-of-court settiement;

«  Seizure of goods or properties in order 1o collect receivables
« Sale andior assignment of receivablas;

«  Executing agresments with interested third parties; and

« Instigaling court proceedings and other measuras.
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54.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit Risk (Continued)

The Bark rescheduies ang restructures receivables from customers experiencing ceriain difficulties in
operations. If the underaken measures for regulating collection, e enforced collection and court
proceedings fal to provide expected rasults, e, when recaivables cannot be collectad in full, the Bank
inates write-off of the remaining receivables.

Apart from credit nsk exposure. the Bank also has off-balance sheet exposures (varous types of
payment and performance guarantees, acceptances and letters of credit) basad on which the Bank has
contingent liabilties to make payments on behalf of third paries. For off-balance sheat exposures the
Bank uses tha same control processes and proceduras that are used for creait risk.

Credit risk reporting includes internal and external reporting systems executed on a monthly basis
gcoording to a preset schedule and in conformity with the defined reporing system

Total Credit Risk Exposure

The largest cradit risk for the Bank anses from actual laan arrangements, however, the Bank is exposed
to the credit risk based on offbalance shesat items, which is caused by commitments and contingant
ligbilities. The total exposure to cradit risk is presented here in the gross amount before the effects of
risk alleviation and assel impairment

Breakdown of Assets (gross)

Aszets subject to

classification Other assets Tatal
2 2011 2012 211 2012 2011

1. Assets 197,880,638 176,157,075 47,310,323 57,652,715 245180962 234,008,780

Revocanls loans and deposits -

43083502 £5,260,711 43,053,502 A5.260.711

Interest, fee and commession
receivables and changes in
the fair value of derivatives

and ather recaivabies 3085 283 2,766,031 25 574 B1,440 3410857 2,827.47T1
Loans and advances to

customers 185 179 685 165,176 321 2,633 728 1233133 18BR,813.293 168 408 454
Ciner investmeanis 5943858 4 550 028 451,843 401 451 6,405,751 4,001,479
(Hher assels 2871933 3534 95 1,135,626 895980 ABOT.558 4,530,675
2. Other assets 16,818,528 4,863,737 71,412,029 44,201,587 88,230,557 49,065,324
Cash and cash equivalents 14,285 525 4,058,814 26,2458 652 13170156 40,514,180 17228970
Seouritias 1,748,287 170,428 30,604 103 25472157 41,352 300 25 542 583
Equity investments B04,713 34,437 5,858.274 5.558.278 §,363.987 §193.772
1, Off-balance sheet items 33,879,026 32,402,458 58,580 57.005 33,938,608 12,459,463
Payment quaraniaas o 7,145 564 - 7.AT0.828 7,145,564
Badormance bands 5770801 8,812 395 438 484 B.7TT1.239 G.812879
Acceptances 51,331 TT.B53 - - 51,331 TT.R63
Irravocable leters of credit Bl2,215 713,208 - - GOZ 218 713,306
Irravocabla commitments 17,753,588 16,324,380 55995 55,521 17,812 583 16,350,571
Dther B30, 260 1,328 580 147 F30.407 1,328 990

Downgrade Risk

The quality of the Bank's assels is measured by the level of exposure to individugt risk categories
according to intemal ratng system criteria. The intermal rating system focuses on guantitative and
qualitative parameters for assigning customer ratings. The rating scale consists of 5 risk categorias that
are subdivided into 17 subcategories. The rating scale is used as a uniform method for assigning
ratings which ensures that customars with the same rating have the same credit characierisbes and
the same probability of default in part or in full, over the period of ane year. The basic parameters
af credit nsk used in cetermining a risk subcategory are calculated and monitored on & monthly basis,
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54.

54.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit Risk (Continued)
Downgrade Risk (Continued)

& low level of fgk implies doing business with customers with a high credit rating {risk rating categones 1
and 2), ncreased level of risk implies doing businass with customers with operaling difficuities that could
have a negative impact on the settlement of liabilities (nsk rating calegory 3), and a high levet of risk
characiarizes customers with negative operating results and poor credit rating {risk rating categories 4
and 4).

The Bank guards against downgrade risk through continuous monitoring of customers business
operations and by identifying changes that could arise through deterioration of a borrower's financial
standing, delays in repayment and changes in the business environment as well as by secunng
appropriate coliaterals.

Overview of exposure per risk categories based on the Bank's internal rating system criteria

2012 o 2011 _——
Gross Net Gross Net
Rating category 1 71,872,424 71,576 748 58 380,230 5 238 652
Faling catagory 2 70,608,525 T0 254 585 52388 144 58,827,923
Rating category 2 22079618 21,945,781 268 080 158 25 468 042
Rafing category 4 6,481,071 5,785,028 1.246 381 1,288 420
Rating category 5 _ 26839001 11,555.438 20,982,142 5945 152
Total 197 880,635 181,127,529 176,157,075 160,885 1895

Risk of Change in the Value of Assels

Allowance for impairment of investmants is Intended to ensure reasonable, caulicus and timely
registering of losses on loan impairment, as well as to intarvens in respect of contingant liabilities with
a view to protect the Bank in the period when the loss ocours and is definitely confirmed (realized),
due to inability to collect contracted amounts or through outflow of assets to seftle contingent liabilities.

Allowance for imparment of investments and provisions are made when thers is justification and
objestive evidence of imparmant arising as the result of events that occurred afer initial recognition of a
ican, that have a negative effect on future cash flows associated with a foan

Kay slaments in assessing impaiment of investmants are as follows. overtdue payments on principal or
intarest, cash flow difficulties on the part of the borrower, the borrower's credit rating deterioration or
changes in the initial terms of contract etc

Allowance for mpaiment is based on estimated future cash flows from the borrower's business or
collateral foreclosure if it is assessed that a loan can be realistically settled from such assels
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54.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit Risk (Continued)

Overview of impairment per risk categories!

Impairment allowance of " Provisions for losses on
halance sheet assets off-balance sheet items
2012 2011 — 0te 2011
Rating categery 1 285 638 141,678 20:378 2830
Rating catagory 2 353,960 460,221 53086 77822
Rating catagory 2 133,837 612,150 36 355 a2
Rating category 4 586 043 58,941 56,659 187
Rating category 5 15,283,652 14,016,880 331104 335,666
Total 16,753 040 15,267 830 487 532 502,017

Assessment of Allowance for Impairment of Receivables
The Bank asseszes alowance for impairment of receivables on an individual and on a group basis

Individual Assessment

The Bank assesses impairment of each individually significant investment and considsrs the financial
position of the loan beneficiary, sustainability of its business plan, its ability to improve performance in the
avert of financial difficuities, income projections, avallabiity of other financial support and coliateral
value which can be realized, as ‘well as scheduling of expected cash flows. In the event of new
information coming to light that significantly alters the customers crediworthiness, value of
collateral and likelihood that lisbilities toward the Bank will be sefilec. ad hoc assessment of laan
impairment i perfarmead

Group Assessment

Impairment is assessed on a group basis for invesiments that are nol individually significant and for
individually significant loans and advances, when thers is no objective gvidance of indrvidual
impairment. Group assessment is performed manthly within groups that are determined based on
internal methodology and internal rating system. Group impairment perceniagas are caloulatad based
on migration of risk rating categories in default status per type of borrower or product. The obtainsd
migration percentages ars adjusied for collected receivables.

Impairment of lcans decreases the value of loans and = recognized a5 an expense in the incoma
zstatement.

Assessment of Provisions for Losses on Off-Balance Sheet ltems

Assessment of provisions for losses on off-balance sheel items {contingent liabilities) is performed
when it iz estimated that it is faidy cerain that an cutflow of assets will be required fo settle confingent
[fabilities.

In assessing provisions for contingent losses on off-balance sheet items, funds obtained by

activating collaterals are recognized if it is completely certain that cash cutfiows for contingent liabiities
will be settled from collaterals.
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54, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Determination of Probable Losses per Off-Balance Sheet Items (Continued)

Cverview of Individual and Group-Level Impairment Allowance of Balance Sheet Assets

Loans and Advances Equity Investments
2012 2011 2012 2011
. Individual impairment allowance ) =
Rating categony 1 298,180 218,183
Rating category 2 4,302,351 9,501,151 102300 37755
Rating category 3 5,832,408 10,331,259 34 525 10282
Rating categary 4 3,428,283 340,075 5328 ]
Fating category 5 22,952,340 17,27 S04 354,600 354,600
Loans and receivables, gross 36,616,409 37,454,350 304,713 B34,49T
Impairment allowance {13,199,817) {11,811,811) [443,038) (366,270}
Carrying amount 23,416,492 25,542,539 381,677 258,227
Il. Group-level impairment allowance
Rating category 1 66,429,041 54,545,360 - *
Rating category 2 49 827 681 47 254 447
Fating category 3 16,146 608 15741521
Rating categorny 4 3051, 788 995, 385 .
Rating category & 3.586.661 3690178 - -
Loans and receivables, gross 139,396,790 122,228,891 = -
Impairment allowance (3,553,123} (3,476,068} - -
Carrying amount 135,843,667 118,762,822 -
Il Receivables due but
not impaired
Rating category 1 497610 91.047 =
Raling category 2 5743228 13,381 -
Fating categony 3 7,379

Rating category 4
Fating category & . - - -
Loans and receivables, gross 6,784,838 111,807 - -
Receivables due but

not impaired include:

0-30 days past-due &,7617,200 51,047 u .
31-60 days past-dus 2353 13381 - -
61-80 days past-dus . 7.379 : =
91-180 days past-dus - -
Ower 180 days past-dus -
Carrying amount 6,754,838 111,807
IV. Receivables neither due

nor impaired
Rating category 1 439177 13,742 823
Fating category £ 10,690,225 2819165 -
Rating category 3 G4 349 -
Rating category 4 - - - -
Hating category & . 1
Carrying amount 15,082,602 18,362 027
Total carrying amount, gross 197,880,638 176,157,075 804,713 534,497
Total impairment allowance (16,753,040) (15,287,880} (443,038) [36,627)
Total carrying amount, net 181,127,599 150,869,195 361,677 268,227
Total unclassified assets 47,310,323 57.852,715 5,559,274 5,550,274
Impairment allowance {130,024) {110,443) (3,918} {3,918}
Tatal unclassified assets, net 47,180,299 57,742,272 5555356 5,555,356
Total 245,190,962 234,009,790 6,363,987 6,193,771
Rescheduled ! restructured loans 27.609,215 27545212
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54. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Concentration Risk

The Bank confrols concentration risk by establishing a system of limits 1o the exposures with the same
ar similar rigk factors {industry sectors/activities, product typas, geograpnical regions. single entities or
groups of related partes, collaterals...|. Establishment of appropriate sxposurs limits is the basis for
concentration risk control with the aim of loan portfolio diversifcation.

Breakdown of loans and advances per geographical region:

Serbia

Central Serbia
WVaojvoding

Kaosove and Metohiia
European Union
USA and Canada
Other

Total

Breakdown of loans and advances per industry:

Financial and insurance sector
Public companies and enterprises
Agriculture

Processing industry

Electricity production
Construction industry

Wholesale and retail

Service industries

Real estate and related activites
Entreprensurs

Public sector

Retail customers

Forgign entities

Other customers

Total

2012 2011
Gross Net Gross Net
190,675434 174,241,038 161,065,273 145,952,314
167,427 B06 152 387,501 1306883477 125882845
22,816,631 21,456 956 20,383,780 18,678,499
431.197 416,561 388,015 380.970
5,417,326 5,405,908 12,689,471 12,689,420
817,117 589,142 710,096 49,617
970,782 891,511 1,692,235 1,731,291
197,880,630 181,127,699 176,157,075 160,869,195
2012 2011
Gross_ Net Gross_ Net
7,522,661 7,376,033 8,968,327 B,789,317
121,686,186 111,199,272 97,775,612 §7,635,983
86115670 6 338468 4,868 015 4529383
35,368,608 32.175,340 35907 466 28,512,085
5,591,374 6,585,423 358237 358118
7,028,370 B.2683,070 8.775.505 8243455
40,428 296 38473427 33993579 32051084
19,057 840 17,868,578 10,130,164 8947 165
2,800,088 3,494 986 3,850,643 3494723
2,364,775 2,101,694 1,914,045 1,668,334
1,208,309 1,178,044 1,337,039 1,306,606
52,749,952 50,691,840 47,683,975 45,686,371
7,192,531 6,878,458 15,095,469 14,810,903
_ 5156,225 1,702,258 3,384,608 971,681
197,880,639 181,127,599 176,157,075 160,869,195

Decending on general economic trends in certain induslry sectors, the Bank diversifies its investments
in industrial sectors that are resistant o the impact of negative economis trends,
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54.

RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
Concentration Risk (Continued)

Breakdown of loans and advances per customer type:

2012 2011
Gross Met Gross Met_
Corporate sector 132,418,952 120,399,518 111,752,136 100,838,477
Large customers 82 287 783 TT 32647 84,439 780 55,524 145
Small and medium-sized chents 34,284 707 28,262 927 31,902 434 26,254 DGO
Other 15,866 482 15,003,944 15408 822 14,660,222
Banks 5,972,226 4,235,139 12,603,061 10,985,592
Retail sector 59,489,481 56,492 842 51,801,878 49,045 126
Private individuals 49,387 118 47 535,825 43,869 517 47 216,756
Agricultural producers 3,362,833 3056018 3,814 458 3,465,816
Micra businesses 8739510 _ 5801101 4117803 3,358.744
Total 197,880,638 181,127,599 176,157,075 160,869,195

Off-Balance Sheet ltems

In addition to credit exposure, the Bank also has off-balance sheet exposures (guaraniees, letters of
credit ) based on which the Bank has contingent liabilities to make payments on mehalf of third parties.
The Bank uses control processes and procedures for off-balance shest exposures identical to those
used fororedit risk

Off-Balance Sheet items

2012 201
Gross Met Gross Net
Rating category 1 15.542 410 15,522 032 14,771,155 14,762,525
Rating category 2 15 397 666 15,244 570 10,702 543 10,624,721
Rating category 3 1,798,744 1,760,389 6,163 987 6084275
Rating category 4 666,393 E0U 694 188,827 169 840
Rating category 5 475,813 144 708 574 048 238279
Gross [oans and receivables
{1-5) 33,879,026 33,381,394 32,402,458 31,900,440

Credit Risk Hedges (Collateral)

For the purpose of protection against credit risk, in addien to regular monitoring of the customsar
business coerations. the Bank alse acquires security instruments (collaterals) 1o secure the collection of
receivables and minimize credit risk. Depending on the assessment of the ability 1o settie contractual
liabiliies, the leval of loan coverage is defined so that in case of the debter default, the bank could
collect its receivables through collateral foreclosure, The quantity and fype of collateral depends on the
asseszed cradit sk

A& a standard type of loan secunty instrument, the Bank demands and receives fram clients contractual
authorizations for account withdrawals and bills of exchange, whereas, depending on the credit risk
assessment and loan type, additional collaterals agreed upon include the following:

» for commercial loans — pledge over movabls and immovabls property imortaages), deposits,
banking, corporate and state-issued guaraniass, sureties, pladge over securitias;

. for retail loans — morgages, deposits, co-sureties and insurance af the Maticnal Corporation for
Housing Loans.
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54.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit Risk Hedges {Collaterals) (Continued)

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

For valustion of property or pledges assigned over movable assets, the bank hires certified appraisers in
order to minimize potential risk of unrealistic valuation Property, goods. equiprment and other movabies
pledgad must ba insured by an insurance company acceptable to the Bank and insurance policias must

be duly endorsed in favor of the Bank.

Tha Bank monitors the market value of collaterals and if necessary, it can demana additional collateral

pursuant to the loan/deposit agreement exscuted,

It is the Bank's policy to ensure collection from collateral foreclosure and use the procesds therefrom to

reduce or repay debt

Fair Value of Collaterals

I Individual allowance for impairment
Mortgages

Deposits

Guarantees

Fiedged securties

Pledged property

GE!‘-EF

Total

Il. Portfolio-level allowance fer impairment
Mortgages

Deposits

Guaranteas

Pledgad securities

Pladged propsrty

Other

Total

Ill. Loans and advances due but not impaired
Mortgages

Deposits

Guarantees

Pledged securities

Pledged property

Cther

Total

IV. Loans and advances neither due nor impaired
Maorigages

Deposits

Giuaraniees

Pledged securities

Pledged property

Cther

Total

Total fair value

Loans and Advances

2012 2011
54,947 SHD 48 615,410
45,739 44 485
1027853 483,035
15,716,170 7.537.613
16,683,180 0747 063
16,161,024 5870979
104,582,055 72,098,585
158,585 770 159,205,028
1,515 945 1,588,415
10,350,091 11,251 591
18,851,733 26,972 375
45 956,435 18,885,791
44,115,848 34 360,564
280,178,821 252,265,766
357,022 1,383,436
1,199 34,573

708 46

1,178 456170
55,080 117 688
371,511 555 764
789,678 2,558,577
435874 285,977
43872 21.933

3 155

821 13,771
215148 164,047
338 450 527834
1,034,024 1,113,717
386,584,578 328,036,645
59
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54,

54.2.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit Risk Hedges (Collaterals) (Continued)

s of December 31, 2012, the Bank had at its disposal the following properties acquired through
collzction of receivables

Collaterals acquired through collection of loans

2012 201
Reszidential buidings 245614 307,391
Buziness pramises 935,405 BE2 667
Equipment B2 185 1,483
Land and forests B} 67,308 31.703
Total 1,334,522 1,003,254
Accumuiated depraciation {123,607} 4812
Fair value 1,210,915 998,442

Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk represents the risk of negative effects on the Bank's financial result and sguily resuiting
from the Bank's difficulty or inability to seffle its matured ligbiities in instances of nsufficient liguidity
resenves and inability to cover for unexpected outflows and other liabiltias.

The Bank operates in accordance with the basic prnciples of liquidity. mantaining a sufficient tevel of
funds to cover labiities incurred in the short term, ie. it observes the principle of schency by
establisting the optimal financial leverage and sufficient liquidity reserves which do not compramise
realizatian of the projected return on equity.

Liguidity risk represents the Bank's inability to settle its matured liabilites. Liguidity risk may be manifest
s the fick related to sources of funds and market liquidity risk, The preblem of liquidity in respact of the
sources of funds relates to the structure of liabilities and is expressed through potential significant share
of unstable and short-term sources of funds or their concentration On the other hand liguidity risk is
refisctad in reserves deficiency and difficulty or inability to obtain liquid assets al reasonable market
Drces,

The Bank nas established appropriate organizational structure, which allows for claar differentiation
between the process of assuming and the process of managing liquidity risk. Tha Assst and Liability
ttanagement Committes and Liguidity Committes have the most significant role tharsin as well as other
competent boards/committees, whose decisions can impact the Bank's sxposure to his fisk.

in arder to minimize liquidity risk, the Bank

Oivarsifies souces of assets in respect to their currencias and maturiies;

Farms sufficient liguidity resenes;

Manages maonatary funds;

Moniters future cash flows and liguidty levels on a daily basis;

«  Limits principal sources of credit risk with maost significant impact on liquidity: and

« Defines and periodically tests Plans for Liguidity Management in Crisis Situations.

= * @

The liquidity management process compnses identification, mrieasurement, minimizing, meonitoring, control
and liquidity risk regadting

In identifying liquidity risk, the Bank identifiss in a comprehansive and timely manner the Causas that
lead to the occurrence of liquidity risk determines current liquidity risk exposure as well as liguidity risk
exposure ansing from new business products and activities.
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£4. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
54.2, Liguidity Risk (Continued)

Measurement and assessment of liquidity nisk i1 the Bank is performead through quanfiative andlor
qualitative assessment of igentified liguidity risk by using the following techniques

»  GAP analysis,
«  Ratio analysis; and
= Stress test

Minimizing liquidity risk consists of maintaining this risk at a level that is acceptable to the Bank's risk
profie through definition of the system of exposure limits including both internal and statutory limits and
timely implementation of measures 1o mitigate the risk and operation within the sef internal and external
lirmits

Contral and monitoring of liguidity risk includss the process of monitanng compliance with internally
defined limits, and monitoring of defined measures for reducing the bank's exposuie o liguidity risk.
Liquidity risk control involves the control at all liquidity risk management levels as well as the
independent control system implemented by the bank’s arganizational units respansible for nternal audit
and compliance monitaring,

Liquidity rigk reporting consists of internal and external reporting syslems and s performed on g daily
basis and a =et schedule according 1o the cefined system. .

The Bank's operations are reconciled daily with legally prescrbed liguidity ratio and narrow liguidity
ratio. Trhe legally prescribed minimum and maximum values for thess ratios are defingd for one working
day. three consecutive working days and average for all working days within a manth. During 2012, the
Bank's liquidity and narrow liquidity ratios wers significantly in excess of the prescribad limits.

Limits Prescribed by the National Bank of Serbia Liquidity Ratio Narrow Liguidity

Ratio
For ona working day hin 0.8 Min 0.5
For three consecutive working days Min 0.9 Min 0.6
Average rato for all working days in a menth Min 1 Min 0.7

The Bank sets internal limits, based on the internal reparting on liquidity GAP

Compliance with internally defined limits of liquidity as of the last day was as follows:

Limits 2012 2011

GAP up to 1 month/Total assets tax (10%) 9.18% 9.03%

Cumulative GAP up to 3 months [ Total assels Max (205 9.21% 2.06%:

Compliance with externally defined limits of liquidity:
Liguidity Ratio Narrow Liquidity Ratio

2012 2011 2012 2011
Asg of December 31 218 281 2.04 25
Average for the period 238 2:25 2 177
taimum for the peried 339 A4 AT 2.58
Minimurm for the period 1.04 1.34 .83 110
T
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54.
54.2.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Liquidity Risk (Continued)

in addition, the bank limits and coordinates s operations with the |imits defined for the striciure of
liabilities and maturity per major foreign cumencies.

Maturity structure of monetary assets and monetary liabilities as of December 31, 2012

Upto1 From1 -3 From 3 -12 From1 -5 Owver &
manth months months yRars years Total
Caszh and cash equivalents 40,514,180 - - - 40,514,180
Ravecable deposits and foans 43,053,502 - - 43,053,502
Interast, fee and cammissian
receivabies and othear
receivables 1.547.342 - - 1,547 342
Loans and advances to
Customars 2 141 B8535 11,833,254 48,747 939 58,817 867 35 665,862 177,108,855
Securiies T.861,152 3,070,839 14,123,734 18172113 110,081 41,347,719
Equity investmems (interests) - - 5997033 5917.033
Olber investments 2370825 BE3I 035 30,884 412 - 3,227 BO&
Other azzets 1,525.954 5.199 4 TG 205,048 . 1,743,965
119,014,538 15,832,127 52,920,333 74,995,438 41 893,066 314,458,502
Transaction deposits 403,338,773 - - - 40,336,775
Other deposiis BE T8 BT 26,312,853 Bt.221,048 20,411,848 ATH.337 195,183,968
Borrowings 615,524 - - - 21,740 637264
Interast, fae and commission
pavables 188,910 - - - 188,810
(Hher Fabilities 5,207,018 81,574 1,414,838 15,648,865 2,316 196 24 968,08
113,107,089 26,694,437 £2,635,684 35,080,514 2,817,272 261315007
Liguidity gap
As of December 31, 2012 5,907 439 (10,862, 3100 19,715,351) 38,937 924 38,675,793 53,143,435
As of December 31, 2011 15,734,296 (31,228,017) {15,084,075) 33,342,377 35,042 447 37,606,028

The report on the maturity structure of monetary assels and [
itams distibuted according o maturities outstanding, 1.8 the ©
transaction and demand deposits will be withdrawn within one month

The Bank coliects deposits of corporate
periods and can be withdrawn at the client request. Sho
bank's liquidity risk and requires active liquidity risk managemeant an

trends.

Ir naar term, the Bank manages Sguidity risk by morn
if order to identify the needs for additional funding i
items, i.e. in the long term. the Bank plans the structure of its funding sou
to provice sufficient stable funding scurces and liquidity resarves.

The Bank's management believes that adeguate dive
type of deposiors as well as histo
long-term deposit base, fe no signi

The Bank tests the Plans for Liquidity Management in Cr
potential crisis. checks ine survival period and sclvency, avai
arse and assesses the support

rical experience prov
ficant outfiow of funds is expected thereol.

atiiliies includes monetary balance sheet
anservative assumption was used that &l

and retail customers which commaonly have shorter raturity
r-term nature of such deposits increases e
d constant monitoring of market

toring and controling items in all major currences

n a tmely manner in case of

maturities of certain
roes and investments in ordar

reification of the depost portiolic per number and
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54,
54.3.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Market Risk

Market risk represants the possibility of ocourrence of negative effects on the Bank's financial result
and equity due to changss in market variables and comprises interest rate nisk, currency risk for all
business operations and price risk far all itermns in the trading boak.

The Bank is exposed to interest rate risk, currency sk, nsk of securites fluctuatians, counterparty risk
and risk of settlemant related to trading book items. The trading book contains balance sheet and off-
halance sheat assets and liabilities related to financial instruments that the Bank holds for sale or to
hedge other financial instrurments that are maintained in the trading book.

The Bank has established appropriate organizational structure, which allows for clear differentiation
betwean the process of assuming market risks and the process of managing those risks. The Asset and
Liability Management Committee and Investment Commities have the most significant role therein as
well as other competent boardsicommitiees, whose decisions can impact tha Bank's exposure to this
rsk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk represents the probability of negative effects on the Bank's financial result and aguity
through items of the banking general ledger due to gdversze interest rate fuctuations. The exposure to
this risk dapends on the refation betwaen the interest rats sensitive assets and liabilities.

The Bank manages the following types of interest rate risk

«  Repricing risk of emporal mismatch between matunty and repricing,

. Yield curve risk — to which tha Bank is exposed due to changes in yield curse shape;

. Basic risk — to which the Bank is sxposed dus to different referance interest rates for interest rate
sarsitive itams with similar maturity or repricing characteristics; and

«  Optionality sk — to which the Bank s eaposed due 10 contractually agreed optional terms — loans
with an option of early repayment. deposits with an eption of early withdrawsal, etz

Basic objective of interest rate risk management is maintaining the accepiable level of interest rate risk
exposure from the aspect of the effect on the financial result, by conducting adeguate policy of matehing
periods of interest rale reprcing, matching adeguate sources to investmeants per interest rals type arnd
maturity, as wall 23 projecting movements in the yield curve in both forgign and domestic markets.
Primarily. the Bank manages the internal yigld margin through the prices of loans and daposits, focusing

an the interast rate margin

The Bank pariicularly considers the effects of interest rate changes and changes in the structure of
interest-bearing assets and liabiities from the perspective of maturty, nterast rate repricing and
currency structure and manages the effect tharect on the econamic valug of eguity

The process of intersst rate risk management consists of identification, measurement, minirmizing,
menitaring. control and interest rate risk reparting

|danfification of interest rate risk consists of comprehensive and timely identification of the causes and
factors that lead to the cocourrence of interest rate risk. which includes determining current interest
rate risk axposure, as well as interest rate risk exposure arising from new business products and
sctivities.

Measurement and assessmeant of interest rate risk al the Bank is performed through guantitative andior
qualitative assessment of identified interast rate risk by using the following techniguas:

« GAP analysis;

= Ratio analysis

« Duration;

« Ecornemic value of equity; and
+« Siress test

ra
Transiation of the Auditors’ Repart Issued in the Serbian language




KOMERGIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All armounts expressed in thousands of RS0, unjess otherwise stafed

54,

54.3.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued})
Market Rizsk (Continued)
Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

Minirmizing interest rate risk means maintaining thiz risk at a level that s acceptable for the Bank’s risk
orofile. Alleviating interest rate risk refers to the process of defining the systems of limited exposure of
the Bank to the interest rate risk and implementing measures for interast rate nsk mitigation. Sontrol anag
monitoring of interest rate fisk entails the process of monitoring compliance with tha established system
of limits as well as monitoring defined measures for reducing the Bank's exposure ta the interest rate
risk Control of interast rate risk refers to control on &l managament leve's as well as an indepandent
control system implementad by the organizational units responsible for internal audit and compliance
monitoring.

interest rate risk reporting consists of an internal system of reporting to competent boards/committeas and
the Bank's inferest rate risk management bodies.

Internal limits are determined based on the internal report on the interest rate GAP, which includes all
the balance sheet items.

Compliance with internally defined interest rate risk limits at the last day was as follows:

_ Limits 2012 0 20m1
Relative GAFP Max 15% [ 4250 {7.23%)
Mismatch rato 075 =128 0.94 021

During 2012, interest rate risk ratios wers within internally prescribaad limits

Tha Bank has defined intemal limits for interest rate risk exposure per major Currency a5 well a5 the imit
of the maximum economic value of equity

Compliance with internally defined limits of economic value of equity:

2012 2011
As at Decermoer 371 537% 10.53%:
Average for the year G 16% 10.7 1%
paximum for the year 11:00% 11.81%
Wi for the year 5.37% 9 93%
Lirmut 20% 20%

The exposure to intsrest rate risk can be raviewed through the Report on Interest Rate AR in monstany
assets and liabilities as follows:

74
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54, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

54.3. Market Risk (Continuad)

Interast Rate Risk (Continued])

The Report on Interest Rate GAP in monetary assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2012

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

Up to 1 From1-3 From3-12 From1 -5 Cver & Interest- Noan-Interest
Month  Months Manths Years Years Bearing Bearing . Total

Cash and cash equivakants 15 BRG 45D - = - 10,886,483 20,627 5O7 A%, 514,150
Revocshle loans and dapasits 4,004, C0d 4 G0C 000 39083 502 43 085 502
Interesl, fee and commissan

recaivablas and changas in

e fair value of denvatives

and other récervables - - 1,547,342 1,547,342
Loans and advances 1o
CUSIOMETS LEOPIGSR 21027461 45 STE 218 31565761 17.532.47 177,106, 885 - 177,105,855
Sacurities 7,853 449 5801,067 13581201 1,737,176 14 182 965 2164 754 41,347,718
Equity investments (intarasts) . - - - - 587,033 5.817033
Other invesimants 1,341 811 178 78S 34,2147 1,545 823 167073 3227 555
Other 2ssois . - - S st - = 1,743 965 1.723 565
Total 91302693 27,101,323 B2585718 43,502927 17522477 243725438  TATI 1,386 314,468,502
lransaction deposis 40,3036 776 - - - - 40,336,778 - 40,535 778
Other depasis TORLNTIE 23150793 B0E33ET1 20409943 479337 145,153,065 185 183,968
Borrowings 516,010 - - - 21,254 BAT 264 B37 264
Irterast, fea @ng cammission

pavables and changes in

tha fair valua of dermatives - - - - - fas B 186,910
Hiner lighitities 2,342 325 * - 5E13.518 B, 2683 748 14212588  10,746.450 24,965 062
Total 111.B06,828 23,150,283 80833671 26,023 485 6754338 250,377,587 108937410 261,315,007
Interest rate GAP
- at Decamber 31, 2012 52 22533.136 3,551,030 (18,037,955 17,278,462 10,758,138 B.652.461) 61,795,956 53,143,495
- at December 31, 2011 {7,365, 346) (22,?29.21 4) {29 537,253) 18,813,297 20,889,432 _:."I 9,828,083 57735111 17,806,028

ipterast rate nsk GAP report of monetary subbalance includes monetary balance items distributed
according to the shorter of perind of interest rate repricing and maturity cutstanding. In accordance with
the aforesaid, the conservative assumption 15 usad that all ransactions and demand deposits will be
withdrawn within gne menth.

The Bark's management balieves that appropriate comphance of pusitions per interest rate typs and
interest rate repricing period constitutes a solid prerequisite for existence with requirad financial results
achiaved and maintenance of econemic value of eguity.

Currency Risk

Currency risk represents the possibility of negative effects on tha Bank's financial result and equity
due to fAuctuations in exchange rates between currencies, fluctuations in the domestic currancy with
raspect to foreign currencies or changes in the value of gold and other precious metals. All items in
the banking bock and the trading book that are denominated in a foreign currency and gold. including
dinar items indexed to foreign currency clause are exposed o CUrmency risk

In arder to minmize the currency risk exposure. the Bank diversifies the currenty structure of s portfolic
and currency struciure of liabilities, reconciling open positions in cerain curencies pursuant to the
principles of maturity transformation. The Bank has established appropriate arganmzational structure,
whicn allows for clear differentiation between the process of assuming currency sk and the process of
managing currency fisk. The Asset and Liability Managerment Committee has the most significant rola
therain as well as other competent boardsicommitiess. whose decisions can impact the Bank's
exposure to his risk.
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54,

54.3.

RISK MAMAGEMENT (Continued)
Market Rizsk (Continued)
Currency Risk (Confinued)

The process of currency risk managemsnt entails identifying, measunng, frinimizing, monitoring. control and
currency fisk reporting.

In identifying currency nsks, the Bank dentifies ina comprehensive and timely manner the cavses that
lead to amergence of currency risk and inciudes the delermination of current cumency risk exposure, as
well as currency risk exposure resulting from new business products and activities, by items that are
recorded in the banking bock and the trading book,

Measuramant and assessment of currency risk in the Bank is performed through quantitative andior
qualitative assessmant of dentifisd currency risk by using tne following technigues:

GAP analysis and currency risk ratio,
VaR analysis,

Siress test,

Back testing

Relieving foreign currency risk entails maintenance of risk at an acceptable leval for the Bank's risk
profile through the esteblishmeant of a transparent sysiem of limits and defining measures usec 10
mitigate foreign currancy nsk.

Control and monitoring of e currency risk consists of observation and supervision of compliance with
internally and externally defined limits as well as monitonng of defined and implemented measures.
Continuous manitoring and control of forsign currency risk during the day ensures timely undertaking
measures for the purposs of maintaining the currency risk within defined limits. Fareign currency risk
control means control at all management levels as well as independant control system implemented by
the organizational units responsiole for internal audit and compliance monitoring. Reporting on curréncy
risk includes internal and external reporting systemns, it is performad on a daily basis and according to
set schedules and in accordance with the dafined system

The Bank reconciles its business operations with the prescribed forsign currency rizk ratio, which
rapresents the ratio between the total net foreign currency balance and the position of golid relative to the
Bank's reguiatory capital

An overview of the total currency risk balance and legally defined currency risk ratio as at
December 31:

2012 2011

Total currency risk balance 333,032 452 B0
Currency risk ratio 0.82% 1.68%
Legally-definad limit 20% 20%
T8
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54.

54.3.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Market Risk (Continued)

Currency Risk {Continued)

Summary of Monetary Assets and Monetary Liabilities per Currencies as of December 31, 2012

Dther Currency
. EUR _uUsp  CHF _ Currencies  FX Total Clause _ RSD Items Total

Cash and cash equivalents 12,404 575 &71,5458 1838911 213058 B 016,053 - 24487 187 40514120
Revocable deposils anc

loans 31.586;883 T A86.B15 - 39,053,502 4. 000,000 43,053,502
Interast, fes and cammission

recenvables and changes in

the fair valie of derivatives

and piber receivables G2.936 892,928 TE.E22 1,375 8584 1,547,342
Loans and advances 1o

cuskmiens 16,205 484 2. 058 516 272,330 18,536 310 115,146,960 42 4275 585 177,106,885
Securites 22 383 025 - - - 22,583,026 70, TE 41347719
Equity imieaiments - - 9 5,917,033
Cner invastments 1,545 566 BT 422 - - 2266, 8E - S50, 908 3 227 655
Crther assets 272,793 81,258 1] A34,095 40,205 1,564 665 1,743, 965
Tatal B4,621,248 _ 11,129,363 _ 1836911 _ 1.086328  98.883850 11 16433388 99.341.264 314,498,502
Transacton deposits 12,131,445 1,108,280 589 BGE 111,450 13,920:852 26,415,924 40,538 778
Oner deposiks 150 620,623 9E2E 614 5433222 855 328 186881 987 10,134, 825 18,157,152 195,183 968
Barrowings 297,703 51,8980 13,095 327 356,047 #1254 SA9 853 B37. 264
tmterest, foe and commisson

payables and changes in

the fair valus of darivatives 48531 255 - 125 5,041 3,184 180,685 186910
Qikher Labildes 21377422 83,737 1,847 357 H8, 054 23.461,580 494 1,506,015 24 068 08
Total 184,491,825 11,152,106 T.963,338 1,038,238 _ 204645507 _ 10159761 _ 46508738 261315007
Met currency position
December 31, 2012 [99,850.57T) (22,743)  (6,126427) 48,000  [105961,857) 1062738627 52,631,525 53,143,495
December 31, 2011 (37.615,842) 12,317 {5,782 558} 10,709 ¢_§3.4ﬂ"9.ﬂ1ﬂ} 52,544 426 G3B.271,420 37,606,028

54 4. Operational Risk

Operational sk represents the poss
due to employee erors {intentior
Eank, inadequate management of in

val or accidental), inade

unforeseen external events. Operational risk includes legal risk.

Operational risk is defined as an eventtha
internal processes employes and systern actions of system and other external &
external abuses. hinng and security practces at ihe workplace, customer rece

bility of negative effects on the Bank's financial result and equity
quate procedurss and processes in the
tormation and other systems in the Bank. as well as occurrence of

v accurred as the result of inappropriate o unsuccessful
vents, internal and
vables, product

distributior. fines and panalties for infractions, damage incurred to propany, disruptions in aperatons
and system errors and process management,

Tha Bank menitors operational nek events according 1o the foliowing business lings corporate finanoing,
wrade and sales, retail brokerage senvices, comporate banking, retail banking, payment transfars, agency
services and assat management.

The process of cperational risk management represents an integral par of the Bank's activities
conducted on all levels and ensures identification. measunng, relieving, monitoring and reporiing
continually on operatonal risks ahsad of their realization, as in accordance with the legal requirements
and deadiines. The existing process relies an known methods of maasuring operational risk exposures,
database on operating losses, an updated control and reporting system,

7T
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54.

54.4.

54.5.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Operational Risk (Continued)

The Bank monitors operational risk events daly and manages operating nisks. For the purpose of
efficient operational risk monitaring, the Bank appoints employeas who are in charge of operational risk
with the objective of monitoring operational risk in its every organizational part, where such
emplayees are responsible for accuracy and timeliness of information about all operational rsk events
that oocur in their organizational unit, as well as for keeping records about all such events in the
cperational risk datsbase The organizational par of the Bank which is responsible for risk
managament monttars and reports operational risks fo the Bank's Board of Directors, the Bank's
Executive Board and the Audit Committes.

Mezsuremeant and assessment of operational risk at the Bank is done througn guantitative andior
gualitative assessment of identified cperational nsk. The Bank measurss operational risk exposure
through event records, self-assessment and stress testing, Self-assessmant consists of assessment of
risk exposure by organizational units based on the readman far identifying operating risks, through
measurement of potential ranges and frequencies of events that can result in losses, identification of
levels of control that business areas must maintain over these risks and measuUres of improvarmeant. Stress
test represents an operational risk management techmique which s usad o assess potential effects of
specific events andior changes in several financial variables on the Bank's exposure to operational risk.

The Bank cannot eliminate all operational risks. but by introducing & rigorous frarmework of contral,
micnitoring and response o potential risks it s capable of managing fhess risks The Bank fakes
measures in order to relieve operational risks and ensure proactive response to avents potentially
creating operational risks through continued monitoring of all activiies, application of adeguate and
religble infarmation system and by applying project approach orientation. tne implemeantation of which
helips improve the business practics and optimize the Bank's business processes,

Trrough refiable reporting an the impiementation of measures undertaran 1o mitigate operational risks,
the Bank has established a system for monitoring the activities undertaken by the Bank's arganizational
parts in order © reduce arising operational risks. The Bank zssess the risk of entrusting third parties
with activities related to the Bank's operations and based on the senice contracts grecuted with such
third parties which clearly defing terms, rights, ebiigations and responsibilities of the contracting parties.

With the ohiective of smooth and continued operation of all significant systems and processes in the
Bank, and to limit iosses that could be incurred in extraordinary circumstances, tha Bank adopted the
Business Continuity Plan in order to ensure the restoralion and recovery of the infermation technology
systams in the event of interruption or stoppage of operations. the Bank adopted the Disaster Recovery
Pian.

The Bank's Investment Risk

The Bank's investment risk relates to the risk of investing in other entities and capital expenditures. The
Bank's investments in a non-financial secior entity cannol exceed 105 of the: Bank's edquity, whereby
such investments entail investments through which the Bark acquires equity intersst or shares in & non-
financial sector antity, The total Bank's investmeant in non-financial sector entities and Bank's own fixed
assatz cannat exceed 60% of the Bank's equity, but this restriction does not apply to the acquisition of
shares for further trading and sales thereof within six months from the acquisition date
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54.

54.6.

RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
Exposure Risk

Large sxposures of the Bank to a single entity or a group refated entities, including Bank's related
parties, are exposures amounting to over 10% of the Bank's capital

In its operations, the Bank takes care of the compliance with statutory exposure limits:

+ The Bank's exposure to a single party or group of related parliss cannot exceed 25% of the Bank's
equity;

« Tre Bank's exposure to & pary that is related to the Bank cannot exceed 5% of the Bank's
squity, while total exposure to the Bank's related parties cannot excead 20% of the Bank's equity,

« The aggregate amount (sum) of the Bank's large exposures cannot exceed 400% of the
Bank's aquity.

The Bark's exposure to & single party of group of relsted parties, as well as exposure to the Bank's own
related pamies, wera within the prescried limits.

Country Risk

Country risk relates to the risk of the country of ongin of the entty the Bank is exposed o, le. he
possibility of nagative effects on the Bank's financial result and squity dus to inabiliy to collect
recefvables from abroad and is caused by political. econcmic and social condiions in the borrower's
country of origin. Country risk includes the following risks:

. Political and aconomic risk ralates tothe lkelhood of losses due i@ the inability to collect the Bank's
recaivables because of detenoration in macroeconomic stability. due to limitations prescriped by
govarnment regulations or due t other structural changes in the econarmy of e given Couniny;

«  Transfer risk relates to the probability of losses due to the inability to collact receivables ina currency
which 15 not the official currency in the borrower's country of origin, dus to limitations t© liability
settlement toward creditors from other countries in specific currancy that is predetermined by the
official state regulations and bylaws of state and othar bedies of the horrower's country af crigin.

Measurement of country risk is made per indiidusl lnans and advances and at the Bank's portiolic level
Measurement of exposure of an individual recevable to country risk is based an the country rating of the
Bank's borrower's country of ongin as defned by internationally recognized agencies. while measurement
of portioiio exposure to country fisk is based on setfting Imits to exposure in terms of a percentage of the
Bank's equity, depending on the intemal country rating category The Bank measurss and controls
porticlio exposure to country risk by grouping receivables by level of nsk of the borrower's country of
orgin.

For the purpose of adsguate country risk control, the Bank defines exposure lmils by Sountries of
ragions.

The Bank's investrments approved to the borrowsrs domiciled outside of the Republic of Serbia for
financing businesses in the Republic of Serbia, whose financial obligations to the Bank are expacled o
be setted from the operatng results achisved in the Republc of Serpla, represent the Bank's
receivables without exposurs to the risk of the borrowars country of arigin.

Translation of the Auditors’ Report issued in the Serblan language




KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
All amaunts expressed in thousands of RS0, unfess ofhenwise slaled.

54.
54.8,

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Capital Management
The Bank manages capital on a continuous Dasis in order to:

«  Ensure the business continuity in the unlimited period of foreseeable future;

«  Preserve optimal equity struciure;

+«  Minimize capital costs;

«  Hedge risks,

. Ensurs growth, by widening the range of its senices i.e. the Bank's development of new softwars
and methodology solutions.

«  Preservation of customer trust in the Bank's financial patential

The Bank's regulatory capital represents the sum of share capital and additional capital, reduced for
deductible items The capital adequacy ratio represents the proportion of bank capital and sum of assets
weighted by credt risk, open foreign currency posiions and exposure to operaticnal nsk. Risk-weighted
halarice sheet and off-balance shest items are determined pursuant to risk weights prescribed far all
types of assels, Exposure to operational risk s determined by multiphying the reciprocal value of the
preseribed capital adequacy ratio by the capital requirement for operational risk, which represent a
three-yaar average of the product of sxposure indicaters for all lnes of business by the prescribed
capital requirement rates for each individual business line,

Capital adeguacy ratio

2012 2011
Core capital 50, BO6 348 41,745 118
Additional capital 5329728 5,852 703
Deductbls items (15,648 210 __{2'3.555.3221!
Capital 40,377,866 26,946,499
Cradit risk-weighted assets 169,333,007 142,142,319
Operational risk exposure 15,186,808 14,105,358
Capital adequacy ratio (max. 12%} 21.88% 17.25%

Ifi the course of 2012, the Bank's capital adequacy ratio was in excess of tha prescribed regulatory mit
of 12%.

Through its capital managemant strategy and plan the Bank controls and ensures maintenance of the
lavel and structure of the internal capital, which adequately supports increase in loans and advances,
future sources of funding and their utiizations, dividend policy and changes in regulatory requirements,

As part of tne system of capital management, the Capital Management Plan, includes the following:

«  Strategic goals and scheduls for realization thereof

«  Manner of organizing the process of available internal capital management;

«  Procedures for planning adeguate levels of available internal capital]

«  Manner of reaching and maintaining adequats levels of avallable internal capital; and
« The Business Continuity Plan in case of unforeseen events

The Bank cantinuously implements processes of internal assessment of capital adequacy in accordance
with the nature, volume and complexity of it business operations and in compliance with the adopted
risk management strategy, individual risk management policies and capital management strategy.
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54,

54.8.

55.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Capital Management (Continued)

As a documented and continuous process, internal assessment of capital adeguacy meats the following
criteria;

« itis based on nsk identification and measurement;

s it provides comprehensive assessment and monitoning of risks the Bank s or may e exposed 10,

« it provides adequate level of intemally available capital according o the Bank's nsk-weighted
portfolio;

«  itis included in the Banka management system and decision making process; ana

+ itz subject o regular analysis, supervision and review.

Stages of the internal captal adequacy assessmentincluda the following

determination of materially significant risks as per qualitative and quantiatve critens]

caloulztion of the amaunts of internal capital requirements;

determination of the aggregate internal capital reguirernent;

comparison of the following elements:
= capital to available intarnal capital,
= minimum prescribed capital reguirements to intemal capital requirements for individuzal risks; and
& zum of the minimum capital requirements to the aggregate internal capital requiremant

L I

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Unreconciled outstanding item statements

Based on the anaiysis of the reguiar annual invantary count perfermed as of December 21, 2012, the
Bank has unreconciled outstanding itern statements in the amount of RED 478 thousand. Statement
unreconsilad with 24 custorners mostly relate to the clients which contest the amount ar the manner of
calsutation of interest and fees.

Unrealized preferred dividends

Urnrealized preferred dividends for disbursement in 2013 total:
_RSO 37 351 thousand from the year 2012 (10% for the individual par value of the preferred shares)

a1
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56. SEGMENT REPORTING

A) Balance as at December 31, 2012

Interest, fee and
Commission incomes

Interest, fee and
COMMISSIon expensas

Dther income (foraign
gxchange gams,
revarsal of impairmeant
allowance and othar
income}

Other expenses (foreign
gxchange lossas,
impairmant allawance
and ofher expenses)

Operating result before

operating expenses

Operating expensss

Profit before taxation®

Assets per segment

Loans and advances

Special reserve

Other

Liabilities per segment

Deposits

Other resources {loan
facilties and
subordinated debt)

Other habilities

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

Investment
Corporatel  Banking and
Retail Sector Legal Entity Interbank
Operations Operations Operations Other Total
9,069 320 11,838,415 4,770,060 - 25 465 754
(6,044 113) (2451 989) (1504 910) - (10,001,012)
9,717,064 18.686,5813 BE4 926 1075137 30,373,740
[(15.404,415; (13,050,875 (2oce 7T {689.113)  [31.452873)
{2 872,144} 14,830,364 2,141 308 56,024 14 385 550
- - = - (9.812,887)
- - 4 572 682
a7 400,214 138834124 76,480 199 14,473,238 324 187 772
56,360,007 123,162,951 55623 887 - 233146855
41,040 207 15671473 2 035 887 - 58 747,047
- . 20,820,635 11,473,238 32,293,871
164 532 856 52,826 TEE 28066627 £ B4 064 264 321,213
164 532 866 G2 526,756 £.1681,123 - 235 520,744
- 19 805,504 - 18,805,504
_ . - B 694 554 B.594585
= Resuits per segment do not include effects of the inter-segment relations
a8z
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56. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

B) Balance as at December 31, 2011

Investment
Corporatef Banking and
Retail Sector Legal Entity Interbank
_ Operations Operations  Operations Other Total
Intarest, fee and
COMMISSIoN INComs T.880.524 10,877 524 4 228.717 - 23087 765
Interest, fee and
COMMISSIon expenses 15,381 227) (2.515,392) (914 380, - (8,810 958
Other income (foreign
exchange gains,
reversal of impairment
allowance and other
income) 5410223 14478 078 SBE, 287 754948 22,207,574
Other expenses (foregn
exchanges losses,
impairmant allowance
and other expenses) (5,301.828) (14,377,243, (HEG 500y (1.870.966) (23.638633)
Operating result before
operating expenses 2B07 594 8,560, 865 2,895,004 (1,118,018} 12,947 645
Operating expenses - - 2 - (8,995,578
Profit before taxation® - - - . 3.952 066
Assets per segment 55 854 965 115,847 205 61,649,378 12443170 275488718
Loanz and advances 48935 180 101,452,915 51,667 763 - 202055868
Special reserve 3813778 14,384 220 1.745076 - 52,753,141
Other - - 8,236,539 12443170 20678709
Liabilities per segment 145,081 6847 bE.243 085 21627 881 10,280,778 231213152
Deposits 143,081,847 55,243,085 6,818 568 - 208123 280
Other resources (loan .
facilitiss) - 14,809,093 - 14,809,093
Other ligbilitizs - - . 10,280,778 10,280,778

* Results per segment do not include effects of the inter-segment relations,

57. EXCHANGE RATES

The official exchange rates for major currencies as determined in the interbank currency market and
usad in the transiation of balance shest components denominated in foreign currencies into dinars
(RSD) as of December 31, 2012 and 2071 ware as follows.

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

UsD BE.1783 202862
ELIR 113:7183 104 8408
CHF G4 1522 859121
83
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2. ANNUAL REPORT ON BANKS OPERATION

1. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

BALANCE SHEET in 000 RSD
Balance-sheet assets (000 RSD) 324,187,773 275,488,718 255,868,309 205,257,221 170,861,369
growth in percentage 17.7% 7.7% 24.7% 20.1% 16.1%
Off-balance sheet operations (000 RSD) 204,642,280 183,524,897 145,180,526 66,248,482 59,365,257
RETAIL in 000 RSD
Loans and advances (000 RSD) 55.917.000 48.555.491 45.372.699 38.831.745 34.827.292
growth in percentage 15.2% 7.0% 16.8% 11.5% 43.3%
Deposits (000 RSD) 164.532.866 143.061.647 130.964.790 104.438.978 76.933.266
growth in percentage 15.0% 9.2% 25.4% 35.8% 13.1%
CORPORATE in 000 RSD
Loans and advances (000 RSD) 118,860,421 98,486,288 90,244,925 75,091,060 69,347,419
growth in percentage 20.7% 9.1% 20.2% 8.3% 59.7%
Deposits (000 RSD) 62,826,756 56,243,065 61,540,409 57,966,269 49,787,113
growth in percentage 11.7% -8.6% 6.2% 16.4% -4.9%
LOANS TO DEPOSITS RATIO in percentage
Gross loans/deposits 80.2% 80.7% 80.9% 74.6% 86.7%
Net loans/deposits 75.2% 75.5% 75.6% 68.8% 79.9%
CAPITAL (000 RSD) 59,866,560 44,275,566 41,054,428 27,276,381 25,433,143
Capital adequacy in % 21.88% 17.25% 17.14% 14.82% 13.60%
Number of employees 2,989 3,022 3,101 3,155 3,209
Assets per employee in (000 EUR) 954 871 782 678 601
PROFITABILITY INDICATORS
Profit before tax (000 RSD) 4,572,662 3,952,066 2,791,964 2,055,495 2,815,222
ROA 1.51% 1.53% 1.15% 1.06% 1.76%
ROE - on share capital 15.05% 13.89% 12.27% 12.05% 18.61%
ROE - on total capital 9.44% 9.21% 6.98% 7.78% 11.90%
Net interest margin on total assets 3.8% 3.1% 3.3% 3.9%
Net interest income (000 RSD) 10,910,317 9,853,368 7,437,483 6,334,099 6,300,214
Net fee and commission income (000 RSD) 4,554,466 4,423,399 3,892,459 3,531,165 2,767,714
Cost income ratio 63.5% 63.0% 74.7% 80.5% 81.2%
Operating expenses (000 RSD) 9,812,888 8,995,578 8,462,471 7,940,766 7,363,183
z)%togg'gg)f“’m eiEge i 95,890 152,498 1,141,520 1,245 486 2 410,976
Net expenses for indirect loan write-offand  ~ REEWPPIPIYY 1335461 1416354 1,365,223 -1525237
provisions (000 RSD)
Asset quality - NPL 13.1% 10.7% 11.1% 11.8% 11.9%
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2. MACROECONOMIC OPERATING
CONDITITIONS

Continued recessionary tendencies and a decrease
in GDP of 0.4% in the Eurozone, as well as
traditional slow-down in economic activity during
the election and in the wake of it, accompanied by
adverse weather conditions during both summer
and winter season, all had a negative effect on
Serbian economy in 2012, resulting in estimated
decrease in GDP of 2 %. However, industrial
production recorded its first signs of recovery in the
final  quarter,  primarily  thanks to ol
pharmaceuticals, chemical and  automobile
industry. Key factors that contributed to a fall in
economic activity in 2012 were US Steel’s exit, due
fo increase in price of input and decrease in
demand in the global market, extremely bad
agricultural ~ season  (resulting in  decreased
production by 20%), absence of foreign direct
investments (until November 2012 EUR 137 million
- net, including, among other things, the effect of
purchasing Telekom shares from Greek OTE)
despite the continuation of the Government’s credit
support program, by means of which approx. EUR
950 million was invested in subsidized loans. More
considerable effects of growth of automobile
industry, announced infrastructural  projects,
modernization of PanCevo oil refinery and
investments in NIS are expected in 2013.
According to the latest official data, unemployment
figure is 22.4% (September 2012).

TRENDS IN GDP in %
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Considerable increase in current account deficit in
2012 to 10.5% of GDP came primarily as a
consequence of the deficit in the balance of trade
of EUR 5.9 bn. NBS’s expectations are that the
current account deficit will decrease in 2013 (8.1%
GDP) as a result of further expansion of oil and
automobile industry, anticipated recovery of
agricultural production and implementation of
measures aimed at fiscal consolidation.

2012 budget revision marked a process of fiscal
consolidation that was initiated in September after
an exceptionally expansionist fiscal policy,

especially in the first half of the year, and after
exceeding the limit set by law at 4.5% of GDP,
which was the key cause for postponed revision of
arrangement with IMF.

The most important measures were:

increase in VAT from 18% to 20%,

increase in income tax from 10% to 15%,
increase in profit tax (from 10% to 12%),

rise in excise tax on tobacco and oil derivatives,
limited growth of salaries in public sector and
pensions to 2% in October 2012 and April 2013
and

» limit on maximum salaries in public sector.

YV VV VY

According to the preliminary data from the Ministry
of Finance and Economics, realized budget deficit
was below planned value of RSD 203.6 bn
(anticipated at approx. 6% GDP). RS budget for
2013 was prepared and adopted within truly record
time with deficit planned at 3.5%. Talks with IMF
over a new stand-by arrangement are expected to
take place in spring 2013.

Despite a standstill in talks with IMF, postponed
date for the start of EU accession negotiations,
along with the reemergence of Kosovo issue and
revision of Serbia’s credit rating back to BB-(S&P),
there was a decrease in Serbia’s risk premium,
which currently stands at 380 pp. This came
primarily as a result of ECB’s measures to protect
the euro and further expansionist policy of the
world’s leading economies, but affected Serbia
after several months delay ie. after the
announcement of measures and preparation of
Fiscal Consolidation 2013-2015.

Two Eurobond issues were successfully completed
in the total amount of USD 1.75 bn and a return of
6.625% (10Y) and 5.45% (5Y). With additional
indebtedness on domestic market through the
issue of T-bills (with a decrease in interest rates at
the end of the year) public debt rose to EUR 17.7
bn (*EUR 3.2 bn) or approx. 61.5% of GDP,
breaking the limit set by law at 456% of GDP.

Consequently, foreign debt rose by EUR 1.6 bn, to
EUR 25.7 bn or approx. 87% of GDP.

RSD/EUR AND INFLATION 2008/2012
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The year 2012 saw the greatest rise in prices since
2007 - inflation rate was 12.2% (base inflation of
8.2%), which was significantly above the targeted
level of 4+1.5%, mostly as a result of a rise in food
prices (almost 50%, despite limiting retail mark-ups
on certain groups of products), trends in the price
of oil on the world market, exchange rate spillover
effect, rise in regulated prices (heating and
transportation) as well as increase in VAT and
excise tax. According to NBS, key factors that will
counter inflation in the upcoming period will be low
aggregate demand, cheaper agricultural produce
from the new agricultural season, as well as lower
import prices as a consequence of dinar
appreciation.

During 2012 NBS made its monetary policy more
restrictive, with the aim of decreasing inflationary
pressures and expectations. After a trend
characterized by the lowering of key policy rate (the
last one in January 2012 to 9.50%), NBS rose key
policy rate on several occasions (December 2012
to 11.25%) and changed regulations on required
reserve resulting in increased share of RSD
allocation into required reserve, leading to
sterilization of approx. RSD 66 billion in total in
2012. Additionally, after discontinuation of reverse
repo operations and introduction of direct ones in
the middle of the year, in December, investment of
banks’ liquidity into commercial papers was again
enabled, but by auction and with the application of
multiple interest rates that are currently much lower
than the key policy rate.

150 - 2012 Repo operations - 115%
120 - 11,0%
90 J - 10,5%
- 10,0%
%0 1 - 9,5%
30 1 - 9,0%
0 8,5%
ICHCECIC N I %»“‘%@Q"%Q@ vy

Balance of repo securities in the banking sector

Repo rate NBS

All these monetary policy measures also affected
the trends in FX exchange rate in 2012. Despite
interventions from NBS in the amount of EUR 1.3
billion and the change in required reserve
regulations, the dinar significantly depreciated
again by September (approx. 12% against the
euro) and then changed its direction, primarily as a
result of restrictive NBS measures, implementation
of the Government’s subsidized loan program for
corporates, but also as a result of renewed interest
in government securities among portfolio investors.

In the final quarter we witnessed for the first time
NBS intervention that was caused by significant
daily appreciation of the local currency. In total, the
dinar depreciated against the euro by 7.98%.

At the end of 2012 foreign currency reserves held
by NBS amounted to EUR 10.9 bn, which is
enough to cover 7 months’ imports of goods and
services.
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3. BANKING SECTOR OF THE REPUBLIC

OF SERBIA
. Assets in RSD bn + Percentage of growth
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At the end of 2012 the banking sector in Serbia
comprised 32 banks with assets of approx. EUR 25
bn. Agrobanka was put into receivership and part of
its assets and liabilities (via Nova Agrobanka, as
the bridge bank) was transferred to PoStanska
Stedionica. Uncertainty surrounding the fate of
Razvojna banka Vojvodine continues into 2013.
Sberbank bought Volks bank.

M Assets in EUR million
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What is evident is the outflow of funds i.e. banks’
foreign debt settlement, which has been a business
trend since mid-2011 among European banks
which operate in the region through their
subsidiaries. According to the report from the
Vienna Initiative, deleveraging in Serbia started
later than in other countries (probably due to the
implementation of Basel Il) but has reached almost
EUR 2 billion or over 5% of GDP, of which banks’
direct debt settlement accounts for approx. EUR 1
bn (note: approx. EUR 40bn has left the entire
region). Despite LTRO program for banks, it is
expected that the gradual debt settlement of banks
in the region will continue and that subsidiaries will
increasingly focus on local sources of funds.
Withdrawal of funds was buffered by substantial
credit lines from international financial institutions.

M Loans Deposits (in RSD bn)

2.000 - 1783
1.631
1.600 -+
1.199

1.200 41:069

1.301
800 - 1.025

400 4+

2008 2009 2010 2011 30.09.12.

Lending activity of banks stagnated in the first 8
months and was somewhat more intensive from
September, thanks to the subsidized loan program.
According to NBS data, by October 2012 inclusive,
gross loans rose by EUR 92 million. Significant
portion of funds was invested in government
securities (approx. RSD 290 bn). After reaching its
maximum of 19.9% in August, share of NPL (loans
in default of over 90 days) stagnated and went
down slowly at the end of the year to 18.8%.
Considerably higher NPL level, compared with
other countries in the region, is partly a result of the
current tax treatment of loan write-offs and
limitations imposed on sale of receivables. In the
upcoming period we can expect the effects of the
Law on deadlines for settlement of monetary
liabilities, which should, as of 1 April 2013, set a
limit to settlement deadlines to 60 days and even
45 for liabilities of the state.

Retail FX savings continued to grow and reached
EUR 8 bn at the end of December, with a still high
level of insured deposits (EUR 50,000)

Capital adequacy, although on the decrease it is
still significantly above the prescribed minimum of
12%. Apart from the rise in credit risk, this is also
due to currency depreciation as well, given that the
capital is denominated in RSD and risk bearing
assets are in most part tied to the EUR. By October
2012, total banking sector’s capital was EUR 5.2
bn.
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Decrease in banks’ profitability in 2012 came
primarily as a result of pressures on interest margin
and rising cost of risk, but also as a result of
changed regulations which govern the allocation of
required reserve. Compared to the first three
quarters of 2011, banking sector’s profit fell by
52%, even before the disclosure of Agrobanka’s
losses of EUR 284 million.

Interest margin in %
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Operating expenses and Cost-to-Income ratio,
despite decreasing the number of employees, they
tend to rise as a result of increased operating
expenses and their sensitivity to the exchange rate.

M Profit before tax in RSD million
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Note: Profit before tax in 2011 includes Agrobanka’s loss of EUR 284
million, while result as at 30.09.2012 also includes the loss made by
Razvojna banka of EUR 70 million.
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Factors that had a decisive effect on profitability of
banks in Serbia include high level of capital, high
level of required reserve, focus on local sources of
funds (regional trend), limited possibilities for
investment (lack of retail demand, limited number
of good quality corporate clients) and the
Government’s borrowing strategy.
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4. OPERATIONS OF KOMERCIJALNA
BANKA IN 2012

A positive trend from 2011 continued, with mid-term
orientation to sustainable growth as the key
strategic  objective, while observing all the
limitations that arise from the nature of the market
in which we operate and the attendant risks.

Balance-sheet total. Data on the growth of the
banking sector for 2012 are not yet available, but it
is estimated that the market share of over 10% is
preserved, with a growth of 17.7%. With a focus
still on sustainable growth of profitability, activities
were continued in the direction of quality growth of
portfolio and further optimization of the structure of
sources by encouraging IFIs to grant credit lines.

Sources. In November 2012 the Bank’s capital
was increased by the Government in the amount of
RSD 11.6 bn. Similarly as in 2011, a rise in FX
savings and corporate deposits continued, despite
deterioration in  market circumstances and
competitors’ strong focus on local sources along
with a decreasing tendency in cross border
financing. EFSE Green for Growth credit line was
drawn in the amount of EUR 23 million. Credit lines
from several international financial institutions in
the amount of EUR 155 million are currently either
in the process of negotiation or the drawdown is
underway.

Loans. Growth of corporate loans is evident as a
result of intensive activities, with a somewhat
slower growth of retail portfolio, but with an
increase in interest margin. Despite the re-launch
and quick depletion of the subsidized loan program,
deterioration in the quality of demand is still present
with the widespread underestimation of risk
premium, still making the Government the most
attractive investment. A portion of liquid funds was
invested in dinar and FX securities.

Loan portfolio _quality. Contrary to market
tendencies, the Bank’s loan portfolio s
characterized by considerably lower share of NPL.
However, constant caution should be exercised, as
well as monitoring and proactive approach to each
client. Financing structure and liquidity of corporate
clients remain the greatest problem and an
absolute priority in the upcoming period. Despite
decreased living standards, there are still no
considerable shifts in the retail portfolio, but we
may expect them in the upcoming period, given the
level of unemployment.

Profitability. Strong pressures on interest margin,
especially from the loans side, in the form of price
fo risk ratio, but also the changes in required
reserve regulations that are going towards a
twofold increase in RSD portion of RR (additional
RSD 10.5 bn), had an adverse effect on the income
side. There is little maneuvering space for
profitability growth - planned stabilization of
interest margin in 2012 was achieved through
further optimization and diversification of sources.
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4.1. Board of Directors 4.3. Executive Board

SHAREHOLDER / MEMBER
NAME AND SURNAME INDEPENDENT OF THE BANK POSITION NAME AND SURNAME POSITION

Vesna DZini¢ Republic of Serbia Chairperson Ivica Smoli¢ President
Dejan Eric, Ph.D. Republic of Serbia Member Dragan Santovac gfepsl;g;nt
Viadimir Saric Republic of Serbia Member Slavica Dordevi¢ Member
Dragica Pilipovi¢ — Chaffey EBRD Member Andrijana Milanovi¢ Member
Philippe Delpal EBRD Member Lidija Sklopi¢ Member
Khosrow Zamani IFC Member

Miroslav Todorovi¢ Ph.D. Member independent of the Bank ~ Member

Marija Panteli¢, MSc Member independent of the Bank ~ Member

Mats Kjaer Member independent of the Bank ~ Member

4.2. Audit Committee

MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF
NAME AND SURNAME DIRECTORS / INDEPENDENT OF POSITION
THE BANK

Member of the Board of  Chairperson

Miroslav Todorovi¢, Ph.D. Directors
Member
Dragica Pilipovic — Chaffey Member of the Board of
Directors
Jelka MiloSevic Independent of the Bank Member
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4.4. Bank’s Head Office in Belgrade

ADDRESS Svetog Save 14 Svetogorska 42-44 Kralja Petra 19 Makedonska 29

TELEPHONE +381-11- 30-80-100 +381-11-32-40-911 +381-11-33-08-002 +381-11-33-39-001
TELEX 12133 COMBANK YU 12133 COMBANK YU 12133 COMBANK YU 12133 COMBANK YU
FAX 3442-372 32-36-160 32-82-732 33-39-196
S.W.LF.T. code KOBBRSBG KOBBRSBG KOBBRSBG KOBBRSBG
REUTERS code KOMB KOMB KOMB KOMB
INTERNET http:www.kombank.com http:www.kombank.com http:www.kombank.com http:www.kombank.com
E-mail posta@kombank.com posta@kombank.com posta@kombank.com posta@kombank.com

4.5 Regional distribution of the Bank’s branches in the Republic of Serbia

[ BRANCH ADDRESS

1. Krusevac
2. N
3. Zrenjanin
4. Cacak
5. Kraljevo
6. Novi Pazar
7. Novi Sad
8. Uzice
9. Vranje
11. Subotica
12. Sabac
13. Kragujevac
14. Smederevo
15. Pozarevac
16. Jagodina
17. toznica
18. . Mitrovica
19. Zajecar Nikole Pasica 25
20. Kikinda
21. Sombor
22. Vrsac
23. Beograd
24. K. Mitrovica
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4.6. Group Komercijalna banka AD Beograd

Members of the Group, apart from the parent bank Komercijalna banka AD Beograd, are:
1. Komercijalna banka AD Budva in the Republic of Montenegro,

2. Komercijalna banka AD Banja Luka in Bosnia and Herzegovina and

3. KomBank INVEST AD Beograd.

INVESTMENT FUND MANAGEMENT

ADDRESS Potkosljun bb Veselina Maslese 6 Kralja Petra 19
TELEPHONE 00382-86-426-300 00387-51-244-700 011-330-8310
Komercijalna banka AD Budva has: Komercijalna banka AD Banja Luka has:

- 117 employees, - 144 employees,

- 21 organizational units (6 branches and 15 outlets). - 17 organizational units (10 branches and 7 agencies).
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4.7. Corporate operations loans increased, resulting in greater share of these
loans in portfolio of 19.1%.
Market — key tendencies:

In accordance with the strategy to compensate
limited  price  competitiveness  with  extended
maturities a rising trend in the share of long-term
loans slowed down in September due to a rise in
demand for loans from the Program.

2012 was characterized by a significant decrease
in economic activity. This was exacerbated by the
recession experienced by key foreign trade
partners and the pre-election and election period,
as well as adverse weather conditions in Q1 and

Q3 2012. » ,
Approx. EUR 12 million was invested from the GGF
Liquidity remains the greatest problem in the energy efficiency credit line.
market. A decreasing trend in the number of
registered business entities (in the first half of the m Corporate clients ~ ® SME (in %)

year 1255 business entities fewer ) was halted due
fo suspended implementation of provisions from
the Bankruptcy Law, which refer to automatic
receivership and liquidation.

100 1
75 A

The Government’s program of subsidized loans to o

corporates was launched in September, with
extremely aggressive offer on the market, that is,
banks offered terms that were more favorable than
those set in the Program. 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

25 A

Interest income was RSD 10.1 bn and were 6%
higher than in the same period 2011, despite lower
key policy rates and competitors’ focus on a limited

| 31322011 | 31122012 |Risein -
CORPORATE number of clients.

amount share amount share %,
(RSD m) (%) (RSD m) (%) |12/11

Loans — KB operations

LOANS 98,486 118,861 20.7% 3
Short-term 27,182 27.6% 40,961 34.5% 50.7% Client structure as at 31.12.2012
Long-term 58,183 59.1% 61,831 52.0% 6.3% M Large enterprises
FX loans 13,122 13.3% 16,069 13.5% 22.5% Medium enterprises
Small enterprises
 Non-residents
Despite market circumstances, there was a real Publicly owned companies

growth of corporate loan portfolio from the start of
the year of EUR 104 million, primarily through the
expansion of client base during the refinancing
campaign in June and July (84 new clients and
loans of approx. EUR 50 million), and the
implementation of the subsidized loan program
(414 clients in the total amount of EUR 95.6
million).

0, )
s.a5 4% 09%

15,7%

M Corporate loans in RSD million

150.000 -

Deposits
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CORPORATE | amount share amount share %,
(RSDm) | (%) |(RSDm) | (%) 12/11

DEPOSITS 56,243 100.0% 62,827 100.0% 11.7%

Transaction -
RSD 12,104 21.5% 16,974 27.0% 40.2%
Short-term -
RSD 22,487 40.0% 19,859 31.6% -11.7%
2008 2009 2010 2011 = 2012 Long-term -
RSD 653 1.2% 410 0.7% -37.1%
Due to considerable RSD depreciation and still FX 21,000| 37.3% | 25584 40.7%  21.8%

favourable RSD interest rates, the demand for RSD
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Despite significantly worsened  market
circumstances, a rise in corporate deposits was
recorded. This rise was particularly great in RSD
transaction deposits.

Despite a rise in NBS key policy rate, a decrease in
the cost price of RSD deposits was recorded.

M Corporate deposits in RSD million

80.000 A

57.966

61.540 62.827

60.000 56.243

40.000 -
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Despite a rise in price of corporate deposits on the
market, interest expenses were 5% lower than in
2011.

Structure of corporate deposits in %

40

20 ~
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2009 2010 2011 2012

M Large corporate clients @ Medium-sized enterprises

Small enterprises

Structure of depositors as at 31.12.2012

Small enterprises = Medium-sized enterprises

M Large corporate clients

21,7%

62,8%
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4.8. Retail operations

Market — key tendencies:

What is evident is the decrease in demand for
loans and a fall in general population’s capacity to
borrow (RSD depreciation), except for cash loans
in RSD (particularly because these loans no longer
require a deposit).

Average indebtedness is still relatively low
compared to other countries in the region and
stands at EUR 812 or 2.2 average salaries, of
which EUR 732 is for loans, EUR 29 for overdraft,
EUR 45 for credit cards and EUR 6 for leasing.

Demand for housing loans is on the decrease. In
2012 the amount of approved loans was 21.8%
lower than in 2011, with subsidized loans recording
a rise of 9.7% and unsubsidized ones recording a
fall of 32.0%.

Housing loans insured by NMIC with no subsidy
Banking sector Komercijalna banka Share of KB
Year in the
Number Amount Number Amount amount
2012 4394 146,409,524 633 17,707,779 12.09%
Subsidized housing loans
Banking sector Komercijalna banka ~ Share of KB
Year in the
Number Amount Number Amount amount
2012 2374 85,608,678 525 17,970,377 20.99%
Insured housing loans - total
Banking sector Komercijalna banka  Share of KB
Year in the
Number Amount Number Amount amount
2012 6768 232018202 1,158 35,678,156 15.38%

The demand for cash loans, primarily RSD ones, is
on the increase — the banks offer longer maturities.

In order to overcome the problem of illiquidity, the
Government introduced a subsidy program for this
purpose, which led to a rise in loans granted to
microclients.

The number of defaulting retail clients continued to
rise — NPL of the banking sector is 8.6%.

Loans — KB operations

In 2012 RSD 16.5 bn worth of loans were
disbursed, which was 20.9% more than in 2011.
Cash loans accounted for the greatest part of
disbursed loans (41.4%), followed by loans to
micro-clients and housing loans. Of the total
number of disbursed loans approx. 60% were in
RSD, which contributed to a rise in their share in
total retail loans to 31.3% (from 28.5% in 2011).

M Retail loans in RSD million

60.000 -
48.000 -

34.827
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55.917
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

PRODUCTS 31.12.11 %of 31.12.12 %of 31.12.12.
(RSDm)  share  (RSDm)  share /31.12.11
Cash loans 8,853 182% 10,071 18.0% 13.8%
Consumer loans 773 1.6% 492 0.9% -36.4%
Car loans 1,722 3.5% 1,355  24% -21.3%
Housing loans 25,503 52.5% 29,735 53.2% 16.6%
Agricultural loans 3,385 7.0% 2,971 53% -12.2%
Loans to micro-client 3,137 6.5% 5537 9.9% 76.5%
Cards 2,063  4.2% 2,101 38% 1.8%
Current accounts 3,119 6.4% 3,655 6.5% 17.2%

Negative trends in agricultural loans are a result of
more restrictive conditions for subsidies (purpose
and amount) and drought.

Due to decreased demand and absence of
Government subsidies, car and consumer loans
are gradually decreasing.

Portfolio quality was maintained - NPL at 4.3%

Interest income was RSD 6.1 bn and recorded a
rise of 15.5% from 2011.

Client structure as at 31.12.2012

Cash loans M Consumer loans

M Car loans M Housing loans
Agricultural loans M Loans to micro-clients

Cards Current accounts

3,8%
18,0%

53,2%
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Alternative payment methods

In payment cards operations the Bank places a
particular emphasis on the quality of its offer by
introducing new products and services, raising the
security of payments and maintaining high quality
of service.

o With the aim of increasing security we
switched Master and Visa cards to chip
technology;

o New service: Dynamic Currency Converter

o Compared to 2011:

o increased volume of transactions at
POS by 26%, at ATM by 15%

o rise in the number of issued cards of
12%

o sale in installments: over 280 vendors in
860 locations

All this contributed to the fact that the Bank’s main
business activities, according to Visa and Master,
recorded a faster growth than the banking sector in
Serbia, which resulted in increased market share.

Deposits — KB operations

Slower rise in FX savings in the first three quarters
was compensated for in Q4 (“savings month®)
which resulted in a rise in the banking sector of
approx. € 600 million (2011 approx. € 506 m).

M Retail deposits in RSD million
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Average price of (total) retail deposits continued to
fall. Given the market conditions, it appears that a
right balance has been achieved between the price,

image i.e. the Bank’s brand on one hand and a
targeted and stable growth of deposits on another.

B FX savings in EUR million
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Despite lowering interest rate on three occasions,
the Bank achieved growth of € 78 million in 2012
and performed above plan while keeping the
leadling position with a market share of 16.1%.

10,4%

Sight deposits ® 1 month ® 3 months 6 months
M 12 months M 24 months 36 months

In FX savings, stable share of term FX savings to a
period of 12 months or longer stood at 64.2%, as
well as the dominant participation of small deposits
— up to 50,000 € (in terms of number over 99%, in
terms of amount 79%).

The Bank will continue with its still active interest
rate policy in order to preserve the balance of price
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and the targeted growth of deposits, while making
full use of the Bank’s brand.

4.9. Treasury operations

In accordance with the Bank’s strategic orientation,
in 2012 the key objectives and business activities
of the Treasury business function focused on:

e Appropriate liquidity management with the aim
of securing unhindered functioning of the Bank,
despite all the limitations imposed by the
nonexistence of a parent bank and the resultant
lack of support for liquidity;

e Support to the Bank’s primary activities (retail
and corporate clients);

o Optimization of the sources of finance in terms
of structure and price;

e Investment of surplus funds on money market
and capital market for the purpose of making
profit.

By agreeing new foreign credit lines in 2012,
completing the capital increase process and
restructuring a number of larger deposits,
Komercijalna banka rearranged its sources in the
direction of their full optimization in the medium run.
Achieved effects include simultaneous decrease in
the average price of funds and decrease in the
concentration of deposits. Also, the Government’s
capital increase in October 2012, with the presence
of IFls in the ownership structure, secured for
Komercijalna banka an image of one of the safest
financial institutions in Serbia.

Concurrently, through a policy of cautious
investment of funds into first-class financial
instruments, in 2012 Komercijalna banka reaffirmed
itself as one of the most active participants in
domestic financial market.

Sale and purchase of foreign currency

W Komercijalna banka

Other banks 7,83%

92,17%

With a total sale of EUR 769 million and a total
purchase of EUR 749 million, Komercijalna banka
is one of the few and rare financial institutions that
have approximately equal volume of sale and
purchase of foreign currency, thanks to a
considerably higher number of clients that are net
exporters, compared to the average of the banking
sector.

Investment in securities

In 2012 NBS changed its decision on required
reserve on three occasions. Additionally, the
direction of key operations in the open market was
changed twice: in July from reverse repo to active
repo operations and in December from active repo
fo reverse repo operations. The results of these
changes included considerable sterilization of RSD
liquid funds and release of liquid FX funds, which
had a considerable effect on Komercijalna banka’s
policy on funds investment in 2012.

Share of Komercijalna Banka in total investment in securities of
the Republic of Serbia as at 31.12.2012

.7, 94%

W Komercijalna banka

Other investors

92,06%

Share of Komercijalna Banka in reverse repo operations with

NBS in 2012
'7,27%

m Komercijalna banka

Other investors

92,73%

As a result of central bank’s measures, which had a
direct effect on considerable decrease in RSD
liquidiity, the share of Komercijalna banka in RSD
investments in securities and reverse repo
operations was considerably below its share in the
total assets of the banking sector in 2012.
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Additionally, during 2012, RSD bank bonds were
issued for the first time and included bonds from
Societe Generale and Erste.

Share of Komercijalna banka in IPO of Societe Generale bonds

B Komercijalna banka

0,
m Other investors 59,82%

40,18%

Societe Generale banka Beograd issued three-year
RSD bonds (coupon - reference rate + 5.25%) in
the amount of RSD 1.7 billion. Komercijalna banka

was the largest single investor, having purchased
approx. RSD 1 billion worth of these bonds.

Share of Komercijalna banka in IPO of Erste bank bonds

H Komercijalna banka

34,13%
W Other investors

65,87%

Out of the total RSD 2.1 bn of two-year RSD
bonds by Erste bank Beograd (coupon — 15%)
RSD 1.46 billion was realized. Komercijalna banka
was the largest single investor, having purchased
RSD 500 million worth of these bonds.
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4.10. Bank’s Human Resources
Considerable increase in the volume of business
along with continued optimization of the number
and structure of employees, resulted in a drastic

increase in Bank’s efficiency, measured in terms of
assets per employee in both RSD and EUR.

= Employees
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The Bank invests in professional training and
development of its employees. Training includes
seminars, working groups and lectures on all
activities related to internal audit, international
accounting standards, human resources, risk
management, performance appraisals and other
areas. Apart from professional training, the Bank
invests especially in training which focuses on
developing employees’ skills with the aim of
performing duties in a more efficient way (sales
skills, presentation skills, management skills,
communication).

In  cooperation with business functions, HR
identifies the needs that business functions may
have for certain profile of employees. The Bank
resorted to external recruitment of employees only
in the situations where it was clear that there were
no employees within the Bank who had the
necessary knowledge and skills or their knowledge
and skills could not be improved through training.
In 2012 the Bank recruited primarily employees
with work experience in banking. In cooperation
with the competent managers, the Bank identified
employees whose knowledge and skills did not
measure up to a job, which resulted in the

2010

2011 2012

implementation of two Voluntary Redundancy
Programs in 2012 that led to termination of
employment for these employees with appropriate
compensation payments.

The Bank has been conducting performance
appraisals for quite a long time already, with regard
to the set annual objectives The Bank monitors the
achievement of such objectives, but also assesses
employees’  abilities  exhibited  during  the
accomplishment of objectives. Annual performance
appraisal is the basis for bonus, career and budget
planning and employee training program.

Principles of employee remuneration are clearly
defined in the Remuneration Policy passed by the
Board of Directors of the Bank at the proposal of
the Compensation Committee which is the body of
the Board of Directors. The aim of this policy is not
only to appropriately remunerate employees, but
also to motivate them to achieve better work
results. The amount of bonus depends on the tasks
an employee performs and an annual performance
appraisal mark.

4.11. Marketing and CSR activities

The Bank’s marketing division had a demanding
but rewarding task to promote good performance of
the Bank and its business results, and at the same
time open sales channels for the Bank’s existing
and new products.

Marketing activities revolved around tried and
tested methods that included brand campaigns and
sales promotion campaigns for the Bank’s products
and services, complemented by PR activities and
social responsibility campaigns. Marketing activities
focused on further strengthening of external
public’s trust, improvement of products and
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services, promotion of functional  benefits,
continuing expansion and consolidation of client
base in terms of quality, primarily by paying
adequate attention to younger and financially more
potent  population (e-banking services,
improvement of payment card products...).

Special attention was given to digital media and
communication via the most popular social
networks. Interactive communication with existing
and prospective  clients intensified,  which
contributed to a noticeable rise in regular followers,
whose number reached thirty thousand on
Facebook, by way of example, with a tendency of
further rise. Apart from this, mobile phone
application “Closest to me” was improved under our
own steam and adjusted to all three existing
platforms.

Carefully planned marketing campaigns resulted in

winning professional recognition from the Serbian

Market Communications Association that included:
o Silver award for the TV commercial

“Housing loans”,

o Silver award for appearance at the
“Agricultural fair in Novi Sad” and

o Silver award for promotional integrated
campaign “E-services”

o Award for best commercial in Serbia for
August 2012.

In 2012 we made a leap forward against
competitors. We entered new areas of advertising,
the most effective of which was the use of
exceptionally large marketing potential generated
by the naming sponsorship of Kombank arena, the
most prestigious sports and concert venue in
Serbia. The introduction and media positioning of
the new name completed successfully and ahead

of the planned schedule, turmning Kombank arena
into the Bank’s sub-brand of its kind.

The Bank completed the branding of its branch
network in keeping with its visual identity standards
that were set by the Standardization of the Bank’s
Appearance Project. Although the Project was
completed in 2012, it has been agreed to apply the
same standards in the future as well as when
opening new and renovating existing branches.

As for the corporate social responsibility, the Bank
continued with the current good practice of
investing in a small number of big, carefully chosen
and focused campaigns that will have a long-term
positive effect on both the society and the Bank’s
image, and which attract a lot of public attention.
Younger population remains our priority, either by
supporting the development of general and special
talents or helping handicapped population. The
Bank supported, to an extent, a great number of
cultural and sports events, TV series, multimedia
events, efc., invariably those that enjoy wider social
recognition, while maximizing the effects of
investment in all sponsorship deals.

The Bank continued to carefully monitor and
analyze results of quantitative and qualitative
surveys of Serbian banking market and the Bank’s
position, with the aim of improving the quality of
marketing activities. The results show that the Bank
firmly holds the leading position in the eye of the
public as well, as measured by standards of
recognizability and quality. With the aim of
reinforcing the company loyalty and power of
communication with external public, all survey
results, primarily those obtained from IPSOS
(Strategic marketing) and GFK, are regularly
posted on the Bank’s portal.
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4.12. Project management and project portfolio
management

In 2009 the Bank set up corporate PMO (Project
Management  Office), which  enables  the
achievement of 2 key targets through
implementation of project portfolio management
concept:

» implementation of the adopted Strategy of the
Bank i.e. introducing changes in the Bank
through selecting the right project initiatives with
the greatest benefit and maximum added value,

» best possible implementation of selected
projects with optimum allocation of resources
i.e. their use in the most rational way, prompt
solutions to problems that arise and prevention
of delay in project implementation.

In 2012 a total of 11 projects were implemented,
with a total budget of EUR 6.87 million. At the end
of 2012 the Bank had 23 active projects.

Number of
Category implemented
projects
Strategic 2
Regulatory 1
Optimization and improvement 5
New products 1
IT projects 1
Other 1
Total 11

ACTIVE PROJECTS IN 2012

STRATEGIC

= REGULATORY

H OPTIMIZATION AND IMPROVEMENT
IT PROJEKTI

The most important active projects are:
» Basel Il implementation program,
internal approach
The Program comprised 5 projects. The
purpose of implementing the internal approach
in the Bank is to improve risk management

through developing internal models adjusted to

the Bank’s specific risk profile. Improving the

Bank’s capacity to more precisely measure

and assess the risks the Bank is exposed to

would also result in lower negative effects on
the Bank’s financial result and capital and this,
in turn, would increase capital adequacy ratio.

The project is scheduled tfo complete by

31.12.2016.

» ALM Software WO2 implementation
project

Improvement of the process of assets and

liabilities management in the aspect of

technical support for the preparation of static
and dynamic analysis of liquidity risk and
interest risk in the process of further
implementation of Basel Il standard. The
project is scheduled to complete by

31.12.2013.

» Improvement  of the  Project
Management System and Project
Portfolio

More efficient selection and allocation of the

Bank’s resources on projects and programs

that will contribute to achievement of the

Bank’s set strategic targets; improvement of

the cost management system, improvement of

the HR management system; improvement of
reporting  system; improvement of PMO
document management system; increased
efficiency of PMO activities and better use of
human resources. The Project is scheduled to

complete by 31.12.2013.

» Management of business processes

The aim of the project is to improve the Bank’s

business processes through the “Six Sigma”

methodological approach. By successfully
completing the pilot project, the Bank will
obtain an adequate Know-How that could be
used for other processes. The Project is
scheduled to complete by 31.12.2013.
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5. CAPITAL

The most important change in capital in 2012 was the issue of preference convertible shares and capital
increase conducted by the Republic of Serbia in the amount of RSD 11,572 million, in accordance with the
Agreement between RS and the group of international financial institutions (the Bank’s shareholders - EBRD,
IFC, SwedFund and DEG) from 2009, with total capital amounting to RSD 59,866.6 million at the end of 2012.

Changes in capital from 2008 to 2012:

e BTN BETEE BTN EETEN BT

BANK’S CAPITAL (000 RSD)

Share capital 28,462,553 28,462,553 17,062,534 17,062,534
Reserves from profit 11,635,440 9,235,440 7,385,440 4,685,440
Revaluation reserves 625,680 647,126 694,117 648,379
Retained profit 3,551,893 2,709,309 2,134,290 3,036,790

SHAREHOLDER 31.12.2012

LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BANK in 000 RSD in PERCENTAGE

Republic of Serbia 7,020,346
EBRD 4,109,440
IFC 1,706,810
DEG 772,850
SWEDFUND 386,420
OSTALI 3,195,600

TOTAL CAPITAL IN THE PERIOD FROM 2008 TO 2012

(INO0ORSD)  60.000.000 — - 80,0
50.000.000 / :
7,8 - 60,0
40.000.000 _%- ‘
30.000.000 - ; : - 400
20.000.000 f— '
- 200
10.000.000 '
0 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 00
m PROFIT 3.036.790 2.134.200 2.709.309 3.551.893 4.185.812
= REVALUATION RESERVES 648.379 694.117 647.126 625.680 860.758
RESERVES FROM PROFIT 4.685.440 7.385.440 9.235.440 11.635.440 14.785.440
H SHARE CAPITAL 17.062.534 17.062.534 28.462.553 28.462.553 40.034.550
GROWTH RATE 327 72 50,5 78 35,2
TOTAL CAPITAL 25,433,143 27,276,381 41,054,428 44,275,566 59,866,560
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Changes in the Bank’s capital in the period from
2008 to 2012, that is, the largest increase in capital
came as a result of capital increase and as a result
of allocation of realized profit into credit loss
reserve. At the end of 2012, the Bank’s total capital
stood at RSD 59,866.6 million and has been
increased twice in the past five years. In the
observed period, share capital rose by RSD
22,972.0 million from two increases in capital (XXI
issue of preference convertible shares in the
amount of RSD 11,400.0 million and XXVI issue of

preference convertible shares in the amount of
RSD 11,572.0 million).

Reserves from profit rose by RSD 10,100.0 million.
Considerable increase in reserves from realized
profit, for each year, was a rational choice of
shareholders and the management with the aim of
protecting the Bank from risk, on the one hand, and
ensuring safe operation of the Bank in the
environment of adverse macroeconomic conditions
and restrictive measures by the National Bank of
Serbia, on another.

SHARE CAPITAL FROM 2008 TO 2012

(IN000 RSD)  50,000.000

- 80,0

40.000.000 1
o
30.000.000 =/
- 40,0
20.000.000 = { 1 .
10.000.000 ! : . . : 200
, I 00
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
= PREFERENCE CONVERTIBLE SHARES 4.798.190 4.798.190 8.108.646
PREFERENCE SHARES 373.510 373.510 373.510 373.510 373.510
ORDINARY SHARES 8.709.310 8.709.310 8.709.310 8.709.310 8.709.310
ISSUE PREMIUM 7.979.714 7.979.714 14.581.543 14.581.543 22.843.084
GROWTH RATE 294 66,8 00 40,7
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL 17,062,534 17,062,534 28,462,553 28,462,553 40,034,550

Since 2010 the Bank’s shares have traded on the
Standard Market of the Belgrade Stock Exchange.

In the past five years, the number of shareholders
in possession of ordinary (voting) shares has
increased.

At the end of 2012 1,214 shareholders owned
ordinary shares of the Bank, 641 shareholders
owned preference shares and 5 shareholders
owned preference convertible shares.

STRUCTURE OF SHARE CAPITAL AS AT 31.12.2012

o

ORDINARY SHARES
m PREFERENCE SHARES

PREFERENCE CONVERTIBLE SHARES
H |SSUE PREMIUM
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6. FINANCIAL RATIOS

m ITEM STATUTORY

1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (NET CAPITAL/CREDIT

0,
" RISK + OPERATIONAL RISK +OPEN FX POSITION) MIN. 12%
INVESTMENT IN ENTITIES OUTSIDE FINANCIAL o
2. SECTOR AND IN FIXED ASSETS MAX. 60%
3. LARGE EXPOSURES OF THE BANK MAX. 400%
4. FXRISKRATIO MAX. 20%
5. LIQUIDITY RATIO MIN. 1%

21.88% 17.25% 17.14% 14.82% 13.60%
18.38% 27.98% 21.70% 3247% 37.06%
107.37% 109.51% 82.51% 114.30% 88.69%
0.82% 1.68% 7.19% 18.12% 18.99%
2.18% 2.91% 2.45% 2.711% 2.09%

The Bank meets all the prescribed operating
parameters, along with an increased capital
adequacy, which is a reliable indicator of improved
security of operation.

Finalized capital increase had the greatest effect on
the rise in the Bank’s capital adequacy given the

constant increase in credit risk and changes in
macroeconomic  parameters, especially RSD
depreciation, that placed additional pressure
leading to a rise in exposure, rise in credit loss
reserve and decrease in capital adequacy.

%) CAPITAL ADEQUACY
25,00 ~ 2188
20,00 - 17,14 17,25
10,00 ~ 12,00 12,00 12,00 12,00 12,00
5,00 -+
0,00 T T T T \
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
mmmmm CAPITAL ADEQUACY STATUTORY (12%)

During 2012 NBS amended and supplemented the
following  decisions, ~ within its  regulatory
competence which includes control of banks’
activities: Decision on classification of balance-
sheet assets and off-balance sheet items, Decision
on risk management, Decision on banks’ reporting
and Decision on external audit of banks.

In accordance with the requirements set in
regulations, the Bank conducted an internal capital
adequacy assessment in which it analyzed all the

risks the Bank is or might be exposed to, and
calculated the internal capital requirements for
materially significant risks, as well as the available
internal capital.

The process of internal capital adequacy
assessment is a continuous process that involves
decision-making on a daily basis and forms an
integral part of the risk management system.

(U 000 RSD) OPERATING CASH FLOW
8.000.000 -
6.136.179
6.000.000 1 4.973.331
3.784.821
4.000.000
2.484.094 2.571.082
2.000.000 . .
0 . . . . .

2008 2009

Percentage of collected interest in 2012 was 96.6%

2010 2011 2012
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7. BALANCE SHEET FOR 2012

7.1. Bank’s assets as at 31.12.2012

I
ASSETS

1. Cash and cash equivalents

2. Callable deposits and loans

3 Receivables for interest, fee and sale

4. Loans and deposits to customers

4.1. Corporate

42. Retail

4.3 Banks and financial organizations

5. Securities (other than own)

6. Equity investments

7. Other investments

8. Intangible assets

9. Fixed assets and investment property
10. Fixed assets intended for sale

11. Deferred tax assets

12. Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS ( from 1. to 12.)

(IN 000 RSD)

% OF SHARE
INDICES AS AT
31.12.2012

40514180 17,228,970 2352 125
43053502 55,260,711 779 133
1,547,342 1,187,573 130.3 05
177,106,865 155,719,207 113.7 54.6
118860421 98,486,288 120.7 367
55917,000 48555492 115.2 172
2,329,444 8,677,427 268 0.71
41347719 25637,972 161.3 128
5,917,033 5,823,583 101.6 18
3,227,896 2,187,533 147.6 10
600,438 555,415 108.1 02
7,416,846 7,530,271 985 23
78,763 101,040 780 1
4,896 - - .
3,372,293 4,256,443 792 10
324,187,773 275,488,718 17.7 100.0

In 2012 the Bank’s balance-sheet assets rose by
RSD 48,699.1 million or 17.7% compared to the
previous year. Loans to customers increased by
RSD 21,387.7 million or 13.7%. As at 31.12.2012
total loans to customers stood at RSD 177,106.9
million, which accounts for 54.6% of total balance-
Sheet assets.

During 2012, cash and cash equivalents recorded a
rise of 135.2%, primarily due to changed NBS

regulations on required reserve for banks i.e.
higher amount for RSD required reserve.

The most significant relative increase in the
previous year was noted in investment in securities.
At the end of the year, total amount of invested
funds, primarily in risk-free government securities,
amounted to RSD 41,347.7 million.
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7.2. Bank’s liabilities as at 31.12.2012

IN 000 RSD
% OF SHARE AS
“ ITEM 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 AT 31.12.2012
5=34100 @ 6 |
| LIABILITIES

1. Transaction and other deposits 235,520,744 206,123,280 114.3 726

1.1.  Corporate 62,826,756 56,243,065 117 194

1.2. Retall 164,532,865 143,061,647 115.0 50.8

1.3. Banks and financial organizations 8,161,123 6,818,568 119.7 25

2. Borrowings 637,264 1,603,761 39.7 0.2

3. Liabilities from securities - - -

4. Liabilities from interest and fees 188,910 205,079 921 0.1

5. Provisions 2,331,760 2,135,436 109.2 0.7

6. Tax liabilities 21,799 39,737 54.9 -

7 Liabilities from profit 85,114 172,197 494 -

8 Liabilities from funds held for sale and from discontinued ) ) )

’ operations

9. Deferred tax liabilities - 17,036 -

10. Other liabilities 25,535,622 20,916,626 1221 79

11. TOTAL LIABILITIES ( from 1. to 10.) 264,321,213 231,213,152 114.3 815

CAPITAL

12. Share capital and issue premium 40,034,550 28,462,553 140.7 12.3

13. Reserves from profit 14,785,440 11,635,440 1271 46

14. Revaluation reserves 867,774 689,620 125.8 0.3

15. Unrealized losses from securities available for sale 7,016 63,940 11.0 -

16. Profit 4,185,812 3,551,893 117.8 1.3

17. TOTAL CAPITAL (from 13. to 16.) 59,866,560 44,275,566 135.2 18.5

18. TOTAL LIABILITIES (11.+17.) 324,187,773 275,488,718 117.7 100.0
I I(.:rgl\lalszSSION OPERATIONS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET 204,642,280 183,524,897 115
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Deposits from customers (transaction and other
deposits) stood at RSD 235,520.7 million and
accounted for 72.6% of total balance-sheet
liabilities, which was a rise of RSD 29,397.5 million
or 14.3%.

At the end of 2012 transaction deposits amounted
to RSD 40,336.8 million and recorded a year-on-
year increase of 28.2%.

Other deposits rose in 2012 by RSD 20,517.3
million or 11.7%. Other deposits at the end of 2012
stood at RSD 195,184.0 million, which is 60.2% of
fotal balance-sheet liabilities. ~ Growth of other

deposits came primarily as a result of an increase
in retail FX savings.

Other liabilities include subordinated debt in the
amount of RSD 5,685.9 million and credit lines in
the amount of RSD 14,219.6 million. Funds from
credit lines were intended primarily for loans to
small and medium-sized enterprises in order to
finance export, acquire permanent working capital,
equipment and machines and for other purposes.

In 2012 the Bank’s capital increased by RSD
11,572.0 million.

GROWTH OF BALANCE SHEET ASSETS FROM 2008 TO 2012

(IN 000 RSD)
360.000.000 -~ 324.187.773 - 30,0%
i 275.488. 718 L %
300.000.000 255.868. 309 25,0%
240.000.000 - 205.257. 221 - 20,0%
170.861. 369

180.000.000 - - 15,0%
120.000.000 - - 10,0%

60.000.000 - - 5,0%

0 0,0%

2008 2009 2011 2012
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8.

(1

1.1

1.2.

10.
1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

19.

INCOME STATEMENT FOR 2012

ITEM

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

(

IN' 000 RSD)

INDICES
3:4)*100

OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Interest income
Interest expenses

Interest gains

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses

Fee and commission gains

Net gains/losses from sale of securities at fair value through income statement

Net gains/losses from sale of securities available for sale

Net gains/losses from sale of securities held to maturity

Net gains/losses from sale of equity (shareholding)

Net gains/losses from sale of other loans and advances

Net foreign exchange gains/losses and valuation adjustment of assets and liabilities
Income from dividends and equity investments

Other operating income

Net income/expenses for indirect loan write-off and provisions

Salaries, benefits and other personnel expenses

Depreciation

Other operating expenses

RESULT FOR THE PERIOD - PROFIT BEFORE TAX (from 1. to 14.)

Profit tax

Profit from increased deferred tax assets and decreased deferred liabilities
Loss from decreased deferred tax assets and increased deferred tax liabilities

PROFIT (from 15. to 18.)

20,130,880
-9,220,564

10,910,316

5,334,914
-780,448

4,554,466

776

83,947

95,890
2,251
241,022
1,444,299
-4,186,346
-752,356
-4,933,005
4,572,662
472,448
32,885
-10,953

4,122,146

18,036,321
-8,182,953

9,853,368

5,051,445
-628,046

4,423,399

-19,110

1,254

-152,498
7,997
191,207
-1,335,461
-3,925,085
672,099
-4,420,906
3,952,066
-426,027
11,578
-23,937

3,513,680

111.6

1127

110.7

105.6

1243

103.0

4.1

6.694.3

-62.9

28.1

126.1

108.1

106.7

111.9

111.6

115.7

110.9

284.0

45.8

1173

What mostly affected an increase in profit in 2012 was a rise in net interest income (of 10.7%) and net fee
income (of 3.0%).

120



REALIZED PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM 2008 TO 2012

(IN 000 RSD)
5.000.000 A 4.572.662
3.952.066
4.000.000 -
2.815.222 2.791.964
3.000.000 -
2.055.495
2.000.000 -
1.000.000 I
0 T T T T 1
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(IN 000 RSD) INTEREST GAINS (IN 000 RSD) FEE GAINS
12.000.000 1 10.910.317 6.000.000 4
9.853.367
10.000.000 5.000.000 - 4.423.399 4-554.466
3.892.459
8.000.000 7.437.483 4.000.000 3.531.165
6.334.099
6.000.000 - 6.300.214 3.000.000 1 2.767.714
4.000.000 2.000.000 -
2.000.000 - 1.000.000 -
0 - 0 -
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
TRENDS IN BANK'S INTEREST MARGIN FROM 2008 TO 2012
(N%) 800
6,00
4,00 g 42 . ]
oo . G Leeee J ‘_
2 seoce S XA ._
2,00 l— . I_
0,00 2008. 2009. 2010. 2011. 2012.
mmmmmm Average lending rates 73 8,0 6,5 71 71
Average borrowing rate 31 49 37 37 3,6
e e ee Average interest margin 42 31 2,8 34 36

Interest margin recorded a rise despite market
pressures from the loans side (keen competition for
limited demand) and deposits side (pronounced
focus of banks on domestic sources of finance).

(IN %) COST INCOME RATIO
90,00 -
81,2 80,5
8000 {  E=———o 47
\’
70,00 - \10 63,5
& L 2
60,00 -
50,00
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
-t

" CIR = OPEX / net interest and fees

Activities aimed at optimizing the sources of funds
in terms of price, structure and maturity yielded
results and made interest margin sustainable in the
medium run.

The Bank continued to actively manage and control
operating expenses and increase efficiency of
operation, which resulted in maintaining Cost
Income Ratio (CIR) at the level of 63.4%.

121




9. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE BANK’S
BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2012

In 2012 the Bank achieved the set objectives and
planned profitability, despite adverse
macroeconomic operating conditions in 2012
(decreased GDP, RSD depreciation, high inflation
rate, rise in unemployment), generally bad
economic situation not only in Serbia but in the
region as well, and restrictive monetary policy
measures in the form of withdrawal of money from
circulation in order to maintain inflation rate within
planned limits (changes in the method of
calculation and allocation of required reserve). In
these circumstances, the increase in Bank’s capital
in the final quarter of 2012 posed a special
challenge for the achievement of an adequate rate
of return.

Macroeconomic Plan Realized
indicators 2012 2012
GDP growth 5.0% -2.0%
Money market rate 9.0% 11.3%
Inflation rate (CPI) 5.5% 12.2%
RSD/EUR (end of year) 107.1 113.7
Tarcet 2012 2012
argets achieved  planned
Assets growth 15.4% 6.8%
Profit (RSD million) 4.573 4.366
Net interest margin (net 0 o
interest income / total assets) 3.6% 3.7%
ROA 1.5% 1.6%
ROE — on share capital 15.1% 13.5%
ROE — total capital 9.4% 9.4%
CIR 63.5% 64.4%
NPL 13.1% 12.9%

Higher-than-planned growth of assets came as a
result of not only the effect of exchange rate, but
also of the greater-than-planned inflow of retail
deposits as well as the fact that a portion of
corporate deposits were not withdrawn. Market
share remained at the level of over 10%.

BALANCE SHEET TOTAL IN 2012

(in RSD million)
400.000
324.188

300.000 280.876

200.000

100.000

0 R S
ACHIVED PLANNED

Unplanned decrease in RSD liquidity i.e. changes
in NBS regulations and increase in RSD required
reserve of RSD 10.5 billion had a decisive effect on
the Bank's profitability, as the income planned from
the employment of these funds was not realized,
and led to additional cost of liquidity management.
Profit before tax was above planned by 4.7% and
profitability indicators were at the planned level
thanks to further decrease in the price of funds,
adequate investment of additional capital,
preserved asset quality through conservative
approval of new loans as well as timely activities on
collection of existing loans and continuous cost
management.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXIN 2012

(in RSD million)
5.000 4.573 4.366
4.000

3.000
2.000

1.000

0
ACHIEVED PLANNED

PROFITABILITY INDICATORS IN 2012

(%)

18 151
15 13,5
12 ‘ 94 94
9 |
6 .‘ 4 -
3 J ] | 1,5 16
o MMl __ I -
ROE on share capital  ROE on total capital ROA
m ACHIEVED PLANNED

PLANNED - ACHIEVED COST INCOME

RATIO IN 2012
(in %)

100
80

635 64,4
60
40
20

0 — —

ACHIEVED PLANNED
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9.1. Balance sheet for 2012

“ ITEM ACHIEVED IN 2012
1

ASSETS
1. Cash and cash equivalents
2. Callable deposits and loans
3 Receivables from interest, fees, sale, change in fair value of derivatives and
’ other receivables

4. Loans and deposits to customers (4.1.+4.2.+4.3.)
41. Corporate
42.  Retail
43. Banks

Securities (other than own)

Equity investments

Other investments

Fixed assets and investment properties

Other assets

10.  TOTAL ASSETS (from 1. to 9.)

<o} ©o] =] (O3] jou

40,514
43,054

1,547

177,107
118,861
55,917
2,329
41,348
5917
3,228
7417
4,056

324,188

(in RSD million)

PLANNED FOR
2012

14,974
54,017

1,590

161,721
106,201
50,520
5,000
27,621
5,819
2,100
8,108
4,926

280,876

INDICES
(3:4)100

270.6
79.7

97.3

109.5
111.9
110.7
46.6
149.7
101.7
153.7
915
82.3

115.4

» Change in the structure of required reserve led to the departure from projected values for Cash and Callable

deposits and loans.

» Realized growth of corporate and retail loans was higher than planned, with a portion of available funds

invested in government securities and bank bonds.

> Other loans were higher than planned due to an increase in covered letters of credit and other guarantees in

foreign currency that were deposited with foreign banks.

(in RSD million)
No. ITEM REALIZED IN 2012 PLAN,::)E[; ol ";T%E OSO
¢+ 9 2 5 3 N 4 N 5 |
LIABILITIES
1. Deposits 235,521 201,886 116.7
1.1.  Corporate 62,827 49,562 126.8
1.2,  Retalil 164,533 146,526 112.3
1.3.  Banks 8,161 5,798 140.8
2, Credit lines 14,220 17,257 824
3. Provisions 2,332 1,128 206.7
4, Other liabilities 12,248 11,920 102.8
5. TOTAL LIABILITIES (from 1. to 4.) 264,321 232,191 113.8
6. Share capital and issue premium 40,035 28,463 140.7
7. Reserves from profit and retained profit 19,832 20,222 98.1
8. TOTAL CAPITAL (6.+7.) 59,867 48,685 123.0
9. TOTAL LIABILITIES (5.+8.) 324,188 280,876 115.4

» Rise in both corporate and retail deposits despite constant fall in price.
>

» Due to a change in drawdown schedule during 2012, planned credit lines will be drawn in 2013, in the amount

higher than was originally planned.

» Capital was increased in the fourth quarter of 2012.
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9.2. Income statement for 2012

(in RSD million)
“ ITEM REALIZED IN 2012 PLANNED FOR 2012 Ig‘g'&%ﬁ
.+ 9 2 5y 3 N 4 N 5 |
1.1. Interestincome 20,131 18,945 106.3
1.2. Interest expenses 9,221 8,788 104.9
1. Interest gains (1.1.-1.2) 10,910 10,157 107.4
2.1. Fee and commission income 5,334 5,397 98.8
2.2. Fee and commission expenses 780 624 125.1
2. Fee and commission gains (2.1.-2.2.) 4,554 4,773 954
3. Exchange rate differentials and change in value (currency clause) 96 100 95.9
4, Other operating income 330 195 169.2
5. Net expenses for indirect loan write-off and provision 1,444 1,169 123.5
6. Operating and other expenses 9,873 9,690 101.9
7. OPERATING PROFIT 4,573 4,366 104.7
» Higher than planned net interest income came as a result of a greater volume of loans and
decreased price of funds despite higher-than-planned inflow of deposits.
» Net fee income was somewhat lower than planned due to increased fee expenses from card
operations and contracted credit lines.
» Departure from the planned level of cost of indirect loan write-off resulted from additional impairment,
among other things.
» Operating and other expenses were within planned limits.
» Realized profit for 2012 exceeded the planned value by 4.7%.

124



3. CREDIBLE PRESENTATION OF THE BANK’S DEVELOPMENT AND BUSINESS RESULTS, AND
ESPECIALLY THE FINANCIAL STATE OF THE COMPANY, AS WELL AS THE DATA RELEVANT
FOR THE ASSESSMENT OF THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S ASSETS

3.1. Overview of the company’s development
Detailed overview of the Bank's development was explained in items 4.7. to 4.12. of the Annual Report,

pages 104 to 112.

3.2. Overview of the company’s business results
Detailed overview of the Bank's business results is shown in items 5 to 8 of the Annual Report, pages

114 to 120.

3.3. Financial status of the company
Financial status of the Bank is shown in the balance-sheet and profit and loss account, items 7 and 8 of

the Annual Report, pages 117 to 120.

3.4. Information on the data relevant for the assessment of the state of the company’s assets

The Bank's assets, as at 31.12.2012 are shown in detail in note 28, on page 46 in the Notes to financial
statements.

4. DESCRIPTION OF THE ANTICIPATED DEVELOPMENT OF THE COMPANY IN THE UPCOMING
PERIOD, CHANGE IN THE COMPANY’S OPERATING POLICIES AND A DESCRIPTION OF KEY RISKS
AND THREATS THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS ARE EXPOSED TO

4.1. Description of anticipated development of the company in the upcoming period

At its meeting held on 23.01.2013 the General Meeting of Bank’s Shareholders approved the
"Strategy and Business Plan for the period 2013-2015", thus continuing the practice of three-year
development of the Bank. As the starting point of the strategy that was adopted in January of this year, a
document entitled "Strategy and Business Plan for the period 2013-2015" was taken, this contained the
values that were used up as the drafting basis of the most recent document, with the necessary corrections
and adjustments of the previously projected values. When setting up the basic strategic objectives for the next
period, a stable and sustainable business, primarily through the defending the interest margins and
maintaining the quality of the portfolio, was set in the focus of the monitoring.

12.3% balance sheet growth is planned in 2013, this being an increase that is based primarily on the growth
of deposits and partly on raising a certain amount of funds in the form of credit lines and Bank’s borrowing
abroad.

Loan growth is planned in the business 2013 (balance sheet position "loans and advances to customers”) to
the amount of RSD 205,908 million or 15.0%.

In the ordinary course of business, and in the preparation of a business plan for the next three years,
maximum attention is dedicated to preserving the quality of the loan portfolio. Despite the unfavorable
macroeconomic conditions prevailing at the end of 2012, non-performing loans ratio totaled 13.1%, which is
significantly below the average of the banking sector. The NPL ratio is projected at 13.5% at the end of 2013.

The Bank’s equity investments, primarily in the capital of legal entities of which the Bank is the only or
controlling stakeholder (Komercijalna Banka Budva, Komercijalna Banka Banja Luka and Kombank Invest),
totaled RSD 5,917.0 million at the end of 2012. The business plan for 2013 does not anticipate significant
additional investments in the capital of these entities.
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Also, no significant new investments in non-interest bearing assets - fixed assets (fixed assets, intangible
assets and investment property) have been planned in 2013. The business plan for 2013 is to adjust new
investments in fixed assets to the amount of depreciation of existing assets.

Profit from regular operations of RSD 5,487 million in planned to be achieved in 2013, which would be an
increase of 25.4% compared to profit achieved at the end of 2012. With the stated amount of net profit, the
rate of return on assets has been projected at 1.6% and the rate on return on capital has been projected at
9.0% with credit loss reserves included in capital, or at 13.7% without the credit loss reserves included in
capital.

In 2013, the Bank will continue to implement these planning objectives upon the universal bank principles,
being equally prepared to invest funds in both the corporate and retail segments. However, the sectorial
distribution of bank loans will remain to be implemented based on the level of risk contained in the loan
approval application, and not the sectorial reference.

During the previous period, the small and medium enterprises proved to be extremely resistant to adverse
macroeconomic business conditions. The Bank will continue to seek to provide quality support to this segment
of the economy through the provision of new loans.

In the area of retail banking, in addition to lending and deposit activities, special attention is paid to the
development of the business cards and electronic banking. In the previous period, the Bank presented to its
retail customers a set of modern services that allows a greater number of operations through electronic
banking using the Internet and mobile phones.

Excluding the Bank’s outlets, Komercijalna Banka operates at the following four locations in Belgrade: 14
Svetog Save St, 42 Svetogorska St, 24 Makedonska St and 19 Kralja Petra St. Doing business at several
locations has already been identified as an aggravating circumstance in reqular work, so in order to overcome
this problem by the Board of Directors approved the Bank's plan to locate the Bank’s Head Office at a single
location. However, the negative effects of the economic crisis, and worsened business circumstances
somewhat slowed down the implementation of this plan.

4.2. Description of changes in the company’s operating policies

In the course of 2011, the Bank did not significantly change its business policy, except that
certain adjustments were made to the Business Policy concerning the provisions of the Law on the
Protection of Rights and Interests of Consumers of the Financial Services (Official Gazette of the
Republic of Serbia, No. 36/2011, entered into force June the 4t 2011%, in effect since December
the 5t 2011). The new policy of the Bank was adopted by the General Meeting of Bank’s
Shareholders on 26.01.2012.

Business policy determined the basic principles of business and defined tasks performed by the
bank in order to meet business performance and priorities defined by the current strategy and
business plan of the Bank, which is based on:

e The Bank's position on the financial market and the gained confidence of customers
¢ Projections of key macro-economic policy parameters
e Bank's development goals.

Policy of the Bank is aligned with the risk management strateqy and capital management strategy,
as well as individual risk management policies.
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The bank operates independently, according to market principles, by applying the rules of liquidity,
profitability and security, while respecting the laws, regulations, and general principles of banking
business in achieving its objectives in a socially responsible manner, in accordance with the
fundamental values and business ethics.

4.3.Description of key risks and threats the company’s operations are exposed to

The Bank has recognized risk management process as the key element of business
management given that risk exposure is an inseparable part of banking and is managed through a
process of continued identification, measurement, monitoring, minimizing and setting of risk limits
and through other types of control, including reporting in accordance with adopted strategies and
policies.

The Bank has established a comprehensive and reliable risk management system that includes: risk
management strategies, policies, and procedures, appropriate organizational structure, effective
and efficient process of managing all risk it is exposed to, adequate system of internal controls,
adequate information system and process of internal capital adequacy assessment.

The basic objectives that the Bank set for the risk manages system are the following: minimizing the
negative effects on financial result and equity within acceptable risk levels, maintaining the required
level of capital adequacy, developing the Banks activities in accordance with business opportunities
and market development with a view to gain competitive adventage.

Credit risk represents the risk of negative effects on the Banks financial result and capital arising
from debtors' inability to settle the matured liabilities to the Bank. The Bank's credit risk depends on
the debtor creditworthiness, its reqularity in settling liabilities due to the Bank and collateral quality.

The level of credlit risk exposure acceptable to the Bank is in line with the defined risk management
strategy and depends on the Bank's portfolio structure based on which negative effects on the
Bank's financial result is limited and capital requirements for credit risk, settlement/delivery and
counterparty risk are minimized in order to maintain capital adequacy at an acceptable level. The
Bank approves loans to (corporate and retail clients) which are estimated as creditworthy. On the
other hand, the Bank does not make high-risk investments such as investments in highly profitable
projects with significant risk levels.

Liquidity risk represents the risk of negative effects on the Bank's financial result and equity
resulting from the Bank's difficulty or inabilitiy to settle its matured liabilities in instances of
insufficient liquidity reserves and inability to cover for unexpected outflows and other liabilities.
Liquidity risk may be manifest as the risk related to the sources of funds and market liquidity risk.

The problem of liquidity in respect of the sources of funds relates to the structure of liabilities and is
expressed through potential significant share of unstable and short-term sources of funds or their
concentration.On the other hand, liqudity risk is reflected in reserves deficiency and difficulty or
inability to obtain liquid assets at reasonable market prices.
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5. ALL KEY BUSINESS EVENTS THAT OCCURRED AFTER THE BUSINESS YEAR FOR WHICH
THE REPORT IS PREPARED

There were two General Meetings of Bank's Shareholders held from 31.12.2012 until 30.04.2013.

e Regular General Meeting of Bank's Shareholders held on 23.01.2013.

Decision on the adoption of the Strategy and Business Plan of the Bank covering period 2013-2015
was made at this session.

e Regular General Meeting of Bank's Shareholders held on 24.04.2013.

Decision on the adoption of the Report on Bank's Operation for 2012 was made at this session,
including:
a. DECISION ON ADOPTION OF THE REPORTS ON OPERATION FOR 2012

b.  DECISION ON ADOPTION OF BANK'S REGULAR FINANCIAL STATEMANTS FOR 2012, WITH THE
EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S OPINION

c. DECISION ON DISTRIBUTION OF 2012 PROFIT AND ACCUMULATED PROFIT FROM PREVIOUS
YEARS.

6. ALL KEY TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED ENTITIES

At 31.12.2012 the following entities were related to the Bank:
1. Komercijalna Banka a.d. Budva, Montenegro,

2. Komercijalna Banka a.d Banja Luka, Bosnia and Herzegovina,

3. Kombank Invest a.d. Beograd and

4. Physical persons, according to the provisions of the Article 2 of the Law on Bank
defining the concept of ,persons related to the bank”.

Total exposure to persons related to the Bank, as at 31.12.2012, amounted RSD 683,808
thousands, which, compared to the capital totalling RSD 40,377,866 thousands resulted to 1.69%
(maximum value of total loans to persons related to the Bank, as defined by the Law on Banks,
shall not exceed 20% of the capital).

Highest portion of exposure to persons related to the Bank, as at 31.12.2012, the amount of RSD
671.161 thousands or 1.66% of the Bank's capital relates to the loans granted to individuals related
to the Bank.

According to the Article 37 of the Law on Banks, the Bank did not approve loans to persons related

to the Bank under more favourable conditions than those of loans granted to persons unrelated to
the Bank, i.e. persons who are not Bank employees.
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7. COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES IN RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Banks are specific institutions and in their ordinary course of business the research and
development activities have a much different form than those applied by the companies.

The Bank conducts reqular surveys of financial markets, analyzes the financial needs of its
customers and engages itself in researching the level of satisfaction of the users of financial
services.

The above researches the Bank most often does not perform independently, but for the purpose of
conducting these studies it employs specialized agencies for public opinion research.

We are particularly pleased with the fact that over an extended period of time the Bank has been in
the top of the banking system by a brand identity and the quality of the services offered.

In the segment pertaining to development of new products and services the Bank endeavors, based
on the information and conclusions obtained through the activities of market research and the
customers' needs, to develop and market the modified existing products, or entirely new products
and services.

It is as a result of the activities undertaken in the field of research and development that the Bank

over the last period offered the new types of deposits and loans, and developed a range of services
in the segment of electronic banking.

8. COMPANY’S OWN SHARES

Reason for acquisition of own shares:

Number of acquired own shares:

Percentage of acquired own shares:

Nominal value of own shares:

Names of the persons from whom the shares have been acquired:

Amount paid for the acquisition of own shares, or an indication
that they have been acquired without charge:

Total number of own shares:

9. STATEMENT FROM COMPETENT PERSONS

I hereby declare that, to the best of my knowledge, the annual financial statements were prepared by
applying the appropriate international financial reporting standards and that they provide the true,
accurate and objective information about assets, liabilities, financial position and business operations,
gains and losses, cash flows and changes in equity of the public company, inclusive of its companies
that are included in the consolidated financial statements.
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD
Executive Director of Finance and Accounting

Savo Petrovi¢

Member of the Executive Board ~ Deputy President of the Executive Board

Lidija Sklopi¢ Dragan Santovac
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& KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD

GENERAL MEETING OF THE BANK’S SHAREHOLDERS
No. 7710/1-1

Belgrade 24.04.2013

Pursuant to Article 66 of the Law on Banks and Article 14 of the Articles of Association of Komercijalna banka AD

Beograd (revised text), at its regular session, held on 24.04.2013, the General Meeting of Shareholders of
Komercijalna banka ad Beograd passed the following

DECISION
ON ADOPTION OF REPORT ON OPERATIONS OF KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD
FOR 2012

The Report on Operations of Komercijalna banka AD Beograd for 2012 is hereby adopted, in the wording that
forms an integral part of this decision.

This decision becomes effective on the day of its passing.

CHAIRPERSON OF THE
GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Sanja Jevtovi¢
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& OMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD

GENERAL MEETING OF THE BANK’S SHAREHOLDERS
No. 7710/1-2
Belgrade 24.04.2013

Pursuant to Article 66 of the Law on banks and Article 14 of the Articles of Association of Komercijalna banka AD
Beograd (revised text), at its regular session held on 24.04.2013, the General Meeting of the Bank's
Shareholders passed the following:

DECISION
ON ADOPTION OF REGULAR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD
FOR 2012

Financial statements of Komercijalna banka AD Beograd for 2012 are hereby adopted, with the report and an
opinion of the Bank’s external auditor (DELOITTE doo Beograd):

Income statement for the period from 01.01.2012 to 31.12.2012,

Balance sheet as at 31.12.2012,

Report on cash flow for the period from 01.01.2012 to 31.12.2012,

Report on changes in capital for the period from 01.01.2012 to 31.12.2012,

Statistical annex for 2012 and

Notes to financial statements for 2012

OOl wWN =

in the wording which forms an integral part of this decision.

This decision becomes effective on the day of its passing.

CHAIRPERSON OF THE
GENERAL MEETING OF THE BANK'S SHAREHOLDERS

Sanja Jevtovi¢
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& KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD

GENERAL MEETING OF THE BANK’S SHAREHOLDERS
No. 7710/1-3
Belgrade, 24.04.2013

Pursuant to Article 66 of the Law on banks and Article 14 of the Articles of Association of Komercijalna banka AD

Beograd (revised text), at its regular session held on 24.04.2013, the General Meeting of the Bank's
Shareholders passed the following:

DECISION
ON DISTRUBUTION OF PROFIT FROM 2012 AND ACCUMULATED RETAINED EARNINGS FROM
PREVIOUS YEARS
|

Recorded profit for 2012 and retained accumulated profit from previous years amount to:

No. ITEM Amount in RSD
PROFIT FOR DISTRIBUTION
1.1.  Profit from 2012 available for distribution 4,122,146,051.51
1.2. Retained accumulated profit from previous years 63,666,109.42
1. TOTAL AMOUNT FOR DISTRIBUTION (1.1. +1.2.) 4,185,812,160.93

and are being distributed in the following manner:

No. ITEM
21, 2012 dividends for preference shares (ISIN: RSKOBBE19692, CFl: EPNXAR) at an average for 37.351,000.00

12 months term savings deposit rate of 10.00% per year:

31.12.2012 is the ex-dividend date for which a list of shareholders who own the Bank’s
preference shares from item 2.1 is prepared in accordance with Article 13b of the Memorandum
of Association of the Bank.

99 Profit-sharing bonus (profit-based earnings) for the Bank’s employees in accordance with the 296,852 933.42
=" Remuneration Policy and the decision by the Compensation Committee: T

2. TOTAL DISTRIBUTED PROFIT (2.1. +2.2. +2.3.) 334,203,933.42

3. RETAINED PROFIT (1-2) 3,851,608,227.51

In accordance with this decision, the decision of the Compensation Committee and the Bank’s internal
documents, the Executive Board is authorized to pass a decision on the amount of profit-sharing bonus (profit-
based earnings) payable to the Bank’s employees, according to their individual performance in 2012, within the
amount given in item 2.2.

Il

The Executive Board of the Bank shall oversee the implementation of this decision.
]

This decision becomes effective on the day of its passing.

CHAIRPERSON OF THE
GENERAL MEETING OF THE BANK'S SHAREHOLDERS

Sanja Jevtovi¢
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BEOGRAD, April 2013.

NOTE:

Decision on adoption of the audit report, Decision on adoption of the report on business operations,
Decision on adoption of the annual financial statements and Decision on distribution of profit were
adopted on 24.04.2013 by the General Meeting of Bank's Shareholders. Decision on adoption of
consolidated financial statements and Decision on adoption of the report on the audit of the consolidated
financial statements will be adopted at the General Meeting of Bank's Shareholders, which is expected to
be held by the end of May of this year.
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